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GROUP PROFILE

About Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries are one of the world’s largest circular knitted fabric
manufacturers, providing vertically integrated operations in fabric knitting, dyeing, printing and finishing.
In addition to its core business of manufacturing and sale of knitted fabric which generates majority of the
total revenue, the Group’s product range also includes dyed yarns, sewing threads and garments. As a major
knitted fabric supplier to garment manufacturers in over 40 countries that supply apparel products including
sportswear, casual wear, sleep wear and inner wear to many internationally renowned retailers and brands,
Fountain Set’s worldwide sales reached HK$9.17 billion (US$1.18 billion) in the 16 months ending 31 December

2012.

Headquartered in Hong Kong and listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Fountain Set (Holdings)
Limited (SEHK: 420) has production facilities in the PRC, Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and

representative offices in 5 countries and a global staff force of over 13,300.

Since June 2012, Chinatex Corporation has become the largest shareholder of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited.
Chinatex is under direct administration of the State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission

of the State Council of the PRC and is one of the 500 largest enterprises in the PRC.

To learn more about Fountain Set, please visit www.fshl.com

To learn more about Chinatex Corporation, please visit www.chinatex.com
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CORPORATE INFORMATION ~S1&#
HONORARY CHAIRMAN ZEXE
Mr. HA Chung Fong BEMFRE
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Executive Directors HITESE
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29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
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Vivien Chan & Co.

AUDITOR
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26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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EXTENSIVE WORLDWIDE NETWORK 35 XIREBRA84S

@ Headquarters

3
oAl

® Production Facility
EERIE

@ Overseas Office
BINRER

HEADQUARTERS - #2 &

HONG KONG & &
Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
BHEX (£8) ARAH

PRODUCTION FACILITY - £ R

CHINA

KNITTING & DYEING #+48 % 362
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited
IREEAMERATE
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited

HEHNEEARBRLR

KNITTING, DYEING & PRINTING #4832 & & EN7E
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles

Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd.
REDHABEHBENFERAA

GARMENT MANUFACTURING #4<

Dong Guan Hai Xing Apparel Co., Ltd.
REEREBRAE

Dongguan Fuguan Garment Co., Ltd.

REBRAEARERAT

Dong Guan FuYi Apparel Co., Ltd.

REREREFRART

Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd.

ERAGHRERAA

Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited

IREEAMERAT

Sugian Young Top Garments Co.,, Ltd

BRAMEKRERAR

SEWING THREADS MANUFACTURING #&#) 474 &

Dongguan Goldlink Thread Factory Co., Ltd.
RESZELBERAA

JAKARTA BB hniE
GARMENT MANUFACTURING &7k

PT. Sandang Mutiara Cemerlang

COLOMBO A &3
KNITTING & DYEING #45 % 3262

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited

M (BRA) BRAR"

TRADING OFFICE - ¥ S5 2

CHINA /R

SALES OF DYED FABRICS & YARNS &7 & 45 &
Shenzhen Faun Textiles Limited

FYIE DR ERA R

Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd.
LBEEHBESEROR

HONG KONG &t

RAW MATERIALS SOURCING RH%EE
Highscene Limited

ERBRAT

SALES OF DYED FABRICS & YARNS 77 & 4D 5 &
Fountain Set Limited

BHEXERAA

SALES OF SEWING THREADS

Goldlink Thread Limited
SESHARAR

SALES OF GARMENTS F{ X S5

Hiway Textiles Limited
BEHBERAT

OceanStar Textiles International Limited
BEHBERERAR

Triumph Luck Limited

HEERDLA

=S Seoul
gyt o
Yyio™=+ ]

MACAO ;#F9
RAW MATERIALS SOURCING JFHHREE

Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited

EE (RMBEFREERYE) BRAR

TORONTO Z1f&%

SALES OF DYED FABRICS & GARMENTS & 75 §& i < $5 &

Fountain Set Textiles (Ontario) Limited

BHGE (Z4) ARIE

HO CHIMINH CITY #7588 i
Fountain Set (Singapore) Pte. Limited
- Vietnam Representative Office
BHEXE i) BABRAR
-HRERRE

SEOUL HEl
Fountain Set Limited
- Korean Liaison Office

BHEXERAE - BEERRE

SINGAPORE /N3
Fountain Set (Singapore) Pte. Limited
BHEZE G BABRAR

#  Chinese names are only translations of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English names shall prevail.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2012
FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS B MRzt =
For the For the
16 months ended 12 months ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
HZ20126 BZ2011F
128318 Lt 8A31H L
1618 A 1218 A
HK$Mil HKSMil
B&EETT BHEET
Operating Results EIEEE
Revenue B 9,167.1 7,593.9
(Loss) Profit (E1]|) &R
Total e (324.2) 210.9
(Loss) Profit margin (BE)BR=E (3.5%) 2.8%
(Loss) Earnings per share (HK cents) T (E18) BF GBAl)
- Basic —&EK (33.5) 26.6
- Diluted —#E (33.5) 26.6
Dividends BRE
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (BEERAZREREER)
Per share (cent) () 0 1.0
Dividend payout ratio RELE= N/ATEA 3.8%

At 31 December

At 31 August

2012 2011
020125 R20114
12A31H 8H31H
HKSMil HKSMil
BEETT BEET
Financial Position at Period/Year End REE, FEAES ZHERR
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (EEEEMAZREREZR)
Net current assets REEEFE 1,464.4 1,601.7
Total assets EE#RE 6,020.1 6,608.9
Long-term bank borrowings REIRITIEE 240.6 755.9
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,483.1 2,199.4
Net bank borrowings IRITIEEFE 265.0 1,074.8
Total liabilities aERE 2,773.7 3,510.1
Tangible net worth BRFEE 3,009.7 2,830.1
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFE(ET) 2.50 3.56
Capital expenditure EREX 103.0 110.3
(after inclusion of interest capitalized) (BEBEEEEZFNERER)
Financial Statistics B # e 5t
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (EEFEHEMAZREREEZR)
Current ratio TREN L & 1.58 1.59
Long-term bank borrowings ratio RHRTEBELE 0.08 0.27
Bank borrowings ratio IRITEELLE 0.51 0.78
Net bank borrowings ratio RITEEFELER 0.09 0.38
Gearing ratio EXRBELE 0.95 1.24
Return before tax on average equity BB ZFEIIRRESERE (11.0%) 11.5%
Interest cover ratio FE L= (2.66) 5.39
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS BA7& N #fatia®=

Revenue Gross Profit Margin
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Net Bank Borrowings and Net Bank Borrowings Ratio

(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) Inventory and Inventory Turnover Period

(=3 E 5
SR8 BB E R IR T 15 SUFE b (S OmEN 2R RRER) FARTRBWS
HKS M % HKS M Days
HEET BERET B
2500 09 2500 137 150
0.8
2000 065 07 2000 125
: 103 1939
0.6 % 100
1500 1,598 1500 78
1527 05 1466
75
04 1,181 1341
1000 1000
03 50
0.2
500 500 2
0.1
0 0.0 0
2008 2009 2010 201 2012 2008 2009 2010 201 2012
I Net Bank Borrowings $R1TfE B R {E Bl nentory BE
=l = Net Bank Borrowings Ratio 817 & £ ¥ i Lt = ~I'= Inventory Turnover Period 77 £ J8 ¥

Note:  In August 2012, the Company changed its financial year end date from 31 August to 31 December. Hence the figures for

the period ended 31 December 2012 cover the 16 months period from 1 September 2011 to 31 December 2012.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY E7 FE1f

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT mEWER
For the
For the For the For the For the 16 months
year ended year ended year ended year ended ended

31 August 31 August 31 August 31 August 31 December

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
EHZE2008F HZE2009F HZE2010F EHE201E HZF2012F
8A31H 8A31H 8A31H 8A31H 12A31HL
LFE LHEE i: 35 HEE 16{8 A
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HKS000 HK$’000
FiET FET FET FiET FET
Revenue e 6,103,045 5,451,492 6,148,949 7,593,889 9,167,089
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities B % %2 (EE) (371,125) 8,280 250,095 343,191 (333,457)
Reversal of impairment loss on HEERIEER
amounts due from jointly RHREWHE
controlled entities BLED 21,907 - - - =
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREAT (BB BF (349,218) 8,280 250,095 343,191 (333,457)
Income tax expense EBE (9,179) (12,475) (6,516) (103,473) (4,304)
(Loss)/profit for the year/period ~ 2HE /HE (EF#E) /BF (358397 (4,195) 243,579 239,718 (337,761)
Attributable to: FE1E
Owners of the Company RATEBA (396,451) (48,928) 223,798 210,886 (324,167)
Non-controlling interests FERES 38,054 44,733 19,781 28,832 (13,594)

(358,397) (4,195) 243,579 239,718 (337,761)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY E7 731

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FmEMBRRE
At At At At At
31 August 31 August 31 August 31 August 31 December
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
20085 20095 720105 R20115 ®20125
8A31H 8A31H 8A31H 8A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(&%) (REH) (REH)
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,337,883 2,620,084 2,479,434 2,300,207 2,023,461
Current assets RBEE 3,662,332 3,434,138 4,386,539 4,308,695 3,996,634
Current liabilities REEE 1,488,830 1,865,990 2,974,955 2,699,104 2,532,214
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,173,502 1,568,148 1,411,584 1,609,591 1,464,420
Total assets less current BEEAERRD
liabilities af 4,511,385 4,188,232 3,891,018 3,909,798 3,487,881
Non-current liabilities *RBERE 1,812,191 1,639,475 1,077,923 871,572 308,101
Net assets EEFE 2,699,194 2,548,757 2,813,095 3,038,226 3,179,780
Capital and reserves BEARRF#E
Share capital B’ 158,802 158,802 158,802 158,802 240,609
Reserves B 2,289,353 2,235,079 2,474,523 2,679,224 2,769,113
Equity attributable to owners FNUNGIEZ 2= DN
of the Company bR 2,448,155 2,393,881 2,633,325 2,838,026 3,009,722
Non-controlling interests FERER 251,039 154,876 179,770 200,200 170,058
Total equity EREE 2,699,194 2,548,757 2,813,095 3,038,226 3,179,780
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS 1218 K:5R55
Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
EHEXEE)FRAE
2010/11
g r.%%%gﬁ%%ﬁ N ==
* PRARRLLELSRATREL

2010/1
yrstentrant 28

I 1EEBR= AIMR AL
Hang Seng PRD Environmental Awards

Name of Awards/Certification #218/72# % 78
3 Years+Entrant and Green Medalist of
Hang Seng PRD Environmental Awards 2010/11
BEKR=AREALHE2010/11
[#RERE |RI3F+ BH |
Issued by 1 B {1
Federation of Hong Kong Industries (FHKI) and
Hang Seng Bank
BEBIEEAG/EERT

I 'g,' A~k 5

ELEFAE S IE Y P2

£IARERGHELLA S AALFAAR
e, BE CEHEAZE— RS ERLT R

LY

A s

Name of Award/Certification #218/327% % 8
The Best Design Pattern Award*
RIEB SRR
Issued by 1 B {1
Textile Apparel Weekly
HEREAT

CERTIFICATE

T b,

Name of Award/Certification #218/3727% %8
Oeko-Tex Standard 100
(Class Il)

Issued by 1 {1
TESTEX AG,

Swiss Textile Testing Institute

- PAHRELARTAREAR

Name of Award/Certification #218/3727% %8
International Marketing
Development Award*

B iR T 453 B 4R K 8%

Issued by #1817
China Khnitting Industry Association

hES BT ERE

R B
'{*;‘
S

Name of Award/Certification #218/727% % 8
Top 100 Turnover of Knitting
Industry in China*
hESHTETEEBRATREE
Issued by & &A1
China Khnitting Industry Association
FEISHE TGS

Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd.

SELHRSHEEIXARAE

=
dr et

Name of Award/Certification #215/32 7% % 8
Oeko-Tex Standard 100 (Class I)
Issued by #{H B{;
TESTEX AG,

Swiss Textile Testing Institute

AN S LENAN N
WWF Low Carbon Manufacturing Programms (LEWS]
e —
P TRk et teorc e S

AR URS B B E A
'DONGGUAN SHATIN LAKE SIDE TEXTILES PRINTING & DVEIG CO., LTD.
g

Name of Award/Certification #218/3727% % 8
Low Carbon Manufacturing Programme
(LCMP) Gold Label
BERfETa=eER
Issued by #1811
WWF
HRERESS

CERTIFICATE

Sl Aty

Name of Award/Certification #218/372 7 % 8
Oeko-Tex Standard 100 (Class II)
Issued by #{H B{i;
TESTEX AG,

Swiss Textile Testing Institute

Name of Award/Certification #218/3727% %8
Foreign Enterprise Tax Growth Award*
INE MBI IE R
Issued by & 87
CPC Shatian Town Committee —
People’s Government of Shatian Town
PHDHEZ - PHEARBN

*  English names are only translation of their official chinese names. In case of inconsistencies, the chinese name shall prevail.
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Name of Award/Certification 218/57& % 8
Top 10 Foreign Enterprise Tax Award 2011*
01N EENECEMB AT+ B
Issued by & B {1
CPC Shatian Town Committee —
People’s Government of Shatian Town

RHPEER - DHEARBRS

@ <
B avarey j

Certificate of Merit
i 3.1 |

mum—;uﬁ

"""i—""'

%
S
nnnn
-

Name of Award/Certification #218/72# % 78
Sectional Awards — Manufacturing
(Certificate of Merit)
[RAI=HE|-REX(BRR)

Issued by #H B{i1
Environmental Campaign Committee (ECC)

REREEHESS

™
i

CERT[,EJ CATE

Name of Award/Certification #218/72 7 %8
Organic Exchange 100 Standard
BER S 1002 %

Issued by & H {1
Institute for Marketecology (IMO)
Bt ERmBMREN

Name of Award/Certification $218/527& % 8
Top Five Actual Export Enterprises 2012*
0126 ESHEERH O A RRE
Issued by &7
CPC Shatian Town Committee —
People’s Government of Shatian Town

PHPBEEZ - DHEARBRS

Name of Award/Certification #218/72 7 % 78
Organic Exchange Blended Standard
BERERHEE
Issued by | B A1
Institute for Marketecology (IMO)
Bt ERTBMRENR

0RO
L ﬁ\l‘l#luiﬁi-ﬁ

Y e

Name of Award/Certification #218/72 7% %8

Quality Management System Certification*

EEEERARERE
Issued by 1 B A1
China Great Wall (Tianjin) Quality
Assurance Centre
R (R2)EERFHO

20NERNBETET(E

Name of Award/Certification #218/:28 % 1§
Outstanding Enterprise of Energy
Conservation in Shatian Town 2011*
201 EFED HEERE TR EEM
Issued by i B A1
Energy Conservation Leader Section Office
of Shatian Dongguan
REm D HEHERFETE
BENMARAE

Name of Award/Certification #218/32 78 % 7%
Global Organic Textile Standard (GOTS) 2.0
20l ERERBHERIESE
Issued by & H &

Institute for Marketecology (IMO)
WA RmBHRAM

B R O
ERTE R A

o ARFERANRI RS
e

-._.I/‘- L | p‘?;::‘.l‘:_q"'

Name of Award/Certification #218/32 78 % 78
Environmental Management System
Certification*
BRREERARERE
Issued by 1 B
China Great Wall (Tianjin) Quality
Assurance Centre

R (R2)EEREH O
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Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited
IREEGHEFRAE

Wik g
KOy

¢
>
LHEKAT

Name of Award/Certification #£18/3727% % 8
Water Saving and Emission Reduction
Demonstrative Project*
KRR EER
Issued by % H B
Water Resources Department
of Jiangsu Province

STEREKFIE

%ﬁimﬁ%ég

&> S

THEAHT THERRE

Name of Award/Certification #218/z355 % 7
Water Saving Enterprise of
Jiangsu Province*

IR EEKERE
Issued by % H &1
Water Resources Department of Jiangsu
Province / Jiangsu Development &
Reform Commission

SIEREKFIE IHEBUE

Name of Award/Certification 218/ 4 7
Pioneer Award of a Good
Demonstration of Jiangyin*®
SIRETEERIARERE EHER
Issued by 1 811
People’s Government of Jiangyin

IR ARBAE

+
-
5
-
+
I

Name of Award/Certification #218/372 7% % 8
Outstanding Enterprise of
Environmental Protection 2011*
01MFERERBLERE
Issued by 1 B{i
Jiangyin Economic Development Zone
Managing Committee
IR EERREEERES

. IRBRICSARERLE

R EIARBE
RAELL

WENARANHERFECS MRE Ju p G Bl
ZO-ZEER

Name of Award/Certification #218/327% % 8
Carbon Footprint and Water Footprint
Evaluation Demonstrative Enterprise*

R B RUK R B RHE R 3
Issued by & B
National Quality Inspection Public
Industry Research
BERERARBMETERNMEE
(ERERBAMR)RE

FEHRATI LS
(L XS
EE T TRER S TY

widk

N weieke:

Name of Award/Certification $18/32 & 48
China Knitting Industry Environment

Optimization, Energy Saving and Emission

Reduction Outstanding Enterprise*
hEISHETE BRE(CHRERSESLE
Issued by & &7
China Knitting Industry Association

REISHE T E NS

RAETY
ARACBOA R
FE200 IRENEE A Efil, BN
W LRI il
FBGAE . CATT S

HMHARAA S R
0= 8=

Name of Award/Certification #218/3727 % 8
Outstanding Enterprise of
Production Safety 2011*
0MEEREEELESN
Issued by 1 B{
Production Safety Committee of
People’s Government of Jiangyin
IRTARBRZZEEZES

4 k.
NEREE "MBIZEr"
REME R

AT ARBAR |

h ZO—=%=R i

Name of Award/Certification #218/z355 % 74
Enterprise of Foreign Trade
Over 20 Billion
SHEBEFERETREEMEN
Issued by % H B
People’s Government of Jiangyin

IlRemARBA

15014001
CERTIFICATE

Name of Award/Certification #218/73: 4 78
Environmental Management
System Certification
RREERARIRS
Issued by # {1 B{1
China Environmental United (Beijing)
Certification Center Co.,Ltd
FERES (LR RREROLERAR
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Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited
RS S ERAE

| uNECHBARES

Name of Award/Certification #£18/32 75 % 8
Quality Demonstration Unit*
BEERHEN
Issued by & H &7
Yancheng Information Centre of State
Quality Supervision Bureau
BEREEEBEFEEF L

IEAAERRLENE
L

DIRECTOR MEMBER

= ety

Name of Award/Certification %218
Director Member
BEEN
Issued by & H &7
Jiangsu Association of Enterprises with
Foreign Investment

IHEIERECEHE

Goldlink Thread Limited
SEGBERAT

CERTIFICATE

Name of Award/Certification #£18/32 78 4 %
Oeko-Tex Standard 100 (Class I)
Issued by 1 B
TESTEX AG,

Swiss Textile Testing Institute

CO—ERFRELEFIH

% it £ &

il
iy

Name of Award/Certification #£18/32 78 % 8
Outstanding Enterprise of Environmental
Protection & Production Safety 2011*
01MFERR - REEETHAESE

Issued by 1 B
Yancheng Economic Development Zone
Managing Committee/Yancheng Economic
Development Zone Working Committee
PHEFQEXMABRBETIFESS - EHEL
BRENHEZEEEZES

Name of Award/Certification #218/52:& &1
Workers Vanguard*
T AF®ER
Issued by & H &7
Jiangsu Federation of Trade Unions
IHEEITE

Dongguan Fu Yi Apparel Co., Ltd.
REEERERRAE

SERA=O—=FX

Name of Award/Certification #£18/32 78 % 78
Top Five Actual Export Enterprises 2012*
2012 EX HEBRH OASE ¥
Issued by & H &7
CPC Shatian Town Committee —
People’s Government of Shatian Town
RRPHEZ - DHBEARBNT

Name of Award/Certification #£18/32 78 % T8
The Model Home of Workers*
HEBIZR
Issued by & H &7
Yancheng Federation of Trade Unions
HETRTE

Name of Award/Certification #218/52:& &
Environmental Management System Certification
RIREERARERE
Issued by & H &7
Beijing NGV Certification Centre
It RBERAFEE RO

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited
BERREN)BRAE

Name of Award/Certification #£18/32 78 % %
Environmental Management
System Certification
RREERARERE
Issued by 1 87
United Kingdom Accreditation
Service (UKAS) and National Accreditation
Board, USA (ANAB)



/72 Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2012

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FfEiR=

Dear Shareholders,
| am honored to report to shareholders the results of the Group for the
16 months period ended 31 December 2012 on behalf of the new board

of directors following our reorganization in 2012.

WITH CONCERTED EFFORT WE REFORM AND
INNOVATE

The financial year of 2012 was a very important year in the development
timeline of the Fountain Set Group, it was also a year during which the
Group confronted severely challenging operating environment that
was unprecedented in recent years. In relation to dramatic fluctuation
in the prices of textile raw and auxiliary materials and the continued
escalation of power and labor costs, the Group fell short of responding
promptly and effectively while the reform on management and control
measures and methods were less than sufficient. Although the Company
maintained a steadfast business, the operating performance was
disappointing and resulted in a significant loss that adversely impacted
the interests of the Fountain Set Group and Shareholders. On behalf
of the Board and the management team, | would like to express our

deepest apologies to this heartrending situation.

To the Group’s Shareholders and the Board, the financial year 2012 was
no doubt a year of great change. Chinatex Corporation (“Chinatex”),
based on Fountain Set’s 40 some years of development history during
which the foundation for the Group’s operation and industry influence
was established, invested approximately HK$511 million in Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited in June 2012 through the placement of new share and
has since become the Group’s single largest shareholder. The injection of
the new capital has effectively reduced the Group’s financial costs, thus
enhancing our capital strength. This has strengthened the Group’s ability
to tackle severe challenges and to implement internal adjustments
and reforms. At the same time, Chinatex and the Fountain Set Group
leveraged their individual strengths to provide the Group with active
support in the supply of raw materials. The Group has also restructured
the Board accordingly and | had the honor to be elected as the new
Chairman of the Board. Under the leadership of the new Board, the
management has made tremendous effort in the last half year of the past
financial year by adopting a series of measures to reduce operating and
management costs and to control losses with visible results. The Group’s
overall performance has since stabilized and begun to show favorable

improvements.
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The Fountain Set Group boasts a glamorous history, yet it has been
experiencing some profound impacts brought about by changes in
the operating environment. Still faced with daunting challenges, the
Board, the management, and | are aware of the great responsibilities
involved in this honorable mission. | am confident that by capitalizing
on the solid foundation and capabilities of the Fountain Set Group built
up over the years, the relentless support of the Shareholders as well as
the hard work of our extensive staff force, we are poised to overcome
every difficulty and hurdle that may lie ahead to turn a new page for
the Group'’s development through the pursue of innovation, reform and
improvement. After profound review and consideration on the subjects
of controlling costs, increasing gross profit and the core assignment of
generating profit as soon as possible, the Board and the management
have reached broad consensus on certain measures to address existing
issues in our operation and management that are now being proactively

implemented.

OUTLOOK

With over 80% of our fabric ultimately being made into garments
destined for overseas markets including the US and EU, the wellbeing of
the export market is vital to our business. In general, the world economic
situation remains uncertain and this unstable trend may continue.
However, the outlook of the US economy has shown some signs of
improvement, signifying that US customer demand may improve slightly
in 2013 as compared to the year before. Meanwhile, the demands in
EU and China are expected to remain at similar levels as 2012. When
presented with opportunities and challenges, | firmly believe that
straight adherence to the direction of reform, innovation, transformation
and upgrading, persistent advancement and implementation of various
adjustment and improvement measures, more proactively enhancement
of the competitiveness of the Group are the only ways we can better
capture the opportunity in order to lay a solid path for sustainable and

healthy development of the Group.
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As stated above, since June 2012, Chinatex, under the direct
administration of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of the PRC and is one of the 500 largest
enterprises in the PRC, has invested in the Group through the allotment
of new shares in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$511 million.
The new funding was mainly applied to repaying bank borrowings. As
of 31 December 2012, Chinatex is the single largest shareholder of the
Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and owns approximately 34% of the
outstanding shareholdings of the Company. Participation of Chinatex
not only enhanced financial strength of the Group but also provided
stronger support on raw material supply as well as new development
ideas, management resources and strategic directions, which are all

important for the Group's recovery and future development.

Apart from continuously satisfying the needs of our existing customers,
the Group will also carry on the development of new working
relationships with brands and retailers in emerging markets such as
Russia and Eastern Europe. The Group is also committed to enhancing
our research and development, product quality as well as technical
expertise. We will actively explore new materials and technologies in
fabric production and continue developing higher added-value products
for our customers. The Group seeks to continue enhancing our operating
efficiency including fuel and water consumption saving as well as cost
structure while increasing speed-to-market at the same time. Without
adding extra production capacity, the Group will continue to invest in
new equipment and machines to enhance our production capabilities
and level of automation. In addition, the Group is committed to
corporate social responsibility and upholding environmental protection

measures.

APPRECIATION
| would take this opportunity to sincerely thank Mr HA Chung Fong, our

former Chairman, current Honorary Chairman and senior consultant, who
is also the founder of the Group, for his unparalleled contribution and
efforts to the Group in the past 44 years. With his remarkable leadership
and relentless drive for growth, Fountain Set has developed from a small
fabric dyeing workshop with around 20 staff to one of the world’s largest
circular knitted fabric manufacturers. | would also like to express our
appreciation for the strong support of the Shareholders, the professional
leadership of our management team and the dedicated contribution
of our staff members in propelling the Group through the difficulties in

2012.
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ADJUST OUR COURSE TO REFORM TOGETHER

“The castle wall of the enemy is like a wall of iron, yet with firm strides,
and prompt action, we shall eventually conquer its summit.” The
responsibility of carrying on the past and creating a brighter future has
fallen on our shoulders. Let's stand united as we directly take on the
challenges that lie ahead, proactively adjust our course and change

ourselves. Together, we can “Reform”!

LI Lan

Chairman and Executive Director

26 March 2013

HAEAC-ERE
[MBIREE MG TS S (M - #1258
®BAMEHECCEERTHMWEERM
PREINEL -BEM-EE-REEAEY
BE B-RREIDAERYBEC -
o RMmaERE ]

=W
ITERBITEE

2013938 26H



m Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2012

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS =i E51mEd 24T

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

With effect from 10 August 2012, the financial year end of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited has been changed from 31 August to 31 December. This
annual report accounts for financial results of the Group from September
2011 to December 2012, with a total of 16 months instead of the usual 12
months. The financial year of 2012 (“FY2012") was one of the more difficult
years for the textile and apparel industry and the Group. The adverse
economic environment in North America and Europe caused by factors
including high unemployment rate and concerns over default of European
debts continued, resulting in weak demand for textile products and further
deterioration in the demand for textile and apparel products. At the same
time, some large scale local brands and retailers in China have experienced
over-inventory situation which negatively affected the demand for the
textile products. During the period under review, there was unusually high
price premium of Chinese cotton over that of the rest of the World which
mainly as a result of the purchase of domestically produced cotton by the
Chinese government at a guaranteed minimum price. Coupled with the
surging labor cost, high energy cost and RMB appreciation, each operator
of the industry value chain has experienced one of the toughest operating

environments in the past decade.

The Group's production capacity maintained at about 25 million pounds of
fabric dyeing per month which was diversified among four fabric mills in
both China and Sri Lanka. The Group was one of the pioneers in the industry
to diversify our production base by establishing fabric mills in more than one
province in Mainland China since 2003. Currently, we have four fabric mills
located in Dongguan, Jiangyin and Yancheng, China as well as Colombo, Sri

Lanka.

During the period under review, the Group has disposed of the textile
machinery business at the aggregate consideration of RMB90,000,000 and
has also ceased the cotton spinning business. The scale-back actions of our
non-core businesses are in-line with our strategic business plan to reallocate
our resources to the Group's principal businesses, to realize its investment
in China, reduce gearing and increase the liquidity of the Group. In respect
of the disposal of the textile machinery business, the Group has recorded a
gain from the disposal of approximately HK$43,144,000. For the disposal of
the cotton spinning business, the Group has made a loss from the disposal
of approximately HK$8,272,000. The net proceeds from these two disposals
have been used for loan repayment and general working capital of the

Group.
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Customers

As a fabric manufacturer, the Group’s direct customers are garment
factories who are actual purchaser of fabrics. At the same time, the Group
has also developed a long-lasting and strong cohesiveness relationship
with the retailers and brands over the years. These “end-buyer” customers
are commonly the ones to coordinate fabric design, volume and price
directly with the Group. The Group is also committed in developing new
and innovative fabrics for our customers with over four-decade of our
expertise and craftsmanship in the circular knitted fabric industry. Our end-
buyer customers consist of renowned international and domestic brands
and retailers. The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest

customers was less than 30% of the total revenue for the year.

Products

The Group has been actively developing and promoting a wide range of
knitted fabrics under the trademark of “fabric by Fountain Set™” which is the
consolidated brand name for our comprehensive knitted fabric collection.

Our quality and innovative products include:

1. Performance series: “UV-Protection’, “Anti-Mosquito’, “Nano water and
oil repellent”

2. Eco series: organic cotton, complete cotton (made by blending
combing noils and virgin fibers) and original bamboo fiber;

3. Moisture management series: our own brands “Invisi.dri™” (rapidly
absorbs moisture from the skin but without showing any “water
stain” marks on the fabric surface), “Comforton™” (utilizes the “push-
and-pull” method to more effectively wick away perspiration), Dr
Dry® and “Sukool™” (powerful finishing provides superior moisture
management);

4. Fresh series: our own brand “ActivFresh™ C, B and S” of odor

management and anti-microbial fabrics

Capital Investment

The Group is committed to continue investing in infrastructure, machinery
and information systems according to the operating needs and future
development plans. With several fabric mills and garment factories within
the Group, regular infrastructure maintenance and machinery upgrades are
necessary to ensure continuous improvement in operations. The Group has
been configuring SAP as our enterprise resources planning systems and
the target implementation date is early 2014. It is expected that the overall

operational efficiency and productivity will be highly improved.
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Dividend
In view of the current business situation of the Group, the Board has resolved

not to pay any final dividend for the period ended 31 December 2012.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group has been actively and consistently communicated with the
capital market throughout the years. Against the backdrop of stagnant
market situation, the textiles industry may continue to be weak, as well
as the challenges the Group is facing in the current phase of its corporate
development, the Group's financial performance will be affected in the short

term.

The key operating and financial indicators of the Group for the period ended

31 December 2012 are set out below:

’RE
EREEEBEEFNEBRL  ESSRERE
Z22012F12A31H LA FIREEMRRE -
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For the For the
16 months 12 months
ended ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
BZ20125F BE20115F
12A31H 8A31H
k1618 A 11218 A
Key Financial Ratios FEMBLER
Profitability ratios BFGEL HFE
Gross profit margin (%) EF=E 8.6% 15.3%
EBITDA margin (%) ERmEgEmRAER 1.1% 8.9%
Expenses as a % of revenue BT IEEEBE L E
Distribution and selling expenses DHEREEER 3.2% 2.5%
Administrative expenses THER 9.8% 8.1%
Finance costs RbE B A 1.0% 0.9%
Asset efficiency BENE
Inventory turnover (days) FERAEHE) 78 96
Trade and bills receivables turnover (days) EERRBRWHEBELSR) 67 61
Trade and bills payables turnover (days) EEREBEMAREBESA) 46 40
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31 December 31 August
2012 2011
20126 20115
12A31H 8H31H
Asset ratios BEHE

Current ratio FEN = 1.6 16
Net debt/EBITDA ratio FEREBITERHEAAEE 2.6 16

Revenue EER

The Group's revenue for the period ended 31 December 2012 amounted to

HK$9,167,089,000.

Revenue by business segments &2 28IZ £ K558

13%

EERZE2012F 1283 1B ANEE£5EE
9,167,089,00058 JT °

[ Production and Sales of Dyed Fabrics, Sewing Threads and Yarns
REREEEH - BAERY

B Production and Sales of Garments 3 [ $4 & R X

FY2012

In FY2012, the Group’s core business, production and sales of dyed fabrics,
sewing threads and yarns, generated revenue of HK$7,977,076,000, which
accounted for 87.0% of the Group’s total revenue. Revenue from production
and sales of garments was HK$1,190,013,000, accounted for 13.0% of the

Group's total revenue.

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit
For the period ended 31 December 2012, overall cost of sales of the Group

amounted to HK$8,379,813,000 and overall gross profit margin was 8.6%.

Distribution and Selling Expenses
For the period ended 31 December 2012, the Group's overall selling and
distribution costs amounted to HK$ 294,682,000, accounting for 3.2% of the

Group's total revenue.

R0NFHBEE SERCER-RERHEE
B BHRRDNE EEEEE7,977,076,000/8
T EEEEEAENS7.0% EEREER
Y ¥ 58 51,190,013,0008 7T G EEE & %5
#{EM13.0% ©

HERARER
EEEZ2012F 128318 LA BEBHEERK
£8,379,813,000/8 7T * BEEEF| R B8.6% °

PHRHEEER

EEEHE2012F 128318 R EES R
EE F 52946820008 T (hEBEEEBEAEN
3.2% °
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Administrative Expenses
For the period ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s overall administrative
expenses approximately amounted to HK$895,285,000, accounting for 9.8%

of the Group’s total revenue.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA)
For the period ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s EBITDA approximately
amounted to HK$101,251,000.

Finance costs
For the period ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s finance costs
approximately amounted to HK$87,288,000, representing 1.0% of the

Group’s total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the period under review, the Group invested approximately
HK$99,396,000 in the additions of property, plant and equipment. The
Group expects the capital expenditure for the next financial year will be

approximately HK$160,000,000.

Income Tax Expenses
For the period ended 31 December 2012, income tax expenses of the Group

approximately amounted to HK$4,304,000.

Inventory
The Group’s inventory approximately amounted to HK$1,340,553,000 as of

31 December 2012. The inventory turnover period was 78 days.

AT
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EEEZ2012F12831B LR EREBTHER
#9895,285,00078 7T » {1 L B & SRR AR E 199.8% ©

B A1 B b0 37 5 & 8 65 (EBITDA)
EEEHE2012F 128318 Rz EF BT FEM
E R #$5%9101,251,00058 7T °

BE R A
EEEHZ2012F12831BEEHRAZBERANF
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1.0% ©
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Liquidity and Financial Resources ESRHUERBBER
At 31 December 2012, the Group’s total assets amounted to approximately 720125128318 » EEEE#{E%96,020,095,000
HK$6,020,095,000. The key figures of financial position were as follows: BT MBERRNEEERNT ¢
At 31 At 31
December August
2012 2011
R20124 20115
12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,023,461 2,300,207
Current assets REBEE 3,996,634 4,308,695
Total assets EEHRE 6,020,095 6,608,902
Current liabilities REEE 2,532,214 2,699,104
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 308,101 871,572
Non-controlling interests FEZERER 170,058 200,200
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RARHER AEGER 3,009,722 2,838,026
Total liabilities and equity EEREREE 6,020,095 6,608,902
The Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of operation SEUZEEMSHEERERRITHREHNERE
by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term bank RNEREELEE MEARZATEZEARBRT
borrowings. Capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term bank ERFERHENRRB -

borrowings and proceeds received from business disposals.
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At 31 December 2012, the principal financial ratios (after inclusion of

proposed final dividend) were as follows:

AT

R2012F 128310  TBMWHM KR (BEREF
ZRPBREER)NOT :

At 31 At 31

December August

2012 2011

R2012% 20114

12H31H 8H31H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Gearing ratio EARB B =R 0.95 1.24
Bank borrowing ratio RITEELE 0.51 0.78
Net bank borrowing ratio IRITEEFELLZR 0.09 0.38

The reporting currency of the Group is Hong Kong dollars. The sales and the
purchase of raw materials of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, US dollars and RMB. Bank borrowings are also denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and RMB and interests are mainly charged
on a floating rate basis. In addition, the Group mainly operates in China
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from RMB exposure. The
fluctuations in the US dollars and RMB have always been the concern of the
Group. In order to mitigate the foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, the
Group would enter into appropriate hedging arrangements in accordance

with the Group’s risk management policies.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
At 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 13,300 full time

employees (2011: 14,200). The Group’s emolument policies are formulated
on the performance of individual employee and on the basis of the salary
trends in various regions, and are reviewed regularly. Subject to the Group's
profitability, the Group may also distribute discretionary bonus to its

employees as an incentive for their contribution to the Group.

The Group has established a share option scheme for its employees, and also
provides regular training courses and subsidies for continuing education so
as to improve the skills of its employees with respect to production, selling

and management.
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MANAGEMENT FOCUS

The Group believes that the global economy will take some time to
normalize and the pressure of cost escalation will persist in China’s textile
and apparel industry while competition will remain intense. In view of these
challenges, the Group will focus resources on its core businesses as well
as enhancing its operating efficiency and performance through a series of

proactive reforms. These initiatives include:

1. Optimizing the Group’s organization, management structure,

and operating process through seamless team work between

production, purchasing, and sales
Facing the increasingly stern operating environment and market
competition, we should reevaluate the existing management structure and
operating processes of the Group to enhance the synergetic cooperation
between purchasing, production, and sales so as to effectively reduce cost
and wastage, as well as to improve operating efficiency and performance.
In this respect, the Group has realigned the purchasing structure in FY2012.
It is anticipated that with the assistance and support of Chinatex, our
purchasing efficiency can reach a more competitive level. The Group has
also surveyed the production condition of its three existing production
bases in China to determine the short-term improvement targets and the
corresponding measures. At the same time, the Group has also decided
to appoint professional human resource consulting firm to formulate an
incentive program for encouraging our sales personnel to be more proactive
and be more aggressive in improving sales performance. We believe that
the progressive completion of these various measures could forge continue

improvement of the Group'’s overall performance.
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2. Optimizing the allocation of production and the underlining
features of local products

Providing quality products is the basis for servicing our customers and
presenting our shareholders with equitable returns. The Group has, over
a period of time and through capital investment, achieved a production
capacity layout with economies of scale. Facing future market environment
that is uncertain and unstable, we believe we should focus our energy on
addressing the demands of the market and customers, optimizing existing
production facilities, and underscoring unique product offerings for the
production bases in different regions. Hence, the features and competitive
edges of the differentiated products can be emphasized to satisfy market
demands and elevate the effectiveness of our operation. We are confident
that our increasing financial strength is poised to transform our technology
incessantly and selectively while maintaining necessary investment in
energy savings and emission reduction. This is essential to maintaining and

increasing the Group's overall competiveness.

3. Strengthening budget management, harnessing the function
of financial cost analysis to monitor the variation of cost and to
identify areas for implementing control

The Group considers continuous reduction in costs and increase of efficiency
are the top priorities for the management of operations. To target certain
essential production factors that manifest continual increase in costs, we
should take further steps to broaden our thinking, draw collective wisdom
to absorb all useful ideas, learn thoroughly and draw on the management
experiences and methods of advanced enterprises, to focus on the seamless
implementation of comprehensive budgeting. To this end, we will deploy
various analytical tools to understand and monitor the variable changes of
cost instantly and dynamically, and pinpoint those areas that require timely
and effective measures of control. Although our Group has over the past few
years implemented various cost reduction measures, we consider reducing
costs and improving efficiency as perpetual tasks. The setting up of the
Group’s new ERP system is being actively promoted internally. We believe
that the Group's overall operating and control system will benefit from the
progressive implementation of such system. Thus, we shall be able to ensure
that information can be communicated seamlessly to enable more effective
reduction in costs and improvement in efficiency. The prices and services

that we offer to our customers can then become more competitive.
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4. Optimization staff allocation and reducing personnel cost

We are very proud of our hardworking and committed staff force. Hence,
we promise our staff, and take up the responsibility, to create more
opportunities for development as well as to stimulate proactiveness and
creativity in order to grow together with the Group. Facing the stern
challenges that lie in front of us, the Group will positively reinforce the
principle of “unity and synchronization; reform and creativity’, which shall
lead our staff to respond and to follow the various reforming measures.
Since the beginning of the second half of FY2012, the Group has, in its
headquarters and production bases, kicked off a program to optimize
job allocation for staff to fortify a more resilient and energetic staff force,
encourage proactive working attitude among key employees, elevate job
efficiency so as to reduce personnel cost. The program has to an extent
achieved positive development - the rapid uptrend of personnel cost has

since been controlled.

5. Shutting down and cleaning up certain loss-stricken companies
and businesses

Based on the principle of “focusing on core competence and be better and
stronger”, and by adapting the Group’s existing business structure with the
severe industry development environment that lies ahead of us, the Group
considers it imperative to focus on our fabric production core business in
order to lay a foundation for future development in case of recovery. In this
regard, we ceased our cotton spinning and textile machinery business in
FY2012. In addition, in view of the losses of certain subsidiary companies of
the Group, we have reviewed the necessity of continuing development and
alternative adjustment programs. We anticipate that we can progressively
create the necessary conditions for expediting the process of such
adjustments. Hence, the Group can focus its resources and energy towards

the improvement of its core business.

6. Placing great emphasis on energy saving and emission reduction;
being proactive in taking up social responsibility and working
together for the betterment of China

In response to the Chinese government’s call for “energy saving and

remission reduction” and “the betterment of China”, the Group will continue

to invest in constructing and upgrading its infrastructure facilities. It is our
belief that energy saving and remission reduction are the best means for
integrating enterprise interest and social responsibility. To this end, the

Group has established a “Committee for sustainable development and

corporate social responsibility” and various energy saving and remission

reduction task forces.
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In the production process, each of our production mills will aim at energy
saving, wastage reduction and emission reduction, and will continue to
inject resources for upgrading energy consuming equipment, especially
the technical review of key areas that consume water, electricity and heat
energy. In this respect, we have installed recyclable components and
energy saving devices in equipment that commands processes such as
dyeing and temperature control in order to fully utilize every bit of water,
electricity and thermal energy. The environmental impact of the emissions
from the equipment will also be reduced, matching and even better than
national emission standards. In FY2012, the Group has already implemented
17 measures including insulation for dyeing machines, heat source
transformation for finishing machines, fan and water pump energy-saving
regulators, waste water and heat energy recovery system for dyeing and
finishing processes. These measures have achieved remarkable economic

and social benefits.

Among products that we manufacture, the Group proactively promotes
the use of environmentally friendly materials and eco-friendly production
techniques. A series of innovative environmentally friendly products are
being developed, such as Kapok fiber, organic cotton, and natural bamboo-
derived fiber. Within our workplaces, the Group has initiated a green office
campaign with an aim of achieving a greener workplace. At the same time,
we are also researching the incorporation into our daily operations of the 4R

concepts: Reduction, Reuse, Recycle, and Regeneration.

Internally, the Group has attempted every endeavor to promote growth
that is sustainable. Externally, we have collaborated with a number of
organizations to promote environment protection and sustainable growth

for the industry, which has received wide reception.

The Group remains cautious of the global macro-economic environment in
2013. Nevertheless, the Board and the management believe that the Group's
strategies and the above initiatives are rational and on the right tracks thus
maintain a relatively optimistic outlook on business for the longer term.
Going forward, the Group commits to enhancing our operational efficiency
through a series of proactive measures to achieve sustainable and financially

stable corporate development.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures. Throughout the period from
1 September 2011 to 31 March 2012 and the period from 1 April 2012 to
31 December 2012, the Company has consistently adopted and complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) (the “Old Code”) and the revised
Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012) (the “Code”)
respectively as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as guidelines
to reinforce our corporate governance principles, except for the deviation
as disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Governance - Corporate

Governance Code” in this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As of 31 December 2012, the board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
comprised nine members, consisting of five Executive Directors, one Non-
Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
number of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents one-third of
the Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The profile of all
directors are set out on pages 40 to 44. The relationship among members of
the Board (including financial, business, family or other material or relevant

relationships, if any) are also disclosed.

All Directors entered into letters of appointment or service contracts with the
Company, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company. Article 102(A) of the articles of association of the Company
provides that at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest one-third or any other number subject to such manner
of rotation as may be required by the Listing Rules or other codes, rules,
and regulations prescribed from time to time by the applicable regulatory
authority, shall retire from office. Article 93 of the articles of association
of the Company also provides that any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election, but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors

who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

and Delegation to the Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
is responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the business operations of the Group in the interests of the
Company'’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) by formulating strategic
directions and monitoring the financial and management performance of

the Group.
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The overall management of the Group’s business was vested in the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Group's
business to the executive management team, and focuses its attention on
matters affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and the
Shareholders. The executive management team assumes full accountability
to the Board for the operations of the Group. A formal schedule was
formulated to identify specific matters that shall be reserved to the Board
and those delegated to the management. The Board had given clear
directions to the management that certain matters must be referred to the
Board for consideration and approval. The Board is the ultimate decision
making body of the Company except for matters requiring the approval
of the Shareholders in accordance with the articles of association of the

Company, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Eight Board meetings were held and regular Board meetings were held at
approximately quarterly interval during the period of 16 months ended 31
December 2012 (the “Period”). Each of the Directors has actively participated
in each meeting in person, via telephone or videoconferencing. The Board

consents were given by-vote at the Board meetings.

The dates of the 2012 regular Board meetings were determined in 2011 and
any amendments to this schedule were notified to all Directors at least 14
days before the meeting. Appropriate arrangements were in place to allow

Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

All Directors accessed to the services of the Company Secretary who
regularly updated the Board on governance and regulatory matters. Any
Director, wishing to do so in the furtherance of respective duties, might take
independent professional advice (through the Chairman) at the Company’s
expense. The availability of professional advice extended to three other
committees. Minutes of Board meetings were taken by the Company
Secretary and, together with any supporting documents, were available to
all Directors. Draft and final versions of the minutes were sent to all Directors

for their comment and record respectively.

If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and which the Board has determined to be
material, the individual Director declared respective interest and was
required to abstain from voting in which he/she or any of his/her associates
have material interest and that he/she shall not be counted in the quorum
present at the Board meeting. The matter was considered at a Board meeting
attended by Independent Non-Executive Directors who had no material

interest in the transaction.
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Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings

and General Meetings

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings, the

Audit Committee meetings, the Remuneration Committee meetings, the

Nomination Committee meetings and the general meetings are set out in

the following table:

EXNEZESE EXZEE5H

ERRAEZHERR

ESNESEER BREEEER FHEE
RBRRREHHEFE

28R REZEEER

PERTR:

Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend

for the 16 months ended 31 December 2012
REZ2012512831A6EACEERE, CERLE EH

Annual Extraordinary
Audit Remuneration  Nomination General General
Name of Directors Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting
EBfE ESg ENRZRE  HMZEE  RAZRE RREFAE RRRIAE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Madam LI Lan (Note 5) SELL (W)

(appointed on 6 June 2012) (M012F6H6REER) 4/4 - - N - N
Mr. HA Chung Fong (Notes 1 &3) ERFRE (W21R5)

(resigned on 27 November 2012) (RoomEn A27AEHE) n - - - N 22
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor ERZAL 8/8 - - - 1l 33
Dr. YEN Gordon BR#EL 8/8 - - - " ElE!
Mr. GONG Zhengyi (Note 4) SELE (H34)

(appointed on 6 June 2012) (M012F6H6REER) 4/4 - 23 - - N

(Note 7\ Aifit7)
Mr. ZHAO Yao R

(appointed on 27 November 2012) (R0nEnB7REZR) N - - - - N
Mr. HA Hon Kuen BERRE

(resigned on 6 June 2012) (R2012E6A6HEHT) 4/4 - - - N 22
Mr. CHEN Rong iRt

(resigned on 27 November 2012) (R012F11A27AEHE) 33 - - - - -
Non-Executive Directors: FHTEE.

Mr. ZHANG Chong (Note 2) RELE (722

(appointed on 6 June 2012) (M012F6H6REZR) 4/4 10 - - - N
Mr. CHAN Yuk Yin REgRE

(retired on 12 January 2012) (RoonE1A12AEME) 02 - - - 01 01
Mr. CHEN Minghong RIS A4

(resigned on 27 November 2012) (RoonEnB7AEHE) 33 - - - - -
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Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend
for the 16 months ended 31 December 2012
REZ2012F12831A6EACEERY, AERLE2EE

Annual  Extraordinary

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
ESpg EZ2 BNZEE §MZEE REZEE RREFAE RRBAAS
Independent Non-Executive Directors: ~ BUHHTEE:
Mr. NG Kwok Tung (Note 6) HEREAE (o) 7/8 m 4/4 - n 33
Mr.WONG Kwong Chi (Notes 2, 3&6)  T®S %4 (Bit2 3Ke)
(resigned on 6 June 2012) (201256 H6HFT) 3/4 5/5 N - N 10
Mr.CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, ses.p  BXfESESE smes A T4
(Note 4) (Hzt4) 8/8 7 N N N 33
Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette (Notes 4 & 6) BERS 1t (#it4k6)
(resigned on 6 June 2012) (20126 A6EREHT) 4/4 - n - n 22
Mr. YANG Shibin (Notes 3 & 6) BHERE (Wit3k6)
(appointed on 6 June 2012) (01256 F6HEZ ) 4/4 - 33 N - N
Date of the meetings SRS 25/11/2011 12/9/201 21/11/20M 20/11/2012 12/1/2012 12/1/2012
1212012 28/10/2011 6/7/2012 10/5/2012
13/4/2012 21/1/201 15/8/2012 18/12/2012
10/5/2012 19/3/2012 18/12/2012
6/7/2012 13/4/2012
15/8/2012 14/8/2012
2611002012 22/10/2012
18/12/2012
Notes: Kzt

Mr. HA Chung Fong resigned as Chairman and appointed as the Honorary
Chairman of the Company on 6 June 2012. He resigned as Executive Director
and remains as Honorary Chairman and senior consultant of the Company with
effect from 27 November 2012.

With effect from 6 June 2012, Mr. WONG Kwong Chi ceased to be a member of
the Audit Committee whilst Mr. ZHANG Chong was appointed as a member of
the Audit Committee in his stead.

With effect from 6 June 2012, Mr. WONG Kwong Chi ceased to be the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee whilst Mr. YANG Shibin was appointed as the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee in his stead.

With effect from 6 June 2012, each of Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette and Mr.
CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP ceased to be a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. GONG Zhengyi was appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee on the same date.

With effect from 6 June 2012, Mr. HA Chung Fong ceased to be the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee whilst Madam LI Lan was appointed as the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee in his stead.

With effect from 6 June 2012, each of Mr. WONG Kwong Chi, Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi
Hao, Yvette and Mr. NG Kwok Tung ceased to be a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. YANG Shibin was appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee on the same date.

Since Mr. GONG Zhengyi had interest in respect of the matters considered in
one of the meetings, he was required to abstain from voting in that meeting and
therefore he did not attend that meeting.
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Training of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding
the duties and responsibilities as a Director, the relevant laws, rules and
regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest and
business of the Group and such induction materials will also be provided to

newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.

All Directors have been updated from time to time on the latest
developments and changes in the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness

of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code Provision
A.6.5 of the Code effective on 1 April 2012 on Directors’ training. Since
the effective date of the Code up to 31 December 2012, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by attending seminars/
in-house briefing/reading materials on the following topics to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the
Company:

Name of Directors Topics of Training Covered (Note)

Executive Directors

Madam LI Lan (a), (b), (d)
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor (@), (b), (d)
Dr. YEN Gordon (a), (b), (d)
Mr. GONG Zhengyi (a), (b), (d)
Mr. ZHAO Yao (), (b)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. ZHANG Chong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. NG Kwok Tung (a), (b), (c)
Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, (a), (b)
Anthony, s8s, JP
Mr. YANG Shibin

(a) corporate governance
(b)  regulatory
(¢) finance

(d)  business operation/management

Directors’ Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect of the

legal action against the Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (“CEO")

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of Chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. HA Chung Fong was the Chairman and Managing Director
of the Company for the period from 1 September 2010 to 30 April 2011.
On 1 May 2011, Mr. HA Kam On, Victor was appointed as Group Managing
Director in place of Mr. HA Chung Fong, details of which were set out in
the announcement dated 24 May 2011. On 6 June 2012, Madam LI Lan
was appointed as Chairman in place of Mr. HA Chung Fong and Mr. HA
Kam On, Victor was appointed as Vice-Chairman and CEO, details of which
were set out in the announcement dated 6 June 2012. After such change,
the positions of the Chairman and CEO are held by Madam LI Lan and Mr.
HA Kam On, Victor respectively so as to maintain an effective segregation
of duties, they have segregated and clearly defined roles. The Chairman
provides leadership for the Board whereas the CEO is responsible for the
Group’s business development and daily management generally. The Board
considered that the aforesaid arrangements were in the best interest of the
Company after having considered the business operation and nature of the

Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

All the existing Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Directors, were appointed for a specific term. Each of the Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general meetings of the

Company in accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board considered that all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent and have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise in

accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code") as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors had complied with the required standards set

out in the Model Code throughout the Period.

FRERITHAR ([TBHEAR]
RIEFAEXA2INEE TEETHRAHNA
EBEEED TEHIAREIRE B2010F9A81
HZE201MF4A308 8@ EMNFEERERATZ
IFERESHLE - oNFESABE ERT AL
EEAAEEEEARKEBEUEEENTEE &
B BERR B A20MFEH248 2 A% R20125F
6H6R THLLTEZTATEUEEERT L
MERLEEBRZXRBEERTBAER #5
HRAHA2012F6B6AC A E - REBEEE:
FERTHRABZBUSIBHETHZIRERR
EERMT UERERZ T HEZBEECHE
RERES TREEEEESE MITHER
EEREEERERER—BRAEEE  LEELXD
FAZEBEEREN EEERELRRENR
BARQTR -

FHTES
FAERAFNTESRBIFNTESHARE
EEFH P TESRBUFNTESESE
BADT T L REAME EHRHEF BARES
ARAZAAERBURSAARRAG LBES
ERERET.

B MHRIAE

RAREREBE LR AEIBREERBIIFEHT
ESNFEBYBRRE - RIE LmAR RS 30K

ESERATRBUFHTESYRABIAL,

YEBEEEXRERRSTRIEBEYBEERNRE -

ESETESRRS
RABEHRM ETRBM 0B EHARESE
TERFXGNBEESH(RETA) AEEHE
BETESFRZ 2T ROARRIEESEL
AERERR ARARRFEESRAHEYCE
TRETFRIFERNGRE



EEEE(EE)FRYTS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT +%%&

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties for
the Group, including (a) developing and reviewing the policies and practices
on (i) corporate governance and (ii) compliance with legal and regulations
requirements of the Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and management;
and (c) reviewing the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report).

Corporate Governance Code

Throughout the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 March 2012, the
Company has applied the principles of, and complied with all the applicable
code provisions of Old Code and throughout the period from 1 April 2012
to 31 December 2012, the Company has applied the principles of, and
complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Code, except for the

deviation on Code Provision A.6.7 of the Code.

According to the Code Provision A.6.7 of the Code, Independent Non-
Executive Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend general
meetings in order to develop a balanced understanding of the views of

shareholders.

Due to other business engagements, an Independent Non-Executive Director
who has resigned on 6 June 2012 could not attend the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 10 May 2012 (the “EGM”). Except
for the above Independent Non-Executive Director, all the other Directors
were present at the EGM to enable the Board to develop a balanced

understanding of the views of the Shareholders.

Save for the above deviation, none of the Directors of the Company is aware
of any information which would reasonably indicate that the Company is
not, or, was not during the Period in compliance with any code provisions of

the Old Code or the Code.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has established three committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee, each with a specific terms of reference. Their terms of reference
have been approved and reviewed by the Board and were updated with
reference to the new amendments in the Code effective from 1 April
2012. The terms of reference of each of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee have been posted on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Period, these committees adhered to their principles, procedures
and arrangements set out in their respective terms of reference. The
respective committee secretary took full minutes of the meetings of these
committees and the work of these committees was reported to the Board

regularly.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee and its principal
duties are 1) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy for all Directors, 2) to review and approve the Company’s
remuneration policy and 3) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives recommend for the Directors of the Board for approval.
The Company’s remuneration policy is to provide a competitive level of
remuneration in accordance with current market conditions to attract and

motivate the Directors and staff for their contribution.

The Remuneration Committee presently comprises one Executive Director
and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. GONG Zhengyi,

Mr. YANG Shibin and Mr. NG Kwok Tung, and is chaired by Mr. YANG Shibin.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the Period and
details of attendance are shown in the table on pages 29 to 30. A summary
of the work of the Remuneration Committee during the Period is set out as

follows:

. made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

assessed their performance;

Exeel

EXSRCHIBEEES DHAFHESES:
REZEENELEZES ZTEERERERES-
RECHESEECRESTRHAEARER S
ZER0NRFARBERZFRIFET A ESH -
WEzEe REZEERBLRZESEEZHE
FEECTIENBE R FARA AT

RER ZEZEEUCEBTRESEZHESR
BEEMERA BFrhke - ZESHBWE
EERRESEEERBRENSRRLHE MES
SREMOESSFHIFER-

FMESS

FARRERIFMEES HEERBHNGTE
REZCHFMEROESTRHESR  2FHDAF
NHMB R R BERESEMILXLTHRER
MRt EERENFMNER YAESSR
HEBRHEZEER - ARANFHRREER
BEAHRREREERFIDNOGHIH LR KR
EERETHEHEER-

FHEEERMBHNTEEREBLFHITE
B PRIRBAEELE BHELAERMLER
K4 REEXFEABUELRE-

FHMESERPRNETTARE R HEFBIRN
BOHEEEEZRAN FHEESNBRNTHE
BMERFEUTEER:

- BERBITEECMETBAESSRMR
& BEEEfNE RRSEIRBEESRE
BRARKUEBERZENREE)  RFE
KE2RR;



EEEE(EE)FRYTS

2012 EFH Fef)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT *%EAWRS

. reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration proposals

with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and

. ensured that no director or any of respective associates is involved in

deciding their respective remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee and its principal
duties are 1) to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the Executive Committee at least annually, 2) to identify and recommend
suitably qualified candidates as new director(s) or to fill Board vacancies
as they arise and to assess candidates as new member(s) of the Executive
Committee or to fill Committee vacancies as they arises, for the approval of

the Board.

The Nomination Committee presently comprises one Executive Director and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Madam LI Lan, Mr. CHOW
Wing Kin, Anthony, $8S, JP and Mr. YANG Shibin and is chaired by Madam LI

Lan.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Period and
details of attendance are shown in the table on pages 29 to 30. A summary
of the work of the Nomination Committee during the Period is to make
recommendation to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and assess

independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The Committee will first consider
necessary changes in respect of the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identify suitably qualified candidates by considering their professional
knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal
skills and time commitments, and makes recommendation to the Board
for decision. The nomination criteria also include the nominee’s skills and

experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s business.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Company'’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. The principal duties of the Audit Committee
is to consider the appointment and remuneration of the external auditors,
to monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial statements with focus on
the changes in accounting policies and practices, major judgmental areas,
significant audit adjustments, going concern assumptions, and compliance
with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other applicable legal
requirements, and to review the Group’s financial reporting system and

internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee presently comprises one Non-Executive Director and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. ZHANG Chong, Mr.
NG Kwok Tung and Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP and is chaired by
Mr. NG Kwok Tung.

The Audit Committee held seven meetings during the Period and details
of attendance are shown in the table on pages 29 to 30. A summary of the

work of the Audit Committee during the Period is set out as follows:

. provided recommendation to the Board on the appointment and
reappointment of external auditors, and approved the audit fee and

terms of engagement of the external auditors;

reviewed and monitored external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards, and discussed with external auditors before
audit commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting

obligations;

reviewed the financial statements, interim report and annual report,
and reviewed significant financial reporting judgments contained in

them;

. reviewed financial controls, internal controls and risk management

systems;
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«  discussed the internal control system with management ensured . BrmABEZERS TRAREEE

that the management had performed its duty to achieve an effective
internal control system. Such discussion included the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes

and budget of accounting and financial reporting function;

. ensured co-ordination between internal and external auditors, and
ensured that internal audit function was adequately resourced and
had appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewed and

monitored its effectiveness;

. reviewed financial and accounting policies and practices; and

reviewed external auditors’ management letter, any material queries
raised by auditors to management regarding the accounting records,

financial accounts or systems of control and management’s response.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
With effect from 5 November 2012, BDO Limited has been appointed as the

new auditor to fill the vacancy left by the resignation of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. Details of the above-mentioned change are set out in the

Company’s announcement dated 5 November 2012.

During the period of 16 months ended 31 December 2012, the fees paid/
payable to BDO Limited and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit

and non-audit services are as follows:

ERITHEZYARNAMEZE RS B
AmEEYBERBEIEER BT 24
BERER BIREREREERERR;

- BRABMIMELBEN TESEHR
BARABELDEEALDTAANBEEHER
B WEBBEEMNMN URRFITRER
REDE X BEN B RNE

- BRANBREABRERER R

BB B A EE BN ERBE RS AR
e RBEMHE S MBRESEERR
RAEEERHINEMNEAZBREEEN
B fE

ZEEME
H20FENASAR BB U EEZETMERME

RAGEZETAFZEMUERREZS . .BEER
FEHMTRIEME T 2E e LB 218
HAARDAT BRI A202FE1N BB 2 A5 R

B 22012128318 1Ib16f8 BHAR BB R FEE
AREEN BN FEB L EZE ST
BRADRZESH BERSSHTMHTZ2EAERT
mT:

BDO Limited

ERVUEER

Nature of services Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu SIEER
BREMHE = .BERS ST FRARDE
Audit services BT R HK$209,455 HK$3,131,020
Non-audit services AR HK$2,210,809 HK$408,059




£1:8] Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2012

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT {354

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The external
auditors’ statement about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages

56 and 57.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal controls and for
reviewing its effectiveness and convening meetings regularly to discuss

financial, operational and risk management control.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board and the management of the Company endeavour to maintain
a continuing communication with the Shareholders and investors through
various channels, including the Company’s general meetings. Set out below
is a summary of how the Shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting (the “EGM") and putting forward proposals at general meetings.

Convening an EGM

Pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth (5%)
of the capital of the Company carrying voting right at general meetings of

the Company, can submit a written requisition to convene an EGM.

The written requisition (i) must state the object(s) of the meeting, and (ii)
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company for attention of the Company Secretary, and may consist of

several documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

Such requisitions will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM by serving

sufficient notice to all Shareholders.

On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the EGM will

not be convened as requested.
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If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene an EGM for a day not more than 28
days after the date on which the notice convening the EGM is given, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but any EGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date of deposit of the requisition. A meeting convened by the requisitionists
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by Directors. Any reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Directors duly

to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Section 115A of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), (i) Shareholder(s) holding not less than 2.5% of the total
voting rights of all Shareholders having the right to vote at the meeting;
or (ii) not less than 50 Shareholders holding the shares of the Company
on which there has been paid up an average sum, per shareholder, of not
less than HK$2,000, can put forward proposals at general meetings by a

requsition in writing.

The written requisition must (i) state the resolution, accompanied by a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred
to in the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at the general
meeting; (ii) contain the signatures of all the requisitionists (which may
be contained in one document or in several documents in like form); (iii)
be deposited at the Company’s registered office for the attention of the
Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks before the general meeting in
the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than 1
week before the general meeting in the case of any other requisition; and
(iv) be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and circulating
the statement given by the requisitionists to all Shareholders in accordance

with the requirements under the applicable laws and rules.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shareholdings
to the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other
Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations
Representative of the Company whose contact details are shown under

“Shareholder Information” of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents

during the Period.
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Executive Director

Madam LI Lan

Chairman and Executive Director

Chairman of Nomination Committee

Aged 58, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board, an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee on 6 June 2012. Madam
Ll is currently the Deputy General Manager of Chinatex Corporation*(H ]
F4HEEAT) (“Chinatex”). Madam LI has almost 30 years of experience
in the textile industry. She joined the predecessor of Chinatex, China
National Textiles Import and Export Corporation* (- Bl 45 4% i H O &N
A]) (“General Corporation”) in 1983 and previously held positions as Deputy
General Manager of General Corporation, General Manager of Chinatex
Knitwear and Manufactured Goods Import and Export Corporation* (F#5
S8 EMMmiEH O A F)), and Deputy General Manager of Chinatex Cotton
and Yarn Import and Export Corporation* (FF#7#)#h 3 H O A F)). Madam
LI graduated with a Bachelor degree in Economics, major in French from
the Faculty of French Literature, Beijing Foreign Trade College (currently
known as University of International Business and Economics), China in
1983. Madam LI is currently a council member of the 2nd annual China’s

Association of Economy and Trade Across Taiwan Straits.

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor

Executive Director

Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Directors of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 47, joined the Group in 2002 as General Manager of the garment
business and became an Executive Director in 2004. He was promoted to
Executive Director and Group General Manager in 2009 and appointed as
Group Managing Director in May 2011. Mr. HA has been appointed as the
Vice-Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
June 2012. He serves as a Director of HK Wuxi Trade Association; a Founding
Member of the Hong Kong Professionals & Senior Executives Association
and a Member of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. He has been
accredited as Honorary Citizen of Jiangmen City in the PRC; and was also
awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” from the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries in 2010. He possesses a degree in Production
Engineering from Coventry University, UK. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HA
has over 11 years of operations and management experience in the garment
trading and manufacturing industry. Mr. HA is the son of Mr. HA Chung
Fong, the Honorary Chairman of the Company and brother-in-law of Dr. YEN

Gordon.

*  For identification purpose only
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Dr. YEN Gordon

Executive Director

Chief Financial Officer

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 43, joined the Group in 1999 as the Assistant to Chairman and was
promoted to an Executive Director in 2004, then assumed the additional
role of Chief Financial Officer on 6 July 2012. Dr. YEN will be re-designated
from an Executive Director to a Non-Executive Director, subject to the
shareholder’s approval for his re-election as a director at the annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 31 May 2013 and will resign from
his current daily operational duties on 31 May 2013, details of which were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 26 March 2013. Dr. YEN
has been responsible for managing the Group's finance and accounting
functions since 2009 and is currently also responsible for managing the
Group's various joint-venture operations including the fabric business in Sri
Lanka. Besides his responsibilities within the Group, Dr. YEN also serves as a
Member of the Henan Province Committee of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference of the People's Republic of China; Chairman of The
Hong Kong Association of Textile Bleachers, Dyers, Printers and Finishers;
an Executive Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles;
a Vice Chairman of Textile Council of Hong Kong; a Vice Director General
of China Knitting Industry Association; a Director of GS1 HK Limited; a
Director of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce; a member
of the Textile Advisory Board to the Trade & Industry Department and a Vice
President of Jiangsu Hong Kong-Invested Company Service Association. Dr.
YEN also serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director and a Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of Hopewell Holdings Limited. He holds a
Bachelor degree in Manufacturing Engineering from Boston University, USA;
a Master degree in Business Administration from McGill University, Canada
and a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. YEN has extensive
experience in the infrastructure sector. Dr. YEN is the son-in-law of Mr. HA
Chung Fong, the Honorary Chairman and senior consultant of the Company

and brother-in-law of Mr. HA Kam On, Victor.
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Mr. GONG Zhengyi

Executive Director

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 58, was appointed as an Executive Director and the member of the
Remuneration Committee on 6 June 2012. Mr. GONG is currently the General
Manager of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited (F 45 (B8) =R AR A
Fl), a subsidiary of Chinatex. Mr. GONG has almost 28 years of experience
in the textile industry. He joined the predecessor of Chinatex, the General
Corporation, in 1984 and served as General Manager of Chinatex Raw
Materials International Trading Corporation, a subsidiary of Chinatex. He also
held position as General Manager of Chinatex (Australia) Wool Company
Proprietary Limited (% #5 5% 8 X FI5E ¥ £ 24 &%), a subsidiary of Chinatex.
Mr. GONG graduated from Hebei University, China, Faculty of Chinese Studies
with a major in Chinese Literature in 1979. He obtained a Certificate of
Marketing and Management in Macquarie Graduate School of Management,
Australia in 1997. Mr. GONG also has obtained the qualification of Foreign

Trade Management Economist.

Mr. ZHAO Yao

Executive Director

Aged 49, was appointed as Executive Director on 27 November 2012. Mr.
ZHAO is currently the Assistant President of Chinatex and the General
Manager of Asset Management Department of Chinatex, Chairman and
General Manager of Chinatex Xinyuan Assets Management Co., Ltd*(FH#h
FREEEEBMRAT), General Manager of Chinatex Tianyuan Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (EB¥h A R TIREBR A F), General Manager
of Chinatex Real Estate Administration Co., Ltd.* (F4¥EEEERA
Al), Chairman of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited, Chairman of Huasheng
Fujitec Elevator Co., Ltd.* (EHELEB#HABRLQF), Chairman of
Shanghai Huasheng Fujitec Escalator Co., Ltd.*( LB E T EHBEER
‘A7), Chairman of Shanghai Huade Photoelectron Science & Technology
Co., Ltd.* (EBZEEXBRIFL B A T). Mr. ZHAO has almost 25 years of
experience in the textile industry. He joined Chinatex’s predecessor, China
National Textiles Import and Export Corporation* (F1E 4548 m#E H 0424
F]) in 1987 and held positions as Financial Manager of Wah Gar Knitwear
Factory Company Limited (BB Z = 3£ @), General Manager of Suzhou
Zhongfa Property Management Co., Ltd.* (&N 2% )35 R 2\ 7)), Deputy
General Manager of Chinatex Property Management Co., Ltd* (FF#F#)2
AT]), Vice President of Chudai Trading Co., Ltd* (BN AHNE+), a
subsidiary of Chinatex. Mr. ZHAO graduated with a diploma in industrial

accounting from Renmin University of China in 1987.

*  For identification purpose only
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Non-Executive Director

Mr. ZHANG Chong

Non-Executive Director

Member of Audit Committee

Aged 42, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director and the member of
the Audit Committee on 6 June 2012. Mr. ZHANG is currently the General
Manager of Strategy Department of Chinatex. Mr. ZHANG has over 17
years of experience in the textiles industry. He joined the predecessor
of Chinatex, the General Corporation in 1995 and held positions as the
Deputy General Manager of Strategy Department and General Manager of
Investment Department of Chinatex, Deputy General Manager of Enterprise
Management Department of Chinatex, officer of Policy Research Office and
assistant of Manager Office of General Corporation. Mr. ZHANG graduated
with a Master degree in Business Management from the Faculty of Business
Administration, University of International Business and Economics, China in

1995.

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Independent Non-Executive Director

Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 62, joined the Group’s Board in 1993 as an Independent Non-Executive
Director. Mr. NG is a practising accountant. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Universe International Holdings Limited and a Non-
Executive Director of Wah Ha Reality Company Limited, both of which are
listed companies in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree
and a Licentiate in Accountancy from McGill University, Canada and a
Diploma in Chinese Law from the University of East Asia, Macao. Mr. NG is a
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of
Chartered Accountants of British Columbia, Order of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Quebec, The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants,
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, The Society of Chinese Accountants

and Auditors and the Society of Registered Financial Planners.
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CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

Independent Non-Executive Director

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 62, joined the Group’s Board in 2004 as an Independent Non-Executive
Director. Mr. CHOW has been practicing as a solicitor in Hong Kong for the
past 33 years and is a partner in the law firm, Messrs. Peter C. Wong, Chow
& Chow. He is a Non-Executive Director of Kingmaker Footwear Holdings
Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. He also sits on the board of The Link
Management Limited which manages The Link Real Estate Investment Trust.
For the period from June 2005 to July 2011, Mr. CHOW was an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Until 31 October 2012, Mr. CHOW
was the Chairman of the Process Review Panel for the Securities and Futures
Commission, a member of Personal Data (Privacy) Advisory Committee and
a member of Appeal Board on Public Meetings and Processions. He is also a
Member of National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a Member of the Board of Stewards of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club.

Mr. YANG Shibin

Independent Non-Executive Director

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 43, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director,
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the member of the
Nomination Committee on 6 June 2012. Mr. YANG has over 21 years of
experience in the textiles industry. He is currently the Deputy Secretary-
General of China National Textile and Apparel Council and chairman of China
Knitting Industry Association (“CKIA”). Mr. YANG joined the CKIA in 2005.
Between 2002 and 2005, Mr. YANG held positions as the Deputy General
Manager, General Manager of Changshu Ecoya-Soy Fiber Company Limited*
(BRAT T X M4 5R2F) of Changshu. Between 1997 and 2002,
he served as the secretary-general of China Textile Industry Enterprise
Management Association and Deputy Consultant of State Bureau of Textile
Industry. Mr. YANG has been serving as an Independent Director of Shanghai
Dragon Corporation (LSRR M AR F), a company listed in the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, since 2007. Mr. YANG has been serving as an
Independent Director of Shenzhen Textile (Holdings) Co., Ltd., a company
listed in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since 2010. Mr. YANG has been
serving as a Director of Huafu Top Dyed Yarn Melange Co., Ltd., a company
listed in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since 2011. Mr. YANG graduated with
a Master degree in Engineering from the Faculty of Engineering, Donghua
University, China in 2004. He graduated with a Master degree of Executive
Master of Business Administration from China Europe International Business
School, China in 2009.

*  For identification purpose only
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The directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the period of 16 months ended 31

December 2012 (the “Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the textile and garment businesses including the
production and sale of knitted fabric, garments and the sale of dyed yarns
and sewing threads. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are

set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Period are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 58. No interim dividend was declared for the
periods ended 29 February 2012 and 31 August 2012. The Board do not

recommend the payment of final dividend.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the Period are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group's investment properties are set out in page 55.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the Period, the Group had additions of HK$99,396,000 to property,

plant and equipment which were mainly used to expand and upgrade the

Group's manufacturing facilities.

Details of the above and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and of the Company during the Period are set out

in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Period are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 December 2012 amounted to HK$616,584,000. (31 August 2011:
HK$628,518,000).

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Period and up to the date of this

annual report were as follows:
Executive Directors:

Madam LI Lan (Chairman) (appointed on 6 June 2012)
Mr. HA Chung Fong (resigned on 27 November 2012) (Note)
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor (Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. YEN Gordon (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. GONG Zhengyi (appointed on 6 June 2012)
Mr. ZHAO Yao (appointed on 27 November 2012)
Mr. HA Hon Kuen (resigned on 6 June 2012)
Mr. CHEN Rong (appointed on 6 June 2012
and resigned on 27 November 2012)

Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHANG Chong (appointed on 6 June 2012)
Mr. CHAN Yuk Yin (retired on 12 January 2012)
Mr. CHEN Minghong (appointed on 6 June 2012

and resigned on 27 November 2012)
Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SB8s, JP

Mr. YANG Shibin (appointed on 6 June 2012)

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi (resigned on 6 June 2012)

Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette (resigned on 6 June 2012)

Note: ~ Mr. HA Chung Fong resigned as Chairman and was appointed as the Honorary
Chairman of the Company on 6 June 2012. He has resigned as an Executive
Director and remains as the Honorary Chairman and senior consultant of the

Company with effect from 27 November 2012.
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Pursuant to Article 102(A) of the Company'’s articles of association, Mr. HA
Kam On, Victor, Dr. YEN Gordon, Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr. CHOW Wing
Kin, Anthony, SBs, JP will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM”).

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor had entered into a service agreement with the
Company on 1 April 2009 in relation to his appointment which term has
commenced on 1 April 2009. The service agreement is terminable by either
the Company or Mr. HA Kam On, Victor by giving not less than 12 month’s

advance notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2012, no director proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one

year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on

pages 40 to 44 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive and their respective associates in the shares of the Company
(the “Share”), underlying Shares and debenture of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”")), (a) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or (b) as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”),

were as follows:
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Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 90,841,096 - 90,841,096 7.55
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Dr. YEN Gordon 6,400,000 - 6,400,000 0.53
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RIBERGNFRIER  -BRE:

Long positions in underlying Shares — Share options:

Number of
Name of director Date of grant Exercise period share options
BEEnA REAH TR BREHA
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 17.09.2010 17.03.2014 - 17.03.2017 4,600,000
ERTEE (Note 1)
(Ktat)
18.08.2011 19.08.2012- 18.08.2017 3,300,000
(Note 2)
(HtaE2)
Dr. YEN Gordon 17.09.2010 17.03.2014- 17.03.2017 6,600,000
BE#ELT (Notes 1, 3 and 5)
(Bt&Er ~ 3K5)
18.08.2011 19.08.2012- 18.08.2017 6,300,000
(Notes 2 and 4)
(KaE2R4)

30% of the share options are exercisable from 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017,
up to 60% of the share options are exercisable from 17 March 2015 to 17 March
2017 and all share options are exercisable from 17 March 2016 to 17 March 2017.

20% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2012 to 18 August
2017, up to 40% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2013 to
18 August 2017, up to 60% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August
2014 to 18 August 2017, up to 80% of the share options are exercisable from 19
August 2015 to 18 August 2017 and all share options are exercisable from 19
August 2016 to 18 August 2017.

Dr. YEN Gordon, being the spouse of Ms. HA Kam Yee, was also deemed to
be interested in 2,000,000 share options granted to Ms. HA Kam Yee by the
Company on 17 September 2010.

Dr. YEN Gordon, being the spouse of Ms. HA Kam Yee, was also deemed to
be interested in 3,000,000 share options granted to Ms. HA Kam Yee by the
Company on 18 August 2011.

4,600,000 share options, which were granted to Dr. YEN Gordon by the Company
on 17 September 2010 under the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 25 January 2002, will be lapsed on 31 May 2013 as a result of his
re-designation as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 26 March
2013.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the chief executive nor their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in any Shares,
underlying Shares and debenture of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), (a) which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
The Company has adopted share option scheme on 25 January 2002 (the

“2002 Scheme”) and 20 January 2011 (the “2011 Scheme”). Particulars and
movements of the Company’s share option schemes including the 2002
Scheme and the 2011 Scheme during the Period, are set out in note 33 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2012, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors or chief
executive, the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant

interests in the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares:
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R EREIRGIEXVERFT B T2 A %&) 2 R4 - HEIR
NREEZFEARBEAATD@EREZRBEMK
PIEE352ARARE 2 BMATRC % b)RFEET A
ABAARNERBR T2 EEHRE

BRELE

R B 2002518258 R 2011518208 5 43 i I
FEETEI( 2 B A 20025 5t &I R 201FF 8 ) - B
BARATERE S E5E2002F 5 B K201 F 5
BloHBRAABE 228 ARGFEEVBERRK
FizE33e

FERRRHEAMWRREDS

20125128310 READFTEEHERBERM
EBRIRENEEZERREMBET BR L E 4
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REORAEBERDHFRBER:

Approximate
% of the
Company’s issued

share capital

Name of substantial shareholder Number of Shares Capacity KA AT B 8IT
FTERRER RHEE 514 RABILE
Chinatex Yieldfull Investment Co., Ltd. 409,036,000 Beneficial owner 34.00
(“Yieldfull") (Note 1) BEREAA
(Krat1)
Chinatex Jinhui Investment 409,036,000 Interest of corporation controlled 34.00
Management Co., Ltd. (NoteT) ZEHEENER

("Jinhui”) (Hfa£1)
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Approximate
% of the
Company'’s issued

share capital

Name of substantial shareholder Number of Shares Capacity HIEAEAT B BT
FTERRER RHEE 13 REBDEE
Chinatex Corporation 409,036,000 Interest of corporation controlled 34.00
PR EE QT (Note 1) EHEENER
(Btan)
Mr. HA Chung Fong 34,830,000 Beneficial owner 13.88
BEMFRE BRmEAA
132,108,948 Other interests
(Notes 2 and 4) Hib R
(BtaE2k4)
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui 166,938,948 Spouse interest 13.88
BEmzZ (Note 2) [ S
(Htzt2)
Super Brilliance Company Limited 132,108,948 Beneficial owner 10.98
(“Super Brilliance”) (Notes 3 and 4) EREEBA
(BtzE354)
Island Treasure Investments Limited 132,108,948 Interest of corporation controlled 10.98
(“Island Treasure”) (Notes 3 and 4) EHEERRE S
(WtEE3K4)
Onwide (H.K.) Limited (“Onwide”) 132,108,948 Trustee 10.98
ZM (B8) BRAT ([&=HM]) (Notes 3 and 4) FFEA
(Bt E354)
Mr. WONG Tak Leung, Charles 132,108,948 Interest of corporation controlled 10.98
FERESE (Notes 3 and 4) ZHEENER

(HtzE3%4)
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Notes:

1. Yieldfull is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jinhui and Jinhui is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chinatex. Therefore, each of Jinhui and Chinatex is deemed to be

interested in the Shares held by Yieldfull.

2. Ms. TANG Kuen Mui, spouse of Mr. HA Chung Fong, was deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Mr. HA Chung Fong.

3. Super Brilliance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Island Treasure, Island Treasure
is a wholly-owned subsidiary by Onwide and Onwide is owned as to 100% by
Mr. WONG Tak Leung, Charles. Therefore, each of Island Treasure, Onwide and
Mr. WONG Tak Leung, Charles is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by

Super Brilliance.

4. Onwide became the trustee of the HA Trust, a discretionary trust set up by Mr.
HA Chung Fong for the benefit of his family with effect from 13 August 2012.

Trustcorp ceased to be the trustee of the HA Trust on the same date.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2012.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Period was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in
this annual report and note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Period or at any time during the

Period.

ByaE:

1. YieldfullBJinhuiz 2 & & A 7> Mlinhui& 4
ZEEWBLT - Bt Jinhuilk P& B HIRIEE
BYieldfull FriE IR 2 2 o

2. BBRRZTAEMRFTEEZEE EMREEESR
ERFEREMSRO 2 ER -

3. Super Brilliance&lsland TreasureZ 2 & KB A7)
Island TreasureR R Mz 2 EMB AT ZMBAEE
REEFH100%E o Bt Island Treasure» 2
REBREERBERREEESuper BrilliancefT#
BRAD 2 R 2k o

4. RAP2012F F8ABHEMK Hthe HA TrustZ {5 5E
A the HA Trust R EMATS BE R ERKEF &M AR
B —IEE B 1S 5E © R BTrustcorp ™ Athe HA
TrustZfS7EA°

B bt i BB & SN 20125128318 A AT I &
WREMEMAEEAATCRTRANEEES
RABBEA

BERODIEZZH

Br L T|E SN RATREEAME QR EAH
BRI EEMZSE FESTEBES
DAFEMEMB AR 2RO RESMELE -

EXSHACEESHRS

BRAFHRBERS | —BRRGEE M BRERM T2
—BRAREEN RABBRERRELABEE
AR AATREEMBE AR WL ET LEMEE
EREEDSBEERBEZEEEN-
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements other than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Chapter 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The
information in relation to the continuing connected transactions entered
into during the Period are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements.

As the Company has not set any maximum aggregate annual value (“cap”) in
respect of the continuing connected transaction as disclosed in item (b)(vii)
of note 42 to the consolidated financial statement, the Company’s auditor
cannot determine whether the aggregate amount of such continuing
connected transaction has exceeded any cap. Detail of such continuing
connected transaction is set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 24 December 2012. Except for the above, the Company’s auditor have
confirmed that all of the continuing connected transactions set out under
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements (a) have been approved
by the Board; (b) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group,
where applicable; (c) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of
the agreements governing the transactions; and (d) have not exceeded the
respective cap amounts as set out above in respect of each of the continuing
connected transactions as adjusted according to the change of the financial

year end of the Company from 31 August to 31 December.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have also reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the above continuing

connected transactions have been entered into by the Group:
(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the

Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

BEXS

AR EMECEZEREESBSSHMASESR
HIKE B 1% 75 TIE2E ) 55300055 %1 B F B IS & R}
ETERREH U E I1’EJ&/,\Eﬁ§§%EE
FE740F AR B LEWRAD IS ERERS
MR B R SR EAEBZIFEBER S K
MR LR E14AER G EFEE
BB AEERGRE T HBRERMTR2MEEZ
SEEERS 2B ARE R AATE B E A
BRI AR 2R R T RAMRET L 25 ERE
REZERCHNFE M B RERM T20

AR RD R I B4R S B FR 3R M 214258 (b) (vii) 1
ZEREBEXSGHIEAMNRSEELAT LR -
AT EAN KA ?mﬁ@ﬁ@%EQ%Z%%
EEBHEMER - EEBEBERZZFHEH
RAATEHEH20125128248 2 A E R B Ll
HHN RNATRZBENC R &R Awﬁﬁ%m?@
FE8zERERERZQEEESSHE (
REAEEZ EERREE(WNE ﬁ))ﬁ%%
EZERGZHBRRGTL  ROSIRBAAT
U REEFERRSANENAIANERARER
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() RAEEEHERESEBBEPIIL,

(iy B—REERFITERETEBREFEL
E=ARBIUFE=FRUETFARER ZEKET
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(i) REEEZEXZIZHEERET L MEZE
Ti;’: ZERBATESE WHFAARATREN
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered that all Independent
Non-Executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms

of the guidelines.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key management) of
the Group was established by the management of the Group on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence. Remuneration Committee will
review and approve remuneration policy for the Directors of the Board for

approval.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the Directors of the
Board for approval, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. No Director, or any

of his associates, and executive, is involved in dealing his own remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements and under heading “Share Option

Schemes”in this annual report.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Period and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business competes or is likely to compete, either directly

or indirectly with the business of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Period, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five

largest customers was less than 30% of the total revenue for the Period.

BE -HERBEAQFZ LTRSS

RAMER A2 REEFAMBARLERBE
HERBRIARQNT 2 EHES-
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Fr#E v ssl WRBEARESIEEL.

M BUR
AEAEBRESRETBTERAL) 2HMEE
MALEEREHNE URSE2RA EERTHE
HHBERE WHFHEERER LAESEE
HERHEEREL

FRREBCMESBARNF 2EEXE ERIF
BREBmESRAHTMES YHFMEES
ERRERHESEER -BEESIHEME
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During the Period, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five

largest suppliers was less than 30% of the total purchases for the Period.

At no time during the Period did a Director, an associate of a Director or
a shareholder of the Company have an interest in any of the Group’s five

largest customers or suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the Period, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling

HK$1,240,000 (2011: HK$627,000)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set

out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 27 to 39.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares throughout the

period of 16 months ended 31 December 2012.

AUDITOR

On 5 November 2012, the Board announced that Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
resigned as auditor of the Company with effect from 5 November 2012. The
Board has resolved to appoint BDO Limited as new auditor of the Company
to fill the casual vacancy occasioned by the resignation of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu and to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to the

forthcoming AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ll Lan

Chairman

Hong Kong
26 March 2013
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Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31 December 2012 are as follows:

FA2012F128318 » KEBREVENHEBOT

The Group's

Location Lease Use effective interest
it Bh HEFH A& TEBEMER
Unit A2 on 5/F., & unit Medium-term leases Warehouse and office 100%

A1 on 7/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building,
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong

BB R 2B B 1829-395%
WEIXKRE

SBARER7BAE

hHEE

ERRBRAE
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TO THE MEMBERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 58 to 176, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the 16 months period
from 1 September 2011 to 31 December 2012, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2012 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the 16 months
period from 1 September 2011 to 31 December 2012 in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared

in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number P04659

Hong Kong, 26 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT ZSUWigmazk
For the 16 months period ended 31 December 2012 # £ 2012812 H31H 1k 16{& B HifE
For the For the
16 months 12 months
ended ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
BZE20125F BZE2011F
12A31H 8H31H
k1618 A E1218 A
NOTES HK$’000 HKS'000
Kt FET FET
Revenue BEH 6 9,167,089 7,593,889
Cost of sales SHEMA (8,379,813) (6,429,052)
Gross profit EF 787,276 1,164,837
Other income Htnr A 117,980 54,967
Distribution and selling expenses DEREEER (294,682) (189,496)
Administrative expenses THEH (895,285) (613,459)
Other expenses HihEH (4,313) (22,281)
Finance costs [N 2% 7 (87,288) (71,589)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2B FE 40 42,855 20,212
(Loss)/profit before taxation BELA (BR), BF (333,457) 343,191
Income tax expense iR 8 (4,304) (103,473)
(Loss)/profit for the period/year 2 F£E (58 BA 9 (337,761) 239,718
(Loss)/profit for the period/year attributable to: BB FE (BiE) BF
Owners of the Company RARHEEA (324,167) 210,886
Non-controlling interests R (13,594) 28,832
(337,761) 239,718
HK cents3& 1l HK centsi& il
(Loss)/earnings per share R (5B BR
Basic and diluted BEXREE 12 (33.5) 26.6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME /=& ZEUWEmIR

For the 16 months period ended 31 December 2012 #Z20125F 12 H31H 1L 1618 A B

For the For the
16 months 12 months
ended ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
BZE20125F BZE201F
12A31H 8A31H
k1618 A 1E1218 B
NOTES HK$’000 HKS'000
bta FETT FET
(Loss)/profit for the period/year 2B EE (558) &R 9 (337,761) 239,718
Other comprehensive (expense)/income: Hih2m (Fk) i
Exchange differences arising on translation of BRESHIEBEEZ
foreign operations EHER 2,159 7,835
Reclassification adjustment of translation reserve HEM B A B E A
upon disposal of subsidiaries ZEH D ERE 40 (13,537) (5,166)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income 2HE FEAMER
for the period/year (BAxR) Wz (11,378) 2,669
Total comprehensive (expense)/income =8B FE2E X)),/
for the period/year K iEE (349,139) 242,387
Total comprehensive (expense)/income EERBE FE2E (IR,
for the period/year attributable to: WiRaE
Owners of the Company RAREEA (336,707) 209,246
Non-controlling interests IEERER (12,432) 33,141

(349,139) 242,387
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION RS HfF&dRRER

As at 31 December 2012 74201212 831H

At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
20124 20115
12A31H 8H31H
NOTES HK$’000 HKS'000
i3 FET FET
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties BREYHE 14 2,548 -
Property, plant and equipment W - HEERERE 15 1,827,010 2,155,311
Prepaid lease payments — non-current portion FENHEERE-FEREBEH 16 110,273 119,207
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, IBEYIE SRR E
plant and equipment AL NE 18,371 -
Investment in life insurance policies AERBREZKRE 19 36,742 -
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEE 18 28,517 25,689
2,023,461 2,300,207
Current assets REBEE
Inventories (A 20 1,340,553 1,683,454
Trade and bills receivables EER BRI IE 21 1,259,918 1,275,741
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENRE - EER
,H\{tﬁﬁﬁuit | 22 166,404 214,193
Prepaid lease payments — current portion FENHERE - REI D 16 2,607 2,732
Derivative financial instruments TES FéﬁIE: 23 2,044 4,984
Tax recoverable AT = B IE 7,065 3,039
Short-term bank deposits SEEARIT IR 24 302,577 106,075
Bank balances and cash ROTEERRS 24 915,466 1,018,477
3,996,634 4,308,695
Current liabilities REAEE
Trade and bills payables EEREIBENRIE 25 783,712 698,433
Other payables and accruals HinENFUE R BT E R 26 342,160 320,661
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders R IR IR R FRIE 27 80,100 80,100
Consideration payable EARE 28 - 23,501
Deferred income — current portion EEWRA — R ENER 7 29 1,458 1,458
Derivative financial instruments TEERTA 23 15,037 108
Tax payable FEIBiE 67,261 131,311
Bank and other borrowings — due within one year BTREMEE-——FREE 3 1,234,735 1,443,532
Bank overdrafts RITEX 31 7,751 -
2,532,214 2,699,104
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,464,420 1,609,591
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBAE 3,487,881 3,909,798
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #Z&HAF&ARRR

As at 31 December 2012 722012512 831H

At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
R2012% 201145
12H31H 8A31H
NOTES HK$’000 HKS$'000
e FET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred income — non-current portion EFEU A —IERENEB 1D 29 65,134 67,080
Derivative financial instruments THEEmMIA 23 - 45,583
Bank and other borrowings — due after one year RITREMBE-
—FRIH 31 240,587 755,854
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBIREE 18 2,380 3,055
308,101 871,572
Net assets BEEFE 3,179,780 3,038,226
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &N 32 240,609 158,802
Reserves (E 2,769,113 2,679,224
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RABEE AEGER 3,009,722 2,838,026
Non-controlling interests EERAER 170,058 200,200
Total equity ERBE 3,179,780 3,038,226
The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 176 were approved $58F176E A2 HRED H2013FE3826H
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2013 and are HEEZSEBRERN YHTHNESREE
signed on its behalf by: E=l
Ll Lan HA Kam On
] BE#RZ
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE EFE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BAFEARRIR
As at 31 December 2012 742012812 H31H
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
20124 20114
12A31H 8H31H
NOTES HK$’000 HKS’000
HraE FET FET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WIS R ERE 15 7,445 5,441
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, IBEYHE WEEREE
plant and equipment ZEeffiEs 18,371 -
Investment in life insurance policies ASRBREZRE 19 36,742 -
Investments in subsidiaries MBARRE 17 32,216 32,539
94,774 37,980
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FENFIE - BEREM
FEWERIA 22 9,497 6,666
Amounts due from subsidiaries /8 A B Fr R 7B 17 3,216,698 3,457,621
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMI A 23 1,901 -
Tax recoverable AT UK =] F e 371 314
Short-term bank deposits EHEIRITIF R 24 81,591 -
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 24 234,668 85,585
3,544,726 3,550,186
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HittENFIERETER 26 25,046 18,742
Amounts due to subsidiaries R A BFRIR 17 1,462,462 1,031,238
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIEA 23 15,037 -
Tax payable EHIR 41,000 41,000
Bank and other borrowings - due within one year RITREMBEE
——FREIH 31 362,910 761,916
1,906,455 1,852,896
Net current assets REEEFE 1,638,271 1,697,290
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAEBERRBERS 1,733,045 1,735,270
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AN
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Ef#SARRER
As at 31 December 2012 /22012612 A31H
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
20125 201145
12A31H 8H31H
NOTES HKS’000 HKS$’000
et FET FET
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Derivative financial instruments TTESMIA 23 — 45,583
Bank and other borrowings — due after one year RITREAMEE -
—F&3H 31 240,587 701,638
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEAE 240,587 747,221
Net assets BEERE 1,492,458 988,049
Capital and reserves EXRFEE
Share capital (&N 32 240,609 158,802
Reserves e 34 1,251,849 829,247
Total equity ERBE 1,492,458 988,049
Ll Lan HA Kam On
| =k F=y
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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mEENR

Attributable to owners of the Company
RARHE AR
Capital Share Non-
Share Share redemption  Translation options  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves profits Total  interests equity
Ex FER
kx  ROEE EERE ENEE BRERE iERE  RREX aE BE BESE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
FEr FiEr FEr iz FEr FiEr FEr TEr FiEr FiEr
(note )
(ita)
At 1 September 2010 01089518 158,802 197,124 210 (35,138) - 4193 2270134 2633325 179770 2,813,095
Echange differences arisingon ~~ RERHEREE
translation of foreign operations ~ ZE B ZH - - - 3526 - - - 3526 4309 7835
Redlassification adjustment of HEWBAARER
translation reserve upon fEzEN I ERE
disposal of subsiiaries (note 40) ~ (#740) - - - (5,166) - - - (5,166) - (5,166
Profitfor the year REERA - - - - - - 200886 210886 882 29718
Total comprehensive (expense)/ ~ REE2E (B%)/
income for the year WEaE - - - (1,640) - - 088 209246 BT 242387
Equity-settled share-based NEREE IR
payments BEBZAR - - - - 3395 - - 3395 - 339
Dividend recognized as distribution CBR2EKZRE - - - - - - (7940) (7940) - (7940)
Capital contribution from a 3FFH§H§§‘Z§‘E§
non-controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - 4 4
Dividends paid tonon-controllng ~ Eft K8 FHERRR
shareholders - - - - - - - - (11,900 (11,900)
Appropriation toanon-controlling  BUEEMME L A
shareholder upon deregistration K FEERRR
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - (815) (815)
At 31 August 2011 R011%8A31A 158,802 197,124 210 (36,778) 3395 42193 2473080 2838026 200200 3,038226
Exchange differences arisingon ~~ BEBHNEREE
translation of foreign operations ~ ZE R ZH - - - 997 - - - 997 1162 2159
Reclassification adjustment of HERBLARRER
translation reserve upon RECENIRRE
disposal of subsiiaries (note 40)  (#740) - - - (13537) - - - (13537) - (13537)
Loss for the period 2HEEE - - - - - - (34167 (34167 (13594 (337.761)
Total comprehensive expense RHHLERIAE
for the period - - - (12,540) - - (324,167) (336,707) (12432) (349,139)
Equity-settled share-based HEREENRH
payments BEB IR - - - - 10,268 - - 10,268 - 10268
Dividend recognized as distribution EHERAEZRE - - - - - - (7.940) (7.940) - (7940)
Trangfers Bl - - - - - 1,109 (1,109) - - -
Dividends paid tonon-controllng Bt 8 FHERRR
shareholders - - - - - - - - (17,710) (17.710)
Issue of shares (note b) RIRAG (W) 81807 429488 - - - - - 1% - 511295
Share issuance expense RRAER - (5.220) - - - - - (5,220) - (5.220)
At 31 December 2012 R012E128318 240,609 621,392 210 (49,318) 13,663 43300 2139864 3009722 170,058 3,179,780
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY RS ESEEIR

For the 16 months period ended 31 December 2012 #Z20125F 12 H31H 1L 1618 A B

Note a:

Note b:

The statutory reserves represent the appropriation of certain percentages of
profit after taxation of certain subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") as recommended by the directors of those subsidiaries as reported
under the PRC statutory financial statements. According to the provision of
the articles of association of the subsidiaries, the statutory reserves shall only
be used for making up losses, capitalization into share capital, expansion of
the relevant subsidiary’s operation and for the welfare of the subsidiary’s staff

and workers.

On 6 June 2012, the Company allotted and issued a total of 409,036,000
shares of HK$0.2 each at the price of HK$1.25 per share to Chinatex Yieldfull
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yieldfull”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Chinatex Corporation (“Chinatex”), a
state-owned enterprise under the direct supervision and administration
of, and is beneficially owned by, the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC. Immediately after
the issue of shares, there were 1,203,046,960 shares in issue and Chinatex
effectively held approximately 34% of the issued share capital of the Company

and became the single largest shareholder of the Company.

Kista -

Kiatb -

FEERMBEETERPEARAMNE (HED W
MEBLARMNESERTEEIENBRRNERE
REBHZENBRARE THROHRRBAFIE
BHEHE - RIENE L RAMSRA AR
FERBRBEVARBREER BERAE EX
HENBLARANEBRNBATGEIRITAN
‘A -

R20125F6H6F AR A EBRI25EBTZE
% B 3% 2 3% 17 & $£409,036,0008% 5 A% [ {E0.278
7T 2 B2 F Chinatex Yieldfull Investment Co., Ltd.
(MYieldfull I) » —RREBELFHSEMR L
2O AREFRHEEAR () 2EH
B mPHN—RHTEESREEEEEES
ERZERHEEEREEUREEREZE
Bi¥ BERTROE XQAABERTR
£31,203,046,9608% * M A B BERIEE A QA S
BITRALZ4% IRBEARRZE-HBRR
o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #Z8IREREIR
For the 16 months period ended 31 December 2012 # £ 2012812 H31H 1k 16{& B HifE
For the For the
16 months 12 months
ended ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
HZE20126F BZE201EF
12A31H 8H31H
k1618 A 1218 A
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES &EIEE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrBiAT (8518) BF| (333,457) 343,191
Adjustments for: FEE
Government grants BT AL (47,907) -
Amortization of deferred income IEFE IR A Y32 8 (1,946) (1,458)
Depreciation of investment properties REMEZITE 59 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Wi WERREZITE 343,883 256,808
Equity-settled share-based payments UREREEURDAER
PANEN 10,268 3,395
Finance costs B MA 87,288 71,589
Interest income FIEWA (15,221) (9,779)
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, HE THEWE - HER
plant and equipment HiBZEE 2,955 5,169
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZABKRRTEE (42,855) (20,212)
Impairment loss recognized/(reversed) EEEKRIEZ
on trade receivables, net BB AR (BE) FE 12,690 (8,245)
Release of prepaid lease payments FEHEEREEY 3,478 2,791
Operating cash flows before movements REESBEANEE
in working capital BERE 19,235 643,249
Decrease in inventories FENRD 344,255 261,532
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables EENEBRKFIR
9 (#B4n) E A (4,740) 100,961
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits FENFIE - RERHEMER
and other receivables HIB 2R, (i) 59,366 (14,516)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables EEREBENRIE
Mg, CR) 76,564 (199,779)
Increase in other payables and accruals HitnE T E R BT E A
#9380 24,203 2,943
Decrease in restructuring provisions BHEBERD - (730)
Net cash generated from operations EEMSNESFE 518,883 793,660
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded (B) /BEEBRER (60,440) 21,689
Overseas tax paid 28I HIE (15,443) (5,196)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEBENREFE 443,000 810,153
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #Z8IREmE3R
For the 16 months period ended 31 December 2012 #Z20125F 12 H31H 1L 1618 A B
For the For the
16 months 12 months
ended ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
B ZE2012%F BZE20115F
12A31H 8H31H
1-16fE B 1E121@ A
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REIER
Consideration received for sale of assets classified HESBABELHEZ
as held for sale BEEZMBRNAE - 192,550
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEM B A B TSR 40 117,371 46,600
Interest received BWFE 13,691 3,270
Proceeds from disposal of property, H:IE%¥ HER R R
plant and equipment PSR 4,702 2,412
Purchase of property, plant and equipment E%EW% %un )32 ] 15 (99,396) (110,334)
Payment for prepaid lease payments TAFRAHEER (3,600) -
Upfront payments under life insurance policies A%ﬁl@ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ 19 (36,178) -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEYXE  BBRRME
plant and equipment PAREE < (18,371) -
Net movement in derivative financial instruments TTESRTENEEFE (27,714) (11,941)
Government grants received 2RI AT #E B 47,907 -
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM INVESTING ®REER (FTA) 8K
ACTIVITIES ReFE (1,588) 122,557
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A& IEE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERBITREMEE (4,517,524) (3,904,647)
Interest paid EfFE (81,886) (62,496)
Payments for consideration payable N EARE 28 (23,501) (35,630)
Payment for share issuance expenses SZRHBTROMAX (5,220) -
Payments as compensation and for acquisition SRERKENBAE
of additional interest in a subsidiary FEMER - (13,721)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders ERETFHFERKRRE (17,710) (11,900)
Dividends paid 2RE (7,940) (7,940)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRM PTERIE 511,295 -
Appropriation to a non-controlling shareholder BUHTIMME 2 jﬂ-r
upon deregistration of a subsidiary DIKTF IR TR - (815)
New bank and other borrowings raised FEECRITREMEE 3,785,749 3,556,825
Capital contribution from a non-controlling shareholder  FE#ERR RIS E - 4
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEBFANRSFE (356,737) (480,320)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B &Kk ZRER$1E B M1 hnEE 84,675 452,390
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF REHR, FEMKENRESR
THE PERIOD/YEAR Z£RELEE 1,124,552 666,990
EFFECT ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXZEeHREeRERRE
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES HENWTE 1,065 5,172
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END REHHE, EEAERNESR
OF THE PERIOD/YEAR ZRELEE 1,210,292 1,124,552
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASHAND CASH RE&RZFREEEH
EQUIVALENTS: D
Short-term bank deposits SEERERITIF R 302,577 106,075
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 915,466 1,018,477
Bank overdrafts RITHEX (7,751) -
1,210,292 1,124,552
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 BA7&RaRMIEE

31 December 2012 20128128318

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to the

annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar

("HKS$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17.

The directors consider its immediate parent is Yieldfull and ultimate parent
is Chinatex, a state-owned enterprise under the direct supervision and
administration of, and is beneficially owned by, the State-owned Assets

Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

Since 6 June 2012, Chinatex has held approximately 34% of the issued share
capital of the Company. In view of the fact that the principal operating
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are statutorily required
to have their financial year end date set at 31 December, pursuant to a
resolution of the board of directors dated 10 August 2012, the financial year
of the Company (together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the
“Group”) has been changed from 31 August to 31 December. Accordingly,
these consolidated financial statements now presented cover a period of
16 months from 1 September 2011 to 31 December 2012. The comparative
figures presented for the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes cover a

period of 12-month, and therefore they are not entirely comparable.

1. &N
AATDBEEBIMRINARERATMER
BREBBERS AR (HRH) L o
RATMEMP SRR T B
BADERAWE

REMBBRRDUBRLZS  BAFAEARRMN

=}
hREE S -

)

ARG —HREZERAF -HEERBLAMN
EEXBRINAMFEI7A -

BERE  HEES QAT AYieldfull » MERKRH
DEAYY  —FRETEEEREEEEERE
BELESEEEEREEURESZRECEE D
%O

Rz

P

B2012F6 6L  FHEBERATCHITR
THI34% c ARA DR ERERL 2 EEE EM
BARWEEMBREEAEAYR12A31A R
EAHEB2012F3A10HZEETERER ADQ
RA(EREMBAR  BAIAEE]) ZHHF
EEMmsA3TAERA12A310 - Rt - REFFT2
N ZERAMBERRAEA201MFIOAARE
202F 12831 168 A - MAREWER ~ &S
2EHKBER  FEEZEDR KEESRER
23zt BT UREBEMERE 1288
HUtREEZEELE o
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31 December 2012 2012512H831H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(@) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs - first effective on 1 January
2012
Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyper Inflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax - Recovery of Underlying Assets

Except as explained below, the adoption of these amendments has no

material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosure requirements for transfer
transactions of financial assets, in particular where the reporting entity has
continuing involvement in financial assets that it has derecognized. The
newly required disclosures allow users of financial statements to better
understand the risks to which the reporting entity remains exposed. And
such information is relevant in assessing the amount, timing and uncertainty

of the entity’s future cash flows.

The Group has discounted certain of its trade debts with recourse (note
21). As the Group retained the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the discounted trade debts, the transfer transactions did not meet the
requirements of HKAS 39 for de-recognition. The trade debts remained as
the Group’s financial assets with the cash received being recognized as asset-
backed borrowings (note 31). The financial statements for the current period
include additional disclosures describing the nature of the relationship
between the discounted trade debts and the associated financial liabilities,
including restrictions on the Group’s use of the debts arising from the
discounting arrangements. In accordance with the transition requirements
of the amendments, the disclosures for the comparative period have not

been amended.

2. KB BUBREER (EEH
B EER])

(@) HRABEBHMBIREEL ZIEFTER—KR2012
F1IA1HERER

ERMBREENE R BESERMIRKRER

ZIERT A RAENEER B
BRMBHRELNES RE-SRHEECER
ZIERI A
BBEERE 2R EFER - Y = A8
FACTIES aE

BRT XXMM E S RAZEET YA EE A
BHRRIBEALE -

EBUBEREGERE7HZIEFT K —HF—
EHMEEZHE
ERNBREENENNETABEATEES
MEEEBISNKERT  LHEEHHRER
BESHCIERANEREE - IRERER
HUBRREAEEF T HEERRERNE
HHER - BEENDRIGEERRRESRE
MEHE - RRERTEEMRARR -

&

FEECHBEETAEERBCEXRER (T
2N HRAEERBTRBEEXERERTEN
EXREBEEHR BREXZATNFEEBEE
BISE30 AR T BRANRE - EXERKNBER
FEENESHMEE  FFUBZRENERD/EE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs - first effective on 1 January
2012 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 - Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 introduce a rebuttable presumption that an
investment property which is stated at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property” is recovered entirely through sale. The measurement of the
deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset reflects the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amount of the investment property entirely through
sale. This presumption is rebutted if the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If this presumption is rebutted,
the amount of deferred tax is measured based on the expected manner in
which the carrying amount of the investment property would be recovered,
using the appropriate tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the

reporting date.

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s

financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have

not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
(Revised)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Comprehensive Income'

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities?

2. RMERUMBREEN (EEY
B|EED D (B
(a) HRENE BB WS AR 2 5 5T R - R2012
F1A1E EREN ()
BEBRAE120H 2 65X BEH T~
Y B 16
ERGEAE RS TS ARE G ER
BAKTREME UL T REFIBNREWET
BB E S MU E R B o BERIE R EN
BEERBEENG R BERBEHEZRE
MEREERRBEORBYE - HREWETE
REBER 0 E QI3 EB & TR B RA
HERZNEFRTEWEABD EHERE > QA
BERRE - MAKERRS BRI X5
BNEEPASE (HPRENENRABTY
E) BEARERE A BERRABERNEEHR

)__%T_ia

(b) BEMEERERZHT CETEBY

| ERER
THMREAEEMERRBE 2] EIERT
ERMBRMEENLSEM  EHRERFRE
REBEIRERRM -

BBKREER 2000 Z2011 B
CHEN FEHE
BHETERE S Hi2ERBEEENZS)

BRI (BERT)
BB ER 25N
BRI R
BEBRBREERER
PACHEN

HETHEEREREE
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

2. RMERMBREERN (EEM
B|EEA D ()
(b) B SEMFE M K i 2 35T AT B B B

effective (continued) & ER ()
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BB EREERESR $RT A
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements? BEBBREENEIR FEMERE
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? EBUBREENENE  HARHE
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities> EBMBEREENF R REAHEENESEER
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement? BEBIBREENE S AFEEHE
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements? EBGHERSENE2011) BUBMBHRK
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint EBETEAERE2011) RELEQATIREENTZ
Ventures? rE&
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits> BB ENS %R0 EERAP
HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of 58 (ERTBHRE EXBLEERRN
a Surface Mine? RBZEY)-REF0R AR
Amendments to HKFRS 1 Government Loans? EBUBREENE IR BRER
PALHES
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities? ERUBREENE IR REBE

HKFRS 12 and HKAS27
(2011)

EBNBREENE2ER

BB ENS IR
EETAR(2011)

R202F7R1BRZ2EHB 2 FEHBEENK

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 !

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 2 R03F 1A BRZEMB 2 FERBEN
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 3 R2014F1A1ERZ BB FEHBEER

R2015F 1A 1R ZEHB 2 FEHEENR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 4
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) - Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle

The improvements made amendments to the following standards:

(i)  HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments clarify that the requirement to present a third statement
of financial position when an entity applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification of
items in its financial statements is limited to circumstances where there is
a material effect on the information in that statement of financial position.
The date of the opening statement of financial position is the beginning of
the preceding period and not, as at present, the beginning of the earliest
comparative period. The amendments also clarify that, except for disclosures
required by HKAS 1.41-44 and HKAS 8, the related notes to the third
statement of financial position are not required to be presented. An entity
may present additional voluntary comparative information as long as that
information is prepared in accordance with HKFRS. This may include one or
more statements and not a complete set of financial statements. Related

notes are required for each additional statement presented.

(i)  HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

The amendments clarify that items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment
and servicing equipment are recognized as property, plant and equipment
when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise,

such items are classified as inventory.

(iii) HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

The amendments clarify that income tax relating to distributions to holders
of an equity instrument and to transaction costs of an equity transaction
should be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.
Depending on the circumstances these items of income tax might be

recognized in equity, other comprehensive income or in profit or loss.

2. BRBERMBBREER(FEY
HREERA D (F)
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) - Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle (continued)

(iv) HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendments clarifies that in interim financial statements, a measure
of total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable segment need to be
disclosed when the amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating
decision maker and there has been a material change in the total assets
and liabilities for that segment from the amount disclosed in the last annual

financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) - Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require the Group to separate
items presented in other comprehensive income into those that may be
reclassified to profit and loss in the future (e.g. revaluations of available-for-
sale financial assets) and those that may not (e.g. revaluations of property,
plant and equipment). Tax on items of other comprehensive income is
allocated and disclosed on the same basis. The amendments will be applied

retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by adding appliance
guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies when an entity “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is

considered equivalent to net settlement.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for all recognized financial
instruments that are set off under HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement, irrespective

of whether they are set off under HKAS 32.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) - Investment

Entities

The amendments apply to a particular class of businesses that qualify as
investment entities. An investment entity’s business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income or
both. It evaluates the performance of its investments on a fair value basis.
Investment entities could include private equity organizations, venture

capital organizations, pension funds and investment funds.

The amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirements in
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and require investment entities
to measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss rather
than to consolidate them. The amendments also set out the disclosure
requirements for investment entities. The amendments are applied

retrospectively subject to certain transitional provisions.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial assets measured
at fair value or at amortized cost depending on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains or losses will be
recognized in profit or loss except for those non-trade equity investments,
which the entity will have a choice to recognize the gains and losses in
other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair value attributable
to change in credit risk of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of

financial assets and financial liabilities.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for consolidation of all investee
entities. An investor has control when it has power over the investee
(whether or not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights to
variable returns from the investee and the ability to use the power over
the investee to affect those returns. HKFRS 10 contains extensive guidance
on the assessment of control. For example, the standard introduces the
concept of “de facto” control where an investor can control an investee while
holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights in circumstances where
its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant size relative to the size and
dispersion of those of other individual shareholders to give it power over the
investee. Potential voting rights are considered in the analysis of control only
when these are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to exercise
them. The standard explicitly requires an assessment of whether an investor
with decision making rights is acting as principal or agent and also whether
other parties with decision making rights are acting as agents of the investor.
An agent is engaged to act on behalf of and for the benefit of another party
and therefore does not control the investee when it exercises its decision
making authority. The implantation of HKFRS 10 may result in changes in
those entities which are regarded as being controlled by the Group and
are therefore consolidated in the financial statements. The accounting
requirements in the existing HKAS 27 on other consolidation related matters
are carried forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject

to certain transitional provisions.

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosures requirements
about interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements. It
also introduces new disclosure requirements, including those related to
unconsolidated structured entities. The general objective of the standard is
to enable users of financial statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a
reporting entity’s interests in other entities and the effects of those interests

on the reporting entity’s financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how to measure fair
value when it is required or permitted by other standards. The standard
applies to both financial and non-financial items measured at fair value and
introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy. The definitions of the three
levels in this measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS
7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” HKFRS 13 defines fair value as the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date (i.e. an exit price). The standard removes the requirement to use bid
and ask prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active market.
Rather the price within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of
fair value in the circumstances should be used. It also contains extensive
disclosure requirements to allow users of the financial statements to assess
the methods and inputs used in measuring fair values and the effects of fair
value measurements on the financial statements. HKFRS 13 can be adopted

early and is applied prospectively.

Amendments to HKFRS 1 - Government Loans

The amendments add an exception to the retrospective application of
HKFRSs to require that first-time adopters apply the requirements in HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments and HKAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants
and Disclosure of Governance Assistance prospectively to government loans

existing at the date of transition to HKFRSs.

This means that first time adopters will not recognize the corresponding
benefit of the government loan at a below market rate of interest as a
government grant. However, entities may choose to apply the requirements
of HKFRS 9 and HKAS 20 to government loans retrospectively if the
information needed to do so had been obtained at the time of initially

accounting for that loan.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the potential
impact of these pronouncements. The directors so far concluded that the
applications of these new pronouncements will have no material impact on

the Group’s financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs") and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis

except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values.

(c) Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar

(“HKS"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with unrealized profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognized in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period/year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other

members of the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are

recognized in profit or loss.

The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the
non-controlling interests that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity

instruments in which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized
at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognized against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration

classified as an asset or a liability are recognized in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from business combinations
whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group
first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance with
the transition requirements in the standard. Such balances are not adjusted
upon first application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of
such consideration are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business

combinations and are recognized as part of goodwill.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant

assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is able to exercise control.
Control is achieved where the Company, directly or indirectly, has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that

are presently exercisable are taken into account.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of financial position at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital

appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognized so as to
write off the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the

straight-line method.

An investment property is realizable upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the

period in which the item is realizable.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than construction in progress and freehold land)
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful

lives are as follows:
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of 2% - 4.5% or period of

the lease term

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% - 33%
Plant and machinery 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20% - 30%
Construction in progress Nil

Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognized impairment loss.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost
comprises direct costs of construction as well as borrowing costs capitalized
during the periods of construction and installation. Capitalization of
these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in

progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognized in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortization of prepaid lease payments
provided during the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the

manner intended by management).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the

leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognized as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are

consumed.

(f) Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in
the land element and building element of the lease at the inception of the

lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortized over the lease term on a straight-line

basis.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognized at cost, and subsequently at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out
method. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

(h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the statements of
financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (i.e. derivative financial instruments) are

recognized immediately in profit or loss.

(i)  Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables, available-

for-sale financial assets and derivative financial instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)  Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and bills
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries, bank deposits
and bank balances) are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment of loans and receivables below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets (including investment in
life insurance policies) are carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are

recognized in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified

impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)  Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after

the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or breach
of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organization; or
the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because

of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the respective credit period and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated

future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)  Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognized in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to

profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the

amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective evidence of
impairment, the amount of the loss is removed from equity and recognized

in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive

income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at cost, the amount
of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Such impairment loss is not reversed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The
Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into derivative financial

instruments and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognized on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other payables,
amounts due to subsidiaries/non-controlling shareholders, consideration
payable, bank and other borrowings and bank overdrafts are subsequently

measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

(iii) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss immediately. Derivative financial instruments not held primarily
for trading purposes are classified as non-current assets or liabilities when

the remaining maturity of the instruments is more than one year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Company and not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is recognized initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,

cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.

(v) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the

financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the

consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Government grants
Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that

the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants related
to depreciable assets are recognized as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the

useful lives of the related assets.

(j) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of

those cash flows (where the effect is material).

A provision for restructuring is recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position on conditions that the Group has a detailed formal plan
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that the restructuring
will be carried out, by starting to implement that plan or by announcing its

main features to those affected by it.

(k) Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized

as an expense immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as

income immediately.

() Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of returns, discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the goods are delivered

and title has passed, at which date the following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can

be measured reliably.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment have been established.

(m) Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans/state-managed
retirement benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Capitalization of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

(o) Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period/year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other periods/years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill
and recognized assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realized or settled and that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

4. EEFHEEH)

(n) FERFBREER

Wig BEREECEREE (MFERERH
FEHBEERAERHUEENEE) EREENEE
A BIMAZREZEENRES  EEBEHEEEKR
BUAREREABRREE - SEREERRFX
HENBERERBREMMEHIRERA - #F
BERERENBEERA TN -

FERMEERAEERERBNIEE AR -

(o) BIE
FREHBA X ThiE = B fE FE A BU T8 I IR AE B TH 9 42
o

EEEMmARERLENE FENERBET
fE% c ERBBAIHGARNSRASBNERF
SENGERBIEYS S PN T30 P
ERBRMANRAREAES > FESABA
PR TR 078 B FRE - KRB R BOE
BB R RS B R B B R
BENHE -

ELEREDNRARMBHREEN 2 EEREEN
REEEARGEENZAESE 2 BNEEE
BER - REBURTZESHAERBENN
CHEALEREEN SR ERRV TR EH
BRELEHRBRE -EEHREEREUEDA
FERBUR AL S IR B R Z N BRER - B
ERBEDREARANSREENFEAERT
ENARAUARNBERLRCEAREE LT EM
BB =G E -



(*J| Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 BA7&RaRMIEE

31 December 2012 20128128318

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Taxation (continued)

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate
tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment
property is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of
these investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,

rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realized, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognized

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Taxation (continued)
Income taxes are recognized in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognized in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes are

also recognized in other comprehensive income.

(p) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (“foreign currencies”) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognized in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the period/
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognized in the foreign exchange reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or

loss on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognized in

profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognized in the share options reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognized in the share

options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

(r) Related parties
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the

Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is @ member of key management personnel of the Group or the

Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

SRR

4. EFERETHE )

(@ AHBEHURGABEZIHES
SEMBRAERNE H B 00D T E A E 1S W
RN A TFEE REBBENER AR I
BRI AR 0 (IR ) -

R|BERL > AEERTHERBRKEHEEN
BREHE 25  REBHE  BITZE Mk

VRE (WA ERNESER  XRBRERBE
HARERE -

ERRERETEN FRBREFABIEINS
BEERBARMDEE EBREREBAHRER
WRREE B ORETE - ARRBRERZED
BRNESHESBRARTER -

n BEEAL
(@ MHEBRTIERAZAEALTHEARER
BEEAL:

() HAREEEZFERLEZGE

(i) HAEEEEAFED R

(i) BRAKERAQAFLASREEERE
B E °

b) HMERTIERAZERERANERS
BEAL:

() ZEBEERASEBE-SE(NZFFLQF -
MEBARKREBRWELESEEEE)

(i) —EEERS BENBMBARSELE
(REBZREZHBEARSGERX M
EEETHS—BEBAKE) -

(i) MEBRERERE=TNEELE



EEEE(EE)FRYTS

2012 EFH Bk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 EA7&ERaRMIEE

31 December 2012 2012512H831H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Related parties (continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iiiy dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are different from

expected, a material impairment or reversal may arise.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
and obsolete merchandise. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a market price that is lower than its carrying amount, the
Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for
inventories. If the market price of inventories of the Group becomes lower
than its carrying amount subsequently, an additional allowance may be

required.

Estimated provision for the tax audit

As detailed in note 8, the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD") had initiated
tax inquiries and issued protective profits tax assessment notice (“Protective
Assessments”) for additional taxes against the Group. If the final tax required
for the settlement of the tax audit is significantly varied from the provision
which has been made, such differences may impact the income tax

provisions.

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The board of directors of the Company, i.e. the chief operating decision
maker, regularly reviews the operating results and financial information
based on distinct geographical areas of location of customers, including
Hong Kong (place of domicile of the Group), the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), Taiwan, Korea, Sri Lanka, America, Europe and Others (i.e.
representing other geographical locations mainly Singapore and Macau). All
of these geographical areas are operating segments except “Others” which is

an aggregation of operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and (loss)/profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, sewing threads, yarns and garments

and results by reportable segment for the period/year.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. EEBERDEEHR (HE)

For the 16 months ended 31 December 2012 B £20125F12831H L1618 B
Hong Sri Segment
Kong  ThePRC Taiwan Korea Lanka ~ America Europe Others total Eliminations Consolidated

s

B2 " a8 g8 HENr ) B HHME  AREE EiE o
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00
fér fEx TEx TEr FEr  FEr  FEx  TEx TEr  TEi  TE&

Revenue g1B
External sales HiE 2,355,369 1,632,676 1,230,409 1,375,842 953,049 373,227 246,600 999917 9,167,089 - 9,167,089
Inter-segment sales (note) PEBEE W) 6,749,742 4,029,705 - - 596937 129983 - 285343 11,791,710 (11,791,710) -
Total seqment revenue AREREAE 9105111 5662381 1230400 1375842 1549986 503210 246,600 1285260 20958799 (11,791,710) 9,167,089
Results 3
Segment profit AEEA 146,538 69,513 76,615 86,351 32,733 30,454 15,042 62,283 519,529
Interest income HEBA 15,221
Unallocated income AARBA 5,745
Depreciation and amortization ~ FrER Bk (347,420)
Otherwnallocated expenses R RAE LM (482,099)
Finance costs HERK (87,288)
Net gain on disposal HENBLTFE

of subsidiaries HEFR 42,855

Loss before taxation BRAEE (333457)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. BEERSEER (&)
For the 12 months ended 31 August 2011 B Z£2011F8A31H L1218 A

Hong Sti Segment

Kong ~ ThePRC Taiwan Korea lanka  America Europe Others total  Eliminations  Consolidated

Bk L g% B8 HEEF S B EMHE SERE b3t Ga
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKks'o00 HKso00 HKs000
Fér  TEr  TEr TEr  FEr  FEr TR TE  TEr TEr FEn

Revenue ]
External sales e 200673 14492 1072509 TS}M4 TM8313 BIGY 81133 1000244 7593889 - 7593889
Inter-seqment sales (note) FEBEEWD) 4830987 2719455 - - 634 85T - 65460 818982 (3189852 -
Total segment revenue PEERELE 6923660 4204381 1072529 782444 1234687 47201 81133 1067706 15783741 (8189852 7593889
Results 4
Segment profit ARER 274480 188,802 153,923 113239 79632 13657 9,704 140,517 973,954
Interest income HIEHA 9779
Unallocated income ROBMA 4316
Depreciation and amortization ~ HTE R & (259599)
Other unallocated expenses  EfRAEXH (333882)
Finance Costs HEHA (71,589)
Net gain on disposal HENBLRZME

of subsidiares bEFE 021
Profit before taxation BHEEA 343,091
Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prices with reference to the prevailing market Kat . DERBEEZBRIIZBRER T EEBERME

rates. E e
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs and other expenses (including non-production related
employee benefits expenses, directors’ emoluments, bank charges, etc.),
depreciation and amortization, interest income, loss on disposal/written-
off of property, plant and equipment, net gain from derivative financial
instruments, finance costs, net gain on disposal of subsidiaries, etc.. This
is the measure reported to the board of directors of the Company for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. No analysis on
segment assets and liabilities is disclosed as it is not presented to the board

of directors of the Company.

6. EXERIBEHR(B)

TR ST BRREREBM 42 S
FSTEERAR - D BBATIES D EARBHOBF -
ERIERBFAFRTEIARAEMBER (B
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BeBEE HHYBEERABELRBHERDTEK
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Other segment information HitpEEHR
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit: EERAES2 BRI
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea  SriLanka America Europe Others Consolidated
EE HE =) B8 KERF EY| Bl EfthE &a
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr 7 FEr FEr FE7 7z FEn FA7
For the 16 months ended BZ20124125318
31 December 2012 116f8 A
Impairment loss (reversed)/ EEEWGECRE
recognized on Bk (BE) /B
trade receivables, net BE (288) 3412 9,051 297 248 (2) 1 (29) 12,690
For the 12 months ended BZ011%8A31R
31 August 2011 1128 A
Impairment loss (reversed)/ EEEWSECHE
recognized on B%BE) /B
trade receivables, net FE (4,499) 1,224 581 17 (567) (48) (46) (4,907) (8,245)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. BEERSEER (&)

Revenue from the Group’s products AEEERZEXER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers UTARERIADAEBRAISEFLEmES
by products: S
For the 16 For the 12
months ended months ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
BZ2012%F BZE201F
12H31H 8H31H
1E1618 A 1E1218 A
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Production and sales of dyed fabrics, HERHERH BIRRY 7,977,076 6,643,889
sewing threads and yarns (note) (H17E)
Production and sales of garments BEREEMRK 1,190,013 950,000
9,167,089 7,593,889
Note: The balance substantially represents revenue from sales of dyed fabrics for the Kzt BHIR FENSEEESEETEROHEERH
period/year.
Geographical information i 18 E B}
The following is an analysis of geographical location of the Group’s non- NIREHR  REBERBESE (F12) RitE
current assets (note) at the end of the reporting period: HEZHHMT :
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
R2012% 20114
12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
The PRC H 1,749,854 2,081,324
Hong Kong BB 77,599 21,556
America EM 173 201
Sri Lanka HEEF 166,550 170,198
Others Hithith @ 768 1,239
1,994,944 2,274,518

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. Kzt ERBEETCIFEERIEEE
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. EEBERDEEHR (HE)

Information about major customers EBFXEEFZER
No revenue from individual customer contributed over 10% of the total REZE2011F8A31A L FEREE20125128
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 August 2011 and the 16 months 31A 16 A HIR  ERBENEF & %58
period ended 31 December 2012. RSB EELTERIBI0%
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAE
For the 16 For the 12
months ended months ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
BZ20125F BE20115
12A31H 8H31H
1168 A 11218 A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Finance costs on: AR A
Bank and other borrowings wholly repayable ARSFEREIMEZEZRIT
within five years REMEE 87,288 70,904
Imputed interest expense on consideration EBAREZEERN SR X (K228)
payable (note 28) - 685

Total finance costs RLE R AR 87,288 71,589
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

8. FrEHixH

For the 16 For the 12
months ended months ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
B Z2012F BZE2011F
12A31H 8A31H
1H1618 A 1E12{@ A
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Current tax: =HIEFIE -
Hong Kong &iE 625 52,164
The PRC B 8,849 9,396
Other jurisdictions Hitw At E 146 3,318
9,620 64,878
Under/(over) provision in prior years: BAFERETIR (BERE)
Hong Kong & 562 9
The PRC A (2,086) (1,865)
Other jurisdictions Hih 5kt &E (289) 497
(1,813) (1,359)
Provision for the tax audit M EERE = 41,000
7,807 104,519
Deferred tax (note 18): EIERLE (MaE18) -
Hong Kong &8 (64) 78
The PRC H (3,543) (729)
Other jurisdictions Hihw At E 104 (395)
(3,503) (1,046)
4,304 103,473

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (31 August 2011: 16.5%) of the

estimated assessable profit for the period/year.

EBANEH DI REPE, FEZATERTREF
Bl16.5% (201158 H31H 1 16.5%) 5t & ©
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% starting from 1 January 2008 onwards. Certain of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
for two calendar years and thereafter, they are entitled to 50% relief from the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the following three calendar years (the “Tax
Holiday”). The reduced tax rate for the relief period is 12.5% for both periods.

The Tax Holiday expired on 31 December 2012.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the profit
generated from a subsidiary of the Company is entitled to exemption from
the Sri Lanka income tax until 31 August 2015. Accordingly, no provision for

the income tax was made on the profit for both periods.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in

the respective jurisdictions.

In February 2008, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD")
initiated a tax audit on the Company and its subsidiaries for the years of
assessment from 2001/02 onwards. In March 2008, 2009 and 2010, February
2011, January 2012 and February 2012, notices of estimate additional
assessment (the “Protective Assessments”) for the years of assessment
2001/02, 2002/03, 2003/04, 2004/05, 2005/06 and 2005/06 in an aggregate
amount of HK$14,352,000, HK$19,844,000, HK$18,390,000, HK$62,834,000,
HK$35,019,000 and HK$12,343,000, respectively, were issued to the

Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company by the IRD.

8. FiEBixH (&)
BIEFECEMSHE(LEMRBSHZED) RE
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Regarding the Protective Assessments for the year of assessment
2003/04, out of the aggregate amount of HK$18,390,000, two Protective
Assessments of HK$4,375,000 issued to the Company and a Hong Kong
subsidiary, respectively, were in effect alternative assessments to that of
an overseas subsidiary. Regarding the Protective Assessments for the year
of assessment 2004/05, out of the aggregate amount of HK$62,834,000,
two Protective Assessments of HK$2,266,000 and HK$23,194,000 issued to
the Company and a Hong Kong subsidiary, respectively, were also in effect
alternative assessments to that of the above overseas subsidiary. Regarding
the Protective Assessments for the year of assessment 2005/06, out of
the aggregate amount of HK$47,362,000, two Protective Assessments of
HK$1,687,000 and HK$15,985,000 issued to the Company and a Hong Kong
subsidiary, respectively, were also in effect alternative assessments to that of

the above overseas subsidiary.

Objections against the Protective Assessments were lodged. For the
years of assessment 2001/02 and 2002/03, full amounts were held over
unconditionally. For the years of assessment 2003/04, 2004/05 and 2005/06,
amounts were held over on the condition that Tax Reserve Certificates in the
amount of HK$1,600,000, HK$23,000,000 and HK$10,000,000 were purchased
in May 2010, April 2011 and March 2012, respectively.

During the year ended 31 August 2011, having taken the advices from the
Group's tax advisor, the directors of the Company made a provision for
additional tax of HK$41,000,000, which was charged to the consolidated
income statement, in relation to the tax audit. Further to that, the Group has
submitted a settlement proposal, on a complete without prejudice basis, to
the IRD on 21 January 2013 in order to finalize the tax audit and tax position
of the Group for the years of assessment 2001/02 to 2011/12. The directors
believe that other than the aforesaid provision, no significant amount of

additional profits tax will be payable for the tax audit.

8. FrE®ix i (&)
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2005/06:R % F & Z R FE 14 3T B & $£47,362,00078
e BPWIRRE LT £%81,687,000/8
TR 159850008 T A BB HAA AR R —EE
BHBARERB LA LGN E AT NRE
MR 2 B MR o

RUABEBREMEFHEREERH  2001/02K
2002/03 AR EEZ 2 HSBEER/KEES
fM2003/04 ~ 2004/05%2005/06 R FE 2 £ B E
2 Bl 7A2010F58 ~ 2011548 R2012F38 B E
1,600,000 7T ~ 23,000,0007% 7T & 10,000,0007% 7T
RSB EEY -

BZE2011F8A3BLFENRE KEEEAEH
FBEENZERE  AARESCRBBEESHE
hn %t T8 5 541,000,000 T EERECKRES
W RN B AEBEE R20135F1821H
ARERREXZEEBEMNNNBREZSE  WE
BT KA K E2001/0282011/12R B F E VB I
BEERBBMRR - ESHE > REBBHEN B
RBEERENZEMAIERSBELREK -



EEEE(EE)FRYTS

201255

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 EA7&ERaRMIEE

31 December 2012 2012512H831H

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 18.

The tax charge for the periods/year can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit

before taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:

8. FE®ix<ih (&)
HBEIE IR > ERN T8 o

REME,FEREGS WS RIBIE X H ERBA

(B58) /BRGEEDT :

For the 16

months ended

For the 12

months ended

31 December 31 August
2012 2011
HZ2012F Bz20nEF
12A31H 8H31H
k168 A L1218 A
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BELAT (B518) BRI (333,457) 343,191
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits or BTt EZERBERZ
losses in the jurisdiction concerned BB R ENHIE (83,798) 35,142
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ERTENBNEEZ
tax purpose 34,866 4,755
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose WABERBNRIEE (13,220) (12,521)
Overprovision in prior years BEIFEBIERE (1,813) (1,359)
Provision for the tax audit HRBECEE = 41,000
Tax effect of tax losses not recognized BEEEREEINRELE 88,497 45,689
Tax effect of other deferred tax not recognized HttEER ER W ERNRE S E 4,546 20,737
Income tax at concessionary rate REEREFENREHR 1,738 (623)
Utilization of tax losses previously not recognized ERBEREERNBIEESE (4,194) (18,215)
Utilization of other deferred tax previously ERBAREERNEMIELERIE
not recognized (21,719) (10,482)
Deferred tax provided on withholding tax Bl 2 SR B A B TR BLAY
on PRC and overseas subsidiaries EIEBIEFR (605) (736)
Others Hith 6 86
Tax charge for the period/year 2HE FEHEXH 4,304 103,473
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9. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR 9. RHEME "FE(ER) &
For the 16 For the 12
months ended months ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
HZ20126F BZE201F
12A31H 8H31H
1E1618 A 1E1218 B
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit for the period/year has been arrived at ~ 2HIfE,FE (E518) &F
after charging: 2T :
Auditors’ remuneration BT 2 Fr A 4,214 4,600
Cost of inventories recognized as expenses ERABRZEFEERK 8,379,813 6,429,052
Depreciation of investment properties (note 14) REWMEZITE (Bit14) 59 -
Depreciation of property, plant and W WEBERREZIE (WaE15)
equipment (note 15) 343,883 256,808
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ EEGAZ L (BREARKFEI02
emoluments set out in note 10) ZEEME) 1,218,138 876,284
Impairment loss recognized on trade BRAEERWREZRERBXFE
receivables, net 12,690 -
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, HE T MERREZER
plant and equipment (included in other expenses) (BiEEHEMERR) 2,955 5,169
Net exchange losses (included in other expenses) EHEEFE(BEEHMERN) 1,358 17,112
Release of prepaid lease payments included in BEEUTEEANBAHEERE
L4
—cost of sales —$HE A 3,455 2,711
—administrative expenses - THEH 23 80
and after crediting: REFTA:
Amortization of deferred income* R AE U Y 4 8+ 1,946 1,458
Imputed interest income on consideration FEWRRE 2 EE R B WA~
receivable* - 6,469
Interest income* FE UK A* 15,221 3,310
Rental income from investment properties* REWENE WA 413 -
Net gain from derivative financial instruments* TEERm I Az & FE 2,771 2,521
Impairment loss reversed on trade B RWFIE 2R EB X FERE
receivables, net - 8,245
Government grants* (note) BT 8 Bl (A a2) 47,907 -

* Included in other income

* BREEEMBAR
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9. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR (continued) 9. RHME FE(ER) BEF (&)

Note: Government grants for the 16 months ended 31 December 2012 mainly MaF - BZE2012%F128318 116 B 2 LT @B E B
represent a grant of HK$37,145,000 received from the PRC local government Y By B A B ith 75 BT 237,145,00058 JT #8 B 0 ML
authority as a compensation to the Group for relocating and disposing of certain HEAEEEENHEETYE  BBERRE-
property, plant and equipment. There were no restrictions with the use of such ZBRREE ERREIEARE -

government grants.

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND 10 EEREEMLEE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’emoluments (a) EEWMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the sixteen (31 August 2011: B EECISEMB 16 (2011888318 ¢
ten) directors during the period/year were as follows: 107) W E—UESHMESTT :
For the 16 months ended 31 December 2012 B F2012%F12831H 1L16{@ B
HAkam WONG cHow FUNG

HA Chung On,  HAHon YEN GONG ZHAO  NGKwok  Kwong CHEN CHEN  Wing Kin, YANG YEHYi  ZHANG CHAN
LILan Fong  Victor Kuen  Gordon  Zhengyi Yao Tung Chi Rong Minghong  Anthony  Shibin Hao,Yvette  Chong  YukYin Total
W OENF ESx  EER O BE®  BEEE 0 HE  MER  IBE RE RBE PR BER BEEE F3 RNE 4B
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
FEr FEn TEr FET FEr FEr TEr FET FEn TEr TEr FET FEn TEr TEr  FEL FEA

(notei)  (noteil) (noteii) (noted) ~ (noteiv) (notev) (notei)  (note i (noteix)  (notev)  (notevij  (notex)
(notevi)  (note vii)
(&) (i) (i) (&) () (B (W) (hia) (hatw) () (i) (R
(W) (Hiakii)
Fees e - - - - - 100 - 333 153 - - 267 114 153 - 55 1175
Other emoluments Aftle
Salaries and other benefit FeRAkER - 15682 5089 100 4446 - - - - - - - - - - -6
Equity-settled share-based HEREENRS
payments REB2AR - - -9 - - - - - - - - - - - 3%
Retirement benefits EfEATE
scheme contribution #3 - - k1) 69 2% - - - - - - - - - - - "
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10.

(a)

Notes:

(ii)

(iif)
(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Durin

as an

INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Madam LI Lan, Mr. GONG Zhengyi and Mr. CHEN Rong were appointed as
Executive Directors of the Company on 6 June 2012.

Mr. HA Chung Fong has resigned as Chairman and appointed as Honorary
Chairman of the Company on 6 June 2012. He has resigned as Executive Director
and has continued to act as Honorary Chairman and senior consultant of the
Company with effect from 27 November 2012.

Mr. HA Hon Kuen has resigned as Executive Director on 6 June 2012.

Mr. ZHAO Yao was appointed as Executive Director on 27 November 2012.

Mrs FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette and Mr. WONG Kwong Chi have resigned as
Independent Non-Executive Directors on 6 June 2012.

Mr. CHEN Rong has resigned as Executive Director on 27 November 2012.

Mr. ZHANG Chong and Mr. CHEN Minghong were appointed as Non-Executive
Director on 6 June 2012.

Mr. CHEN Minghong has resigned as Non-Executive Director on 27 November
2012.

Mr. YANG Shibin was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on 6
June 2012.

Mr. CHAN Yuk Yin has retired as Non-Executive Director on 12 January 2012.

g the period, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office. No directors waived any emoluments in the period.

For the 12 months ended 31 August 2011

10.

(a)

EEREEMEES (F)

ESHE (8

BiaE -

(i)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Wt SEEEERKRIBEENR2012F6H6
BEZEAXRRARAHTES -
ERFTRER2012FcHAcEBITEERIE L&
ZERARRRBELRE - ®MN2012F11B278 &
EHTESHE  UHEREITRLRARNEFEER
RERER o

EERAEN2012F6H60 BERTESHI -
HEREER0NENA2ZBRZEAPTES -
BEBRELZTREIHRZEEN2012F6H6H BHE
B EHITESRIE o

BRASEEMR2012F 11 B27 A BERITESBI -
RBEERBRBHEEN2012F6H6ABEIER
FHITES -

BRIGHE S EA2012F 11 B27BE BHEEHITESH
& o

BB ER2012F6H6AEZERBLEHIT
Bx.

BRABE S R2012F1 B 12 AREFHTESRIS o

REHE AEELEOEFTESIAME - U
1 %% n BB A< £ (8 = H0 A 2 2 (B8 By Y 2% B o A
e RYESEEEREETME -

HZE2011F8HA31H L1218 A

CHOW FUNG
HA HA HA LAU NG WONG Wing YEH
Chung ~ KamOn, Hon YEN Hong CHAN Kwok  Kwong Kin,  YiHao,
Fong Victor Kuen  Gordon Yon  YukYin Tung Chi  Anthony  Yvette Total
ENF BBz EEE BE® WEE REE {EER IBZ  AKE BEES BE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tér FEr TErn FEr TErn FExr TErn FEr TEr FEr TExn
(notei)  (noteii)
(RisEi)  (FFa)
Fees ika - - - - - 75 250 200 200 200 925
Other emoluments HitEe
Salaries and other benefits ~ EHEREMBEF 12849 3185 1357 286 1732 - - - - - 099
Equity-settled share-based NEHEZEURSD
payments REBZAR - 726 331 726 - - - - - - 1783
Retirement benefits BINERIEE
scheme contributions #3% - 230 74 185 69 - - - - - 558
12849 4141 1762 3737 1801 75 250 200 200 200 25215
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10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. LAU Hong Yon retired on 1 March 2011.

1 March 2011

During the period, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office. No directors waived any emoluments in the period.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees included three (31 August 2011: three)
directors, whose emoluments are set out in note (a) above. Emoluments of

the remaining two (31 August 2011: two) employees are as follows:

(a) EEMS (M)
Wt :

10. EEREEMSER (&)

() WERELEER201EIATBERE-
(i) Mr. CHAN Yuk Yin was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company on iy PRBEBEEMRMFIAIBEZEARQAESH

TES-

(b) EEMSE

RER AEBYEQEAESIAME - UE
75 hn BE 75 £ [ 30 5 00 A 2 52 381 B Y 2% B 5 Bl ek 4
E ROBBMEEERRTAME -

BeMeiNsEES BIEN (2011588318 : 3
) EE HNSFHBHER L@ - T2
(20115F8A31H 2 ) EEMBNEST :

For the 16

months ended

For the 12

months ended

31 December 31 August

2012 2011

B ZE20124F BZ2011EF

12A31H 8H31H

1168 A 1218 A

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits FeRHEMER 6,418 5,080
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R FIEHEIMH R 422 186
Equity-settled share-based payments UREREEUROAER 2R 3,306 754
10,146 6,020
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10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND 10. EEREEMESE R (F)
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued) (b) EEMS (&)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMENFUTAR :
For the 16 For the 12
months ended months ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
HZE20125F BZE2011F
12A31H 8HA31H
11618 A L1218 A
HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,000 7t £2,500,0005% 7T - 1
HK$3,500,000 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,0005% 7T £4,000,0007 7T 1 1

HK$6,000,000 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,00078 JT £6,500,00058 JT 1 -




EEE¥(EE)FRST

2012 FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 EA7&ERaRMIEE

31 December 2012 2012512H831H

11. DIVIDENDS 1. RS
For the 16 For the 12
months ended months ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
BZE20125F BZE2011F
12A31H 8H31H
11618 A 1E1218 B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividend recognized as distribution 2B/ EFECERADIIRZBE
during the period/year:
2011 final dividend of HK 1 cent (2010: HK 1 cent) 201MERBREERIEAL
per share (20105 : 17810) 7,940 7,940

No interim dividend was paid or proposed for both periods.

No final dividend in respect of the 16 months period ended 31 December
2012 has been proposed by the directors of the Company (31 August 2011:
HK 1 cent per share, amounting to HK$7,940,000 in total).

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings and diluted earnings per share

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

RWEMELESAHEFERTPHRE

AAREBWEEZRNGEZ2012F128318 1
1618 B HARS 2 REIBR B (201158 H310 : 81
AL - A H A7,940,000588 7T) °

12. 2% (BE) B
AARDFEEABESRES (BB BRRE
BRADRETIBESE -

For the 16 For the 12

months ended months ended

31 December 31 August

2012 2011

#HZ2012F HZE20115F

12A31H 8H31H

11618 A 1E1218 B

HK$’000 HKS'000

FETT FET

(Loss)/earnings (FE|) BF

(Loss)/profit for the period/year attributable to owners Fhist ESRER (BE) B R
of the Company for the purposes of basic BEENFTAZEAAREEA

(loss)/earnings and diluted earnings per share EiEREEFE (BER) BF (324,167) 210,886
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12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

12. 3R (B8) 27 (&)

For the 16 For the 12

months ended months ended

31 December 31 August
2012 2011
BZE2012%F BE20115F
12H31H 8H31H
1E1618 A 1218 A
Number of shares RGEE
Number of ordinary shares for the purposes MITEEREN (BB BIR
of basic (loss)/earnings and diluted earnings BEENFTACEBREE
per share 969,192,362 794,010,960

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts
presented for the 16 months period ended 31 December 2012 in respect of
a dilution as the impact of share options outstanding had no anti-dilutive

effect on the basic loss per share amounts presented.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 August
2011 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options because the adjusted exercise prices of those options calculated in
accordance with HKAS 33 “Earnings Per Share” are higher than the average

market price of the shares for the year.

13. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
Loss attributable to shareholders includes an amount of HK$3,994,000 (2011:

profit HK$16,897,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statement

of the Company.

HRERITEBREYEREFT2INERERES
BeEEERBEXE  RUYEMEBE20125
12831816 B HEMENNEREREES
BELHBERE -

HRBRBEEBSTTENEBRERER IFE
AARERITEBREZCRHETEESRRSD
RREFEZFHUTE AR EEHE20115F8A
NNALFEZSREERNEGLBBRRZFBR
BOETRE -

13. RERFEL (F8]) 5A
% 3R FE 1 185 18 B $53,994,00058 JT (20114 : 5@

16,897,000/87C) * ERA QAT EHRERAFIER o
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEWHE
HK$'000
FET
COST R
At 1 September 2010 and 31 August 2011 72010F981H K% 20115F8H31H -
Reclassification from land and buildings e £ it R F 2,607
At 31 December 2012 M2012512H831H 2,607
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 September 2010 and 31 August 2011 72010F9A 18 K% 201158A31H -
Provided for the period =HIBRE 59
At 31 December 2012 M20125F12H831H 59
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2012 M2012512831H 2,548

At 31 August 2011

720115 8H31H

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December 2012
was HK$60,200,000. The fair value has been arrived at based on a valuation
carried out by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent
property valuer. The valuation was determined using vacant possession and
the direct comparison approach with reference to comparable transaction

available in the relevant market.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the shorter of the lease term or 50 years.

All of the investment properties of the Group are situated in Hong Kong
and are held under medium-term leases to earn rentals and/or for capital

appreciation.

REBREMER01F12B31BNAFEES
60,200,000/ 7T - BRI A FEETIHB L YWEM
EMYAHEZAEGRARETHGHESESE -
FRGEDERTEEUEEEBEESZHE
TS LAREBRZREMEE -

LR EMEUERERBEFHRS0F (UK

BERE)FE -

AEENREREVMEDMREBLRIEHHE
HEEERIEER REAREE-



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 BA7&RaRMIEE

31 December 2012 20128128318

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y13 - HEBBIRRE

THE GROUP rE
Freehold Furniture,
and fixtures and Plantand Motor  Construction
leasehold land Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KABER Bh-£E
REMLH BF Rt BEHE B EBIR A
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000
FiEx FiEx FiEx FiET FiET FiET FiEx
Cost B
At 1 September 2010 201059418 23,493 1,045,541 765,638 2073458 34932 51,245 3,994,307
Currency realignment NEREER 5 6,328 9,766 21318 344 812 38573
Additions £ - 2,900 23,014 58,224 4813 21,383 110334
Reclassifications A - - 51,531 602 - (52,133) -
Disposals/written-off HE - - (14,759) (19,524) (8,538) - (42,821)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) ~ tH&MiB A & (#40) - (39,255) (56) (200) (411) - (39922)
At 31 August 2011 12011584318 23498 1015514 835,134 2133878 31,140 21,307 4060471
Currency realignment PMEBREER (13) 1632 797 27,022 3 420 29,861
Additions 1 - - 17233 52,283 4,166 25714 99,39
Reclassifications to: Rz
—investment properties -REME (1,936) (3,144) - - - - (5,080)
—others -Hftr - - 4,500 - - (4,500) -
Disposals/written-off HE - - (24,644) (31,793) (7,027) - (63,464)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note40) ~ HE&MB A & (40 - (46933) (16,297) (38131) - (3,166) (104,527)
At 31 December 2012 0128124318 21,549 967,069 816723 2,143,259 28282 39,775 4016657
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

15. ¥ - WBERRE (R

THE GROUP (continued) AER (F)
Freehold Furniture,
and fixtures and Plantand Motor  Construction
leasehold land Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KAKER BR 2B
HEMLH B2 e BEHES L] EEIR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FiEx FiEx FiEx FiEx FiEx FiEx FiEx
Depreciation and impairment T ERAE
At 1 September 2010 ®20105981A 12131 170,280 456,219 999,664 27,212 - 1,665,506
Currency realignment IEBREER - 2378 8,074 19,677 251 - 30,380
Provided for the year REERE 245 43612 58,162 151,525 3,264 - 256,808
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /TR
written-off - - (11,345) (15,833) (8,062) - (35,240)
Eliminated on disposal of HEMBA R R
subsidiaries (note 40) (Hita0) - (11,827) (45) (67) (355) - (12,294)
At 31 August 2011 011588318 12,376 204443 511,065 1,154,966 2310 - 1,905,160
Currency realignment MEREET - 188 203 26814 (24) - 27,181
Provided for the period RHERE 310 55,889 76,760 207,457 3467 - 343,883
Eliminated on reclassificationto 3 2% B £ Fr 85
investment properties (885) (1,588) - - - - (2473)
Eliminated on disposals/ HE /SRS
written-off - - (22,785) (16,195) (6,284) - (45,264)
Eliminated on disposal of HERBD R R
subsidiaries (note 40) (Wita0) - (6,829) (5837) (26,174) - - (38,840)
At 31 December 2012 R20125128318 11,801 252,103 559,406 1,346,868 19,469 - 2,189,647
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2012 120125128318 9,748 714,966 257,317 796,391 8813 39,775 1,827,010
At 31 August 2011 M2011%8A31H 11,122 811,071 324,069 978912 8,830 21,307 2,155311
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

15. M3 - B R RE (R

THE COMPANY ¥ YN
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
HH - £B
&S BHEH wE
HKS$'000 HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET FETT
Cost R
At 1 September 2010 7201098 1H 39,959 3,189 43,148
Additions & 1,342 1,231 2,573
Disposals/written-off HE (1,201) - (1,201)
At 31 August 2011 72011488318 40,100 4,420 44,520
Additions 2 3,444 1,269 4,713
Disposals/written-off HE (5,390) (877) (6,267)
At 31 December 2012 72012%12831H 38,154 4,812 42,966
Depreciation e
At 1 September 2010 720105F9A1H 35,987 2,229 38,216
Provided for the year =FERE 1,579 485 2,064
Eliminated on disposals/written-off e o 8 B (1,201) - (1,201)
At 31 August 2011 20114588318 36,365 2714 39,079
Provided for the period =HBRE 1,876 830 2,706
Eliminated on disposals/written-off ok 8 B (5,387) (877) (6,264)
At 31 December 2012 720125128318 32,854 2,667 35,521
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2012 720125128318 5,300 2,145 7,445
At 31 August 2011 72011 8H31H 3,735 1,706 5,441
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. ¥135% - BB RRE (@)

The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated, L MBREEZRAUESRELTAM
after taking into account of their estimated residual values, on a straight-line STRIREERITE -

basis.

THE GROUP rEM

The carrying value of properties shown above comprises: L EYEIREERLE :

Freehold and

leasehold land and buildings Construction in progress

KABBRHEEN
T REF EEIR
At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 2011 2012 2011
20126 20115 20125 20115
12A31H 8H31H 12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FETT
Leasehold land in Hong Kong REBUHBEEREN
under medium-term leases HELH 7,415 8,776 - -
Freehold land outside Hong Kong REBUMIKAZEE L 2,333 2,346 = -
Buildings erected on land in Hong Kong R&EEBUFHEERFEN
held under medium-term leases T FNETF 3,379 5173 - -
Buildings erected on land in the PRC AR E LA E it 5 AR
held under medium-term land FAENLE ENET
use rights 638,690 730,181 39,460 20,990
Buildings erected on freehold and land ~ FAE B UMK A FH K U H
held under medium-term leases HEFEN L LHNET
outside Hong Kong (note) (BtaE) 72,897 75,717 315 317
724,714 822,193 39,775 21,307

Note: The directors of the Company consider that the allocation of buildings erected KiiF - AATESRAE  REKAEERHEEN LT EZ
BFIERTEEA S D HIKRE -

on the freehold and leasehold land cannot be reliably separated for disclosure.
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. A HEERIE
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
20124 20115
12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: AEENFEANHEHERBERRE !
Leasehold land situated outside Hong Kong NREBBUMNATFPEE
under medium-term leases or medium-term of A HA L i R
land use rights BENHEE 112,880 121,939
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERMS PN
Current assets RBEE 2,607 2,732
Non-current assets FRBEE 110,273 119,207
112,880 121,939
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. E{EMI B DA BIRES
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
R2012% 20114
12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HKS'000
FETT FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETBRHG  UARATEH 28,156 31,435
Deemed contribution (note) WREEE (B7E) 4,060 1,104
32,216 32,539
Amounts due from subsidiaries Fff B8 A B BT R 5k 18 3,762,721 4,003,646
Less: Impairment loss recognized W OREERAER (546,023) (546,025)
3,216,698 3,457,621

Amounts due to subsidiaries PN NGIE ¢ 1,462,462 1,031,238
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Movements in the impairment loss recognized are as follows:

17. (S B 2 Bk ()
ERRABRKZBBOT :

At At

31 December 31 August

2012 2011

R2012%F 201145

12H31H 8H31H

HK$’000 HKS'000

FETT FET

Balance at beginning of the period/year B ED&sS 546,025 555,983
Impairment loss reversed SR ERNEERX (2) (9,958)
Balance at end of the period/year B FRER 546,023 546,025

Note: Deemed contribution arises from the equity-settled share-based payments

incurred by the Company but attributable to its subsidiaries’ employees.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and repayable on
demand. Except for an aggregate amount of HK$1,003,316,000 (31 August
2011: HK$1,006,550,000) which bears interest rate with reference to the
average effective interest rate of the bank borrowings of the Group plus
a spread, the balances are interest-free. In the opinion of the directors, as
the Company acts as the treasury centre for the operating subsidiaries, the
amounts are expected to be realized within one year from the end of the
reporting period and accordingly, such amounts have been classified as

current assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the amounts (net of impairment loss
recognized) of HK$3,216,698,000 (31 August 2011: HKS$3,457,621,000)
were not impaired as a result of the satisfactory assessment of the current
financial position and business prospects of those subsidiaries by the
management of the Group. An impairment loss has been recognized if after
the same assessment, the amount was considered not recoverable. At the
end of the reporting period, the impairment loss recognized is related to
individually impaired amounts and the relevant subsidiaries are considered
not in a good financial position to repay their debts after assessing their net

assets value, liquidity position and business prospects.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

Wi ARBREEMBEBRAKNB A RAMES 2 RS
BEUBRNDDHER 2 ARBRREE -

MEBARMARELBIKPLEERERE  HE
H 2z £ %81,003,316,0007% 7T Bl B S (20115831
B ' 1,006,5500008T) ' EELESEAREER
THEENFHERAEMESESE > HRAlA
RE-RBEZFENER BHREQAFAELREENW
BRAAZEFPL  ZEREEHNRERLE
—FRTER Bt ZEREWIAERBEE -

RBEHRL HRAEEEEBREHZEN
BRAR2REMBAMRRREKA =AET 2T
i B EBEANE (BB R ZHERX)
3,216,698,0007% JT (201158A31H : 3,457,621,000
B 7T) M SR B o it E ETHER MG BB R
BEWRAEERE - AISHERBEERRL RS
B FER ZHER KT KRB @R ERER
RAMEETE RBESMRARELAISERE
BREEEWEITERIFNTHEMRRET ZHE

AT

IHB AR ZFIAREERR - REREBERERE -
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 August 2011

and 31 December 2012 are as follows:

17. BB A B (F)
PA2011F8H31H K2012F12A31B AR TMNEE

MEQRFEWT -

Place/country of Issued and Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ fully paid value of issued share capital/
registration share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
EWMAL/ BETR AR
BEREX BEM BRTRE/
WELAEER s/ BR BA/ERRE BORAEENLE TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# &
% %
Dongguan Fuquan Garment Co,, Ltd. (note a) The PRC United States Dollar - 555 Production and sales of
RRRERERA T (Hta) HE (“USD") 3,500,000 garments
3,500,000 7¢ HERHEERK
REBRREERADF (notea) (Mita) The PRC HK$14,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of
HE 14,000,003 Tt garments
HERHEERK
Dongguan Goldlink Thread Factory Co,, Ltd. (note a) The PRC HK$3,600,000 - 100 Manufacturing of sewing
RESERBERLR (Hita) e 3,600,000 7T threads
HERYR
REBEREERADF (hotea) (Hi7ta) The PRC HK$15,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of
H 15,000,000/ 7T garments
HERHEERK
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles The PRC HK$307,500,000 - 95 Dyeing, printing and sales
Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. (note b) HE 307,500,000% 7T of dyed fabrics
SYHBEHENEERAR (Hib) F6 - OENEEEH
Folktune Limited (“Folktune”) Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BRERAR (ER] BB 2T REER
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics
GHEXERAR 5# 3,000,000 7 and yams
BARBYHES
Fountain Set Textiles (Ontario) Ltd. Canada Canadian Dollar 51 - Trading of fabrics and
ngx (“CAD") 300,100 garments
(Common shares) HREKES

300,100f0 ¢ (EER)
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. E{EMEB A SRR (8)

Place/country of Issued and Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ fully paid value of issued share capital/
registration share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERERL/ BETR KD
BRREX BHEH BRTRE/
WRARAR it/ BR BRE/BRRE BERAEEMNLE IEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# EF:3
% %
Goldlink Thread Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 - Trading of sewing threads
SEEBERAA B 5,000,000/ 70 LB
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 (2012:100) (2011:100)  Trading of yarns
EEERAT B 3,000,000/ 7 RYES
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEGHERAR i VBT KRES
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (note a) The PRC USD107,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales
IRREGSBRAF (Wit o (2011: USD104,000,000) of dyed fabrics and yars
107,000,003 7 8l RENEE
(20114 : 104,000,000% 7T) ehReYy
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holdings
EEOTRERAR BB 2B REER
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co,, Ltd. (note a) The PRC USD24,000,000 - 555 Production and sales of
BERAINARERAE (Hita) # (2011: USD22,000,000) garments
24,000000% 7T HERHEERK
(2011 : 22,000000% 7T)
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Sri Lanka Rupee - 60  Knitting, dyeing and sales
Socialist ("LKR") 985,000,000 of dyed fabrics
Republic of 985,000,000/ tt - RENEERR
Sri Lanka
HEHFRE
HETRHANE
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BERYBERAR B VBT REER
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17. AL B 2 B = ()

Place/country of Issued and Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ fully paid value of issued share capital/
registration share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
ERMAL/ BETR AR
BEREX BEM BRTRE/
WEARAR s/ BR BA/ERRE BORAEENLE TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# &
% %
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited Macao Macau Pataca 100,000 - 100 Trading of yarns, dyestuffs
EE(RMEFEEERE) ERAF B 100,000% % and chemicals
RYRACHES
LRBEEHEBEZERAR (hotea) (Hita) The PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
e AR #5,000,0007C BhEs
FYENGHRERDF (notea) (fsta) The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
e AR #35,000,0007 BhEs
Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC USD800,000 - 55.5  Production and sales
ERABERERAR (Hzta) HE 800,000% T of garments
HERHEERK
Triumph Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 555 Trading of garments
JBERAT ) 1,000,00038 ¢ REKES
B REGHERAR (hotea) (Hzta) The PRC USD40,500,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales
HE 40,500,000% 7T of dyed fabrics and yarns
ta - Fen
HEBHREY
Notes: Vo2
a. Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC. a. RAEBEUINEBEDCER I AT
b.  Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC b. RPBEULEELEENESEFRARIBATF -

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results of

the Group for the period or formed a substantial portion of the assets and

liabilities of the Group at the end of the reporting period. To give details of

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,

result in particulars of excessive length. Details of the subsidiaries, which

were disposed of or deregistered during the period, are set out in note 40.

None of the subsidiaries had any debentures outstanding at the end of the

period/year or at any time during the period/year.

UEARARNKMBARIERARNRNESRAE
HEBREERAEERBENLKNEEREE
BEESEMMRI - KARESA ARSI EM
MEBRARNFESCIBERENRTRE - BEARE
HEE HERBUEE MM E A = < FEHNME
40 o

REPE FELASKRERHNEFEETME
B B DR LB EEELE -
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18. DEFERRED TAX 18. IEAE IR
The major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognized by the Group and the AEBRAATNARFESHERBAREEHE
Company and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting RNETEEAEREERS (EE) RESFHNT :

periods are as follows:

THE GROUP RKE
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Others Total
RAIBIRFTE BIEEE Ht e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBT FET FET FET
(note)
(B3E)
At 1 September 2010 7201069818 695 (461) (21,822) (21,588)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss RIBERIEKR(GTA) 167 (210) (1,003) (1,046)
At 31 August 2011 20115 8A31H 862 (671) (22,825) (22,634)
Credited to profit or loss RIBEARFTA (199) (32) (3,272) (3,503)
At 31 December 2012 M2012512831H 663 (703) (26,097) (26,137)
Note: The amount represents mainly deferred tax assets arising from deferred income Biat SRS AT E AN E ZIEEWAFEE
as disclosed in note 29, unrealized profit on inventories and unrealized gain CERBELSE GBSNASBEINEZRHELT
on transfer of plant and equipment between subsidiaries and deferred tax CRME R RN ASERE  URETFH
liabilities arising from withholding tax charged on certain PRC and an overseas WEATR —BEIME AT NBWENE
subsidiary at the amounts of HK$16,648,000 (31 August 2011: HK$17,134,000), FFEEMIELEREEE 5 Bl 5166480005 T

HK$2,458,000 (31 August 2011: HK$2,411,000), HK$3,314,000 (31 August 2011: (20114E8A31H : 17,134,000 7T) - 2,458,0005%

HK$1,986,000) and HK$2,380,000 (31 August 2011: HK$2,985,000), respectively. 7T (20114688310 : 2,411,000 7T) ~ 3,314,0008
Jt (20114 8H31H : 1,986,00058 7T ) & 2,380,00078
Jt (201148 H31H : 2,985,000 7T) °©
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18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$837 million (31 August 2011: HK$552 million) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognized in respect of
approximately HK$4 million (31 August 2011: HK$4 million) of such losses,
which represent tax losses incurred by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries
as it is considered by the management that future taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilized. No deferred tax asset
has been recognized in respect of the remaining HK$833 million (31 August
2011: HK$548 million) tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. As at 31 December 2012, of the above tax losses, an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$475 million (31 August 2011: HK$432 million)
can be carried forward for five years following the period/year when the

losses were incurred. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31 December 2012, the Group had other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$23 million (31 August 2011:
HK$90 million) in respect of unrealized gain on transfer of plant and
equipment between subsidiaries, unrealized profit on inventories, allowance
for doubtful debts and inventories and interest capitalization. No deferred
tax asset has been recognized in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not certain that taxable profits will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

18. IEFERL 1B (&)
2012128318 A"EBE T AERKERRE

R B9 AR A B I1E &5 18 40 %3837,000,0007% T (2011
F8H31H : 552,000,000/ Jv) ° M M EEEH L
4,000,0007%& 7t (2011488318 : 4,000,000/ 7T) B
BRA—BELHBEE LA QAE TH
BARMELENBESE REEEZERAR
RRNWERBBA G TEF LR BBB KT
B9 5% 18 /55 18 5833,000,00058 7T (2011888318
548,000,0005% 7t ) B >k 82 78 B #% 2R #9 B R SRR M
REBARELERIEEE - R20125F128318 >
EiBiEE B o B £ E849475,000,00078 7T (2011
F8H31H : 432,000,000 7t) AIRE £ FHIEH
B/ FEREFSTF o H B EE IS &R
17 o

LS 20125128318 NEBRHBE AR Z
BHERREFABRNIRERNE FENRER
M RERFEBBURINEMCFEEENEM
A 0 E B 2= 2 %9 523,000,000 7T (2011488
31H 190,000,000 7T) ° H R AEHEEERREAF
ARSI AT HR B R 2R HORERREERT
HHERERRBELERBEE -
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18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
According to the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding

income tax will be imposed on dividends relating to profits earned in
the calendar year 2008 onwards to foreign investors for the companies
established in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong and holds
at least 25% of the equity interest in the PRC company, reduced rate of
5% will be applied. Deferred tax has been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences attributable to
such profits amounting to HK$11,200,000 (31 August 2011: HK$25,200,000).
Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to retained
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$89,907,000 (31 August 2011:
HK$67,817,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For an overseas subsidiary, the Group provided the deferred tax in full in
respect of the withholding tax attributable to the undistributed profits of
HK$13,780,000 (31 August 2011: HK$12,818,000). The rate applied is the

respective domestic income tax rate.

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The

following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for reporting purposes:

18. IEFEF I8 (4&)
BIEC2FERE 5200818108 ROHE

BRI A B B35 MR B E T 3 B A 20085F [ BA 1%
FENBREBHREBEHSM0NEMNFTER -
REBEMA L BFEHEA D ATZD25%EEH
REE - BEAERB X% HZEBFENL
NERZEENGREVBBRRELEEH BER
511,200,000 7T (201158 H31H : 25,200,000/
7U) o RSB AT LU B A = R E 2 R
MEBRERRIUERARGRISED R K
AP B B A B 7 B R 2 B R Z $89,907,000
BT (20114 8H31H : 67,817,00058 7t) FE 4R & 8
R AEHIELERIERE -

R—EEIMELARME » AEEEHRARD IR
F113,780,0007% 7t (201148 H31H : 12,818,000
) ZENB YA RELEHERE -FMERZ
REAEBZMGAERE-

BEEUBRRRNZIIME - & TEEREE
EREBECHEE - UTEHREHRM S HWIELHREA
RERR DA

At At

31 December 31 August

2012 2011

R20124 20115

12A31H 8H31H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FET
Deferred tax assets EEBBEE (28,517) (25,689)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBEEE 2,380 3,055
(26,137) (22,634)




Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 BA7&RaRMIEE

31 December 2012 20128128318

18. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 18. JEFEBL A (80
THE COMPANY VNN |
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
RAKIATE BIEER wE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKs'000
FET FET FET
At 1 September 2010 20109818 106 (106) -
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REBERNR (Gt A) 162 (162) -
At 31 August 2011 72011488318 268 (268) -
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REBEZEARMER(GTA) 157 (157) -
At 31 December 2012 720125128318 425 (425) -
As at 31 December 2012, the Company had unused tax losses of 20125128318 » A QA A BIEIKSE AR R B F
HK$4,288,000 (31 August 2011: HK$2,538,000) available for offset against By 5 3B PR B4 TE 5 18 54,288,00038 7T (2011468 8 31
future profits. A deferred tax has been recognized in respect of HK$2,578,000 A : 2,538,000 JT) ° Rt Itk IE E51E o §92,578,0005E
(31 August 2011: HK$1,630,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has 7t (20114%8H31H : 1,630,000/ jt) EMA A —
been recognized in respect of the remaining HK$1,710,000 (31 August 2011: THIRESERLIE - 82T IR IEE5381,710,00058 7T (2011
HK$908,000) tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. #£8H31H : 908,000 Jt) B 7k BETE A 45 3R 19 & F
The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. RKEMAEERALBELERIBERE - BIIBEIE 8L

WL -
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19. INVESTMENT IN LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES
During the 16 months period ended 31 December 2012, the Group entered

into contracts with two insurance companies of which contain life insurance
policies to insure against the death of certain key members of management
of the Group, with an aggregate insured sum of approximately US$18.8
million (equivalent to approximately HK$145.8 million). Under these
contracts, the beneficiary and policy holder is the Company. The Company
has made upfront payments of HK$36,178,000 during the current period.
The monthly insurance costs and administrative charges determined by the
insurance companies will be deducted from the account value. The insurers
will declare interest (including the guaranteed interest) to the Company

on a monthly basis, based on the amount of account value, at a rate to be

19. AERBREZRE
B ZE2012F12831H 1L16f@ B IR - REBEW

BREARILEHN  EREEASRKREBRE
AREEETEIEEEBREZGRERTR
R BRRESEEEHH 5188000003 7T (HHERH
145,800,000 7T) - RIEZE AN THEARR
BREBARRAT - R ARAAIBRE S XSHEM
2 £36,1780008 T - B A X HRERRE LD
RAEENTHERERESEERNR - RED
AEAURERFERREMBREZFE[R
DNEERFAE (BERENR) - AEENEEE
MER012F12A7AEE  AREEEKZR

determined at their own discretion. One of the key members left the Group AEHRAHMEFERS -
on 7 December 2012 and the Group is in the process of changing the life
insured person to the other key member(s).
20. INVENTORIES 20. #&
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
R20125F 20115
12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Spare parts &Y 92,263 98,941
Raw materials RE 577,267 787,348
Work-in-progress S A 300,907 397,242
Finished goods SR @ 370,116 399,923
1,340,553 1,683,454
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

21. EEREBEWRARE

At At
31 December 31 August

2012 2011

R20124 20114

124318 8H31H

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Trade receivables X RWFRIE 1,045,456 1,116,780
Bills receivables SEEWRIE 255,364 187,184
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREME (40,902) (28,223)
1,259,918 1,275,741

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 90 days to its trade
customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables

based on the payment due date net of allowance for doubtful debts:

REBMRMTIG0RZORBAFHEERF o
EERFEERVTUARBARIY A (BNKR
SREMB) MBRER DATWT -

At At
31 December 31 August

2012 2011

20124 20114

12A31H 8HA31H

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FExT

Not yet due R E|Hf 764,880 919,114
Overdue 1-30 days HEHI-30K 265,530 179,692
Overdue 31-60 days EH#31-60K 108,753 109,931
Overdue >60 days BB Be0X 120,755 67,004
1,259,918 1,275,741

In last year, the Group discounted part of its bills receivables with full
recourse to a bank. In the event of default by the debtors, the Group is
obliged to pay the bank the amount in default. Interest is charged at 6.06%

on the proceeds received from the bank until the date the debtors pay.

REF  AEBEEHBHEKEERNEF—BR7T
TBEE2EHEBREN - HEBAEN  ~EEHE
EERITXFEN SR WEREBRERITHEAT
BRIEREZEER AEENIE R B 1E126.06%5 B ©
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The discounting transactions do not meet the requirements in HKAS 39 for
de-recognition of financial assets as the Group retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the discounted trade debts. At 31 August
2011, bills receivables of HK$8,735,000 continued to be recognized in the
Group’s financial statements even though they have been legally transferred
to the bank. The proceeds of the discounting transactions were included in
borrowings as asset-backed financing (note 31) until the bills receivables are
collected or the Group settles any losses suffered by the bank. At 31 August
2011, the asset-backed financing liability amounted to HK$8,735,000.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not discount any of its trade and

bills receivables to any banks.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are made
to customers with satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. Trade receivables that are

neither past due nor impaired have good track records with the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$374,283,000 (31 August 2011:
HK$289,623,000) which were past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are either
settled subsequently or still considered recoverable based on the historical

experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

21. EXRZEBEWIRE (&)
HRAEERETHREEBEHREBERENERXR
HHREBRER ALBEREISUAFEESS
FTERSEIVR AR ERIASMEENRE - B
201158 H31H » BRI 58,735,000 TE &
EEBETRT MEEENAEEN B RKE
REERE - BERBHAEBREDFAEES
EEERRBE (HF31)  EEKREEREES
AEBBEBTMERZNEKRALE - R201158
A31H  EERRMEEE 587350008 T °

20126128318  AEBE W EEEARTHER
EXRRBRKE -

FEBRERETAHEFA  SFEREEEF
MEEEERAEHEERE - FEHENSH
FTRECBRENEF EFFEEREEHNTU
MY o A5 5 B B 42 26 A 7 ORI (B A0 & S PR WRRUR
BB RFEERE -

BREEAEEEXERZBEBIEZSRANNEKR
BRE HARME{E 5374,283,000/8 7T (20118688318 :
289,623,000 t) - ERMEH R BH > AR
FEEZURSEAEHAZSSHEONHEEEE
BB BELRDEATTHRDE - AEELERR
HE BB R EE AEELERZE AR
BRAERR -
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. ¥EREBRWRE (&)
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired are as follows: SRBMERRENEERRRRAOT :
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
R2012% 20114
12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Overdue 1-30 days BHR1-30K% 265,530 179,692
Overdue 31-60 days BIHA31-60K 108,753 109,931
374,283 289,623
No interest is charged on the overdue trade debtors. The Group has provided BEEERBWERERTTANE - REBC BB
fully for all trade receivables over 360 days because historical experience is 360K PT B EX£E NGBS HATIREE D
such that trade receivables that are past due beyond 360 days are generally HRBEERE R BIB60K /= E£E I
not recoverable. Trade receivables between 60 days and 360 days have been E—REEZIRE - 60Kk B360Kk 2B & X HE
provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts, determined by U FRIE IR AT EE N B I 2 ZBE XK
reference to past default experience. ERFEEE M AT IR S -
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows: RIEBE2EHOT :
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
R20125 20114
12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Balance at beginning of the period/year B E AR 28,223 47,845
Currency realignment S EELE (1) 323
Impairment loss recognized/(reversed) EEEWREZHEERL
on trade receivables, net BRSO (BE) FE 12,690 (8,245)
Amounts written-off as uncollectible MM TR E £ 8 (10) (11,700)

Balance at end of the period/year B ERER 40,902 28,223
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$40,902,000 (31 August
2011: HK$28,223,000) that are considered irrecoverable by management
after consideration of the credit quality of those individual customers, the
ongoing relationship with the Group and the ageing of those receivables.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

No allowance for doubtful debts has been provided or reversed for bills

receivables during the period/year.

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. EXRZEBEWIRE (&)
RIRBE B IR S H 4 8840,902,0005 T (201168
H318 28,223,000/ 7T ) BYE B 8 B & 3 FE WK
B REEBZRZSENEFNEEER - H
AEEFERRRZERBFENERRE  25H
ZERWFIBEEWE o REB UM ZEEER
BEEMIER -

FEWEERZEE,FEIBTRIBEEMR
BRI -

22, ENFIE - e R HEMEWRRIE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

AEH RAF
At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 2011 2012 2011
R2012F 20114 "2012%F 20114
12A31H 8H31H 12A31H 8A31H
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FAET FETT
Value-added tax recoverable AR EEER 21,672 65,967 = -
Tax Reserve Certificates L 34,600 24,600 3,000 2,000

Deposits, prepayments e BEARER

and other receivables H b IR IR 110,132 123,626 6,497 4,666
166,404 214,193 9,497 6,666
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23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

23. fTESWMIA

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
r5E NG
Current Non-current Current Non-current
At At At At At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 20 2012 201 2012 201 2012 20m
R02E  RoonE R0nE RonE R0nE RonE R0nE RanE
12A31 8 8A31H 12A31 8 8A31H 128318 8A31H 12A31 8 8A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T A TEn - TET A7 TET A
Derivative financial assets fTEEREE
Foreign currency forward contracts R EISNE A4 2,044 4984 - - 1,901 - - -
Derivative financial liabilities fTEcmaE
Foreign currency forward contracts ~ EEISNE AL 515 108 - - 515 - - -
Interest rate swaps FlzEm 14,522 - - 45,583 14,522 - - 45,583
15,037 108 - 45,583 15,037 - - 45,583
The principal terms of the Group's foreign currency forward contracts RBEBL > FEBHEKRIPHEPINEEGHZ
outstanding at the end of the reporting period are as follows: FEBRRWOT ¢
Notional amount Currency conversion HEEZH BEHBgg
At 31 December 2012: 72012%12A318 :
33 contracts to sell USD59,450,000 USD1:RMB6.2336 to 6.4470 BRHEHEH 1E 7T 56.2336F
in total* 59,450,000 % JT Y & #9* 6.4470 A R
4 contracts to sell USD1,680,000 USD1:RMB6.3125 to 6.3500 MPBEHEH 1E T 7631258
in total 1,680,000 ETTHE H 6.3500 A R &
At 31 August 2011: 7A201158H31H :
43 contracts to sell USD62,335,387 USD1:RMB6.3522 to 6.5097 BHEHEH 1E T H63522F
in total 62335387 ETMNEHN 6.5097 A R #E
1 contract to buy USD1,020,168 USD1:RMB6.3715 MPBEAEH 1EnH
in total 1,020,168 ETTMHE X 63715 ARHE

The above foreign currency forward contracts will mature within one year

from the end of the reporting period.

8-

THRERIESHBEREDRES —F R
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23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The principal terms of the Group's interest rate swaps outstanding at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:
Notional amount Interest rate swaps
At 31 December 2012:

2 contracts with HK$910,000,000 From Hong Kong Interbank Offered

in total* Rate (“HIBOR”) to fixed rates ranging

from 3.65% to 3.95%

At 31 August 2011:
2 contracts with HK$960,000,000 From HIBOR to fixed rates ranging

in total* from 2.63% to 3.95%

* These contracts are entered into by the Company.

The above interest rate swap contracts will mature within one year (31

August 2011: two years) from the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of the above derivative instruments are calculated in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on quoted
forward exchange rates and discounted cash flow analysis based on the
applicable yield curves of interest rates which were provided by counterparty

financial institutions.

24. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits and bank balances carry market interest rates

ranging from 0.01% to 4.40% (31 August 2011: 0.01% to 5.50%) per annum.

23. fTAEE€RIA (#E)
REBEBE AEENRIMHAREHZTE
BHRMT

HESE F 2= 55 5
7A20125F12831H :
2194 $£910,000,000 & 7T HEBRTRZE
K& #x wE (&HBRT
EFXFENES
EENF3.65%
%3.95%
2011588310 :
2134 $£960,000,00058 7T HEBRTRE
K& #* KREEZEBN
F2.63%ZE3.95%
* HEEHNBADTETL -
FMARBEREOE B REPLRETE Q0N EF

8A31H 1 2F)AEIH] -

FRTETANATPEEDREAREEBES

I BASS 3 75 B S M AR 1R AH A0 38 P R 2R UL 3 h AR P
BENTSEREZRBRRESRESTEEM
E

24, EHRITIFER
£

HHRITERRBITERD RO EENENT

0.01%Z4.40% (201158 A31H : 0.01%ZE5.50%) 5t

AUARRITERRER

B o

BN
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

25 EEREBENRIE

At At

31 December 31 August

2012 2011

20124 20114

12A31H 8H31H

HK$’000 HKS$’000

FET FET

Trade payables EEEMARIE 488,414 418,672
Bills payables ERENRIE 295,298 279,761
783,712 698,433

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based on the payment

EXRBNFRRNREHMEANRBRITOT

due date:
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
20125 20115
12A31H 8HA31H
HK$’000 HK$000
FETT FET
Not yet due RENHA 405,062 363,886
Overdue 1-30 days HHI-30K 62,641 26,801
Overdue 31-60 days BHA31-60K 10,440 6,550
Overdue >60 days BHEBBe0X 10,271 21,435
488,414 418,672

All the bills payables of the Group are not yet due at the end of the reporting

period.

The average credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to 120
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure

that payables are within the credit time frame.

RBERL  FEEZRERBRAFEG KD
/HH o

BENTHEEPRR0RE0KR - AEBE R
B BRERERRE  UBEREMSRIGERE
EHIRRA -
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 6. Hit B RIERETERA
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE b NN
At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 2011 2012 2011
H2012F 20114 R2012%F 20115
12A31H 8A31H 12A31H 8A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Other payables HAihE{FRIE 118,928 149,248 334 290
Accruals EstE A 223,232 171,413 24,712 18,452
342,160 320,661 25,046 18,742

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

28. CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
On 27 April 2009, Folktune, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,

entered into an agreement with certain non-controlling shareholders of
Dongguan Fuan Textiles Limited (“Dongguan Fuan”) (the “Transferors”)
to acquire from the Transferors in aggregate 39% of the equity interests
in Dongguan Fuan at a total consideration of HK$77,326,205 (the “Share
Transfer Agreement”). Upon completion of the Share Transfer Agreement in

2009, Dongguan Fuan became a 90% owned subsidiary of the Company.

Pursuant to the Share Transfer Agreement, the consideration was payable
by five installments, unsecured and interest-free. The fair value of the
deferred consideration at the date of initial recognition was determined
as HK$74,433,000 based on the estimated future cash flows by applying a
discount rate of 3.7% per annum. In last year, an amount of HK$35,630,000
was settled by the Group. During the current period, the remaining balance

of HK$23,501,000 was fully settled.

Details of the above transaction are set out in the circular of the Company

dated 30 July 2009.

27. RFEZRRRRE

ZERBRWERT REREEREE

28. ERRE

72009F48270 A ATz —BE2EWNE A A
BRERTRIHBEORERLT (RERZD
ETHERBRR(EEL DT LR LERE
77,326,2058 STt EE L WB R RER R EF39%
ZBRAFE S ([REEERZ]  R20095F TR
BHEZEHZRE  RERZHALRRQREF0%E
wmZMBAT -

RIEREEZER S REISH XN HEKF
REE RUSHEIABBZEERBEZLFE
B 474433,0008 T DRBEAEFRRRERERE
RUBFRIINAE -REF  AEBEE X
35,630,000 7T © RAHA [ - 8% #H23,501,00078 JT

SERHEE -

BRLIRR S Z2F#EEE#NA D E B B A2009F
7B30BZBRA



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 BA7&RaRMIEE

31 December 2012 20128128318

29. DEFERRED INCOME 29, IR A
In prior years, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$72,912,000 RBAFE  AEEZ W —BB/FHEE72,912,000
for the purchase of certain assets, which had been deferred to recognize B ARBERETEE  BHEREKMEBMK
as income over the useful lives of the relevant assets upon the fulfillment HEREBEEFRFHERARA -BHR B
of the relevant conditions. An amount of HK$1,946,000 (31 August #1,946,00078 7T (201198 H31H : 1,458,000/8 JT)
2011: HK$1,458,000) was amortized as income during the period, with a BEBUA  YCHRALHIBRAZELERBEEE
corresponding adjustment to deferred tax assets previously recognized. HAEFE TR o
30. RESTRUCTURING PROVISIONS 30. EAHERE
HKS$'000
FET
At 1 September 2010 72010598 1H 730
Utilization of provision ERARE (730)
At 31 August 2011 and 31 December 2012 201158 A31H K2012%F12H31H -
Restructuring provision was made in relation to the closure plan of BEHABE I BT FER =B 2T &I m/E

Dongguan Fuan in prior years. The provision was fully utilized in last year. H o BEEBECNEEERYHA -
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31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS/BANK

31. RITREMEE RITEX

OVERDRAFTS
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEHE RAF
At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 2011 2012 2011
20125 20114 20125 20115
12A31H 8H31H 12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Secured borrowings: BIRBEE
Bank loans (note (a)) RITER (M) 34,207 - 14,551 -
Import bills loans (note (a)) EOBER (KiEE) 226,136 - = -
Discounted bills with recourse (note (a)) E3BZREZBRERE (M:2E) - 8,735 - -
Unsecured borrowings: EIEREE
Bank loans RITERN 841,594 1,945,663 581,817 1,463,554
Import bills loans EOEX 366,256 244,988 = -
Bank overdrafts RITEX 7,751 - - -
Other loan (note (b)) HE R (HizEb) 7,129 - 7,129 -
1,483,073 2,199,386 603,497 1,463,554
Repayable as follows: ARTHIHREERE
On demand or within one year EEREERIFR 1,242,486 1,443,532 362,910 761,916
More than one year, but not 1E L EERRIB2EF
exceeding two years 240,587 481,446 240,587 427,230
More than two years, but not 2F LA FERBIBSE
exceeding five years - 274,408 - 274,408
1,483,073 2,199,386 603,497 1,463,554
Less: Amounts repayable on demand & : FEEREEH
or due within one year shown 1FRNEHEHE
under current liabilities EBEARBEEER
—bank borrowings due within —RITEEVFREIH
one year (1,229,423) (1,443,532) (357,598) (761,916)
—other loan due within one year —Hth BRI FREZIEH
(note (b)) (R1&£ b)) (5,312) - (5,312) -
—bank overdrafts —RITEX (7,751) - - -
Amounts due after one year RIS 240,587 755,854 240,587 701,638
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31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS/BANK
OVERDRAFTS (continued)

Notes:

(@)  Bank loans of HK$34,207,000 and import bills loans of HK$226,316,000 (31
August 2011: Nil) are secured by certain life insurance policies as detailed in note
19. The discounted bills of HK$ Nil (31 August 2011: HK$8,735,000) are secured

by the corresponding bills receivables as disclosed in note 21.

(b)  During the reporting period, the Group obtained an unsecured other loan from

an independent third party, charged at 3.99% per annum.

The bank borrowings of the Group and the Company are mainly variable rate
borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR plus a spread, ranging from 0.4%
to 3.35% (31 August 2011: 0.4% to 2.3%) or London Interbank Offered Rate
plus a spread, ranging from 1.30% to 3.0% (31 August 2011: 1.0% to 2.1%)
per annum in Hong Kong or 100% to 110% (31 August 2011: 100%) of the
People’s Bank of China Base Lending Rate in the PRC. The average effective
interest rates of the bank borrowings of the Group and the Company
are 3.03% and 2.94% (31 August 2011: 2.58% and 2.04%) per annum,
respectively. Some other bank borrowings of the Group carry interest at
fixed-rates ranging from 1.35% to 7.26% (31 August 2011: 2.3% to 6.7%) per

annum.

Discounted bills as at 31 August 2011 represent bills discounted to a bank

with recourse. The fixed interest rate applied is 6.06% per annum.

In addition, the average effective interest rate of the bank overdrafts of the

Group was 2.47% per annum for the period ended 31 December 2012.

Pursuant to the Group’s banking facilities letter, the Group was required to
maintain sufficient solvency ratio. As at 31 December 2012, the Group was
in breach of the bank loans covenant. The Group obtained waiver letters in
relation to the breach of covenant for the bank loans from relevant banks
and the lenders have agreed not to demand payment as a consequence of

the breach as at 31 December 2012.

31. RITREMMEE RITEX (8

ke
(@)  #R1TE (34,207,000 7T & #E O & 5%226,316,00078
JC(2011F8H31H « &) D UUE T ASRBREE

BIEA  FBHENKE19 - BREZEEZ BT (2011
F8H31H : 8735000/ 5t) JI LAHREFE R E B 1E
BIEA > SHRMEE21HE -

(b) RBEEHE AEEBIEBLE=FRHAEIEK
HEMER » FHEH3.99% e

AEBRAADNVRITEETERAZEMEE R
ERDEEBRITBEREMERENFEFERZE
0.4%%3.35% (2011 8H31H : 04%%2.3%) =X &
FRTREREM LEEEN FFEFIE130%FE3.0%
(201158 A31H 1 1.0%E2.1%) 5T B > RRFE A
HEARBITEEERFIZE100%Z110% (20115
8H31H : 100%) 5t & - AEBER A AR RTEE
ZEH BB FE R ZE S Al 53.03%8%2.94% (20115
8H31H @ 2.58%%2.04%) o & B0 H MR 1T
BETDIREEFFEAN F1.35%%7.26% (201158
B318 : 23%%6.7%) 5t & ©

R0 F8AA R EE NEA FIRITASE
REZBNRERE - FriRA2EEFEFEE6.06% °

BEo - B E20125F 128318 LB - NEERTT
EXHFHERERNRE247% -

BREAEENRITHERMY  AEBAESZEH
HIEBE D EE 2 » 12012128310 - AEEE
REIBITERRZY - R20125128310  AEEF
EHERITEFERZANSENSHBRITHNRSR
EE MERAREBEREHEERINKER
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. A
Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.20 each Amount
BREE020EBTZEBRDHE tH
At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 20M 2012 2011
R2012% 20116 R2012% R20115
12A31H 8H31H 12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Authorized: EERK
At beginning and end of the period/year RREE/ FERBRALER  1,400,000,000  1,400,000,000 280,000 280,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAZKRAK:
At beginning of the period/year ARHIR, FERBE 794,010,960 794,010,960 158,802 158,802
Issue of shares BOTRG 409,036,000 - 81,807 -
At the end of the period/year REBE FERER 1,203,046,960 794,010,960 240,609 158,802
On 6 June 2012, the Company allotted and issued a total of 409,036,000 M20126F686H » AARRBRI1.25B T 2 EHE
shares of HK$0.2 each at the price of HK$1.25 per share to Yieldfull, a il 3% K 2% 17 & $£409,036,0008% T AR E H0.28 7T Z
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by B3 FYieldfull — KRR EBREZHEHESTMR L
Chinatex, a stated-owned enterprise under the direct supervision and ZAF BRHEZEREE MRS —REAFTEH
administration of, and is beneficially owned by, the State-owned Assets B EE SR EEE R ECEEEEREE
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of the UREBZEEZEELE -ZERMRAEFE
PRC. These shares rank pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue. HEHMEBRITROZERSER - BERTR
Immediately after the issue of shares, there were 1,203,046,960 shares in 7% KNAFE 1T IR 11,203,046,9608% M
issue and Chinatex held approximately 34% of the issued share capital of the FHFEARATCBITRAL34%  WHRAERD

Company and became the single largest shareholder of the Company. RIZE—BRRARE-
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The 2002 Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”), which
was adopted by the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 25 January 2002. The 2002 Scheme was expired on 24 January 2012.
The primary purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible mean of giving incentives to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the employees and for such
other purposes as the board of directors of the Company may approve from
time to time. Under the 2002 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may offer to full time employees, including full time executive directors, of
the Company and/or its subsidiaries who have completed the probation
period options to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with
the terms of the 2002 Scheme for the consideration of HK$1 for each lot
of share options granted. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2002 Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval
of the 2002 Scheme. The Company may seek approval from shareholders
of the Company in general meeting to refresh the 10% limit. In addition,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed under the Listing
Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any employee in
any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue, subject to approval from shareholders of the
Company. Options granted must be taken within 28 days of the date of grant
or such longer or shorter period as the board of directors of the Company
may think fit. The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised is one year or such other period as the board of
directors of the Company may think fit commencing from the date of grant
(“Holdup period”). An option period, at the absolute discretion of the board
of directors of the Company, shall commence on the expiry of the Holdup
period and expire no later than the 10th anniversary of the date of grant.
The exercise price is determined by the board of directors of the Company

and will be at least the highest of the followings:

33. MR AEBRZHARRS
2002F 51 &)

RAEEE —EERE 2 ([20025 5T 8]1) T3
BARQAR2002F1 8258 BT 2RRENAE
£ & © 20025 7+ EIE R20125F1 8248 & ©
0025 EINEEEMABERQRARES S

HE - RE R BmER S RRMEEF R
DAAEBSEFHHMAENEMENTM SR —E
FIEL I o IRIB2002F 58 KRR ESE AR
2002F S EINRFIBEF AR AR,/ REWE L A
EBBRAPNIRBES (BEZBHTES)
BREUIABARTRN  BREZBRENK
BRIB T - RIB2002F 5 MR ENBREM
BITHROEE B TERIB2002FBRE
BIEMEZEANEBTROEEMNI0% KA F
AERRAE LSRRRHMAE - BH10%H L
PR o HE S o ARIF2002F FHEI R A D REM HAb B
PRAEFT B R H B RITEN B RERETEm
THROEE  EZIAEBBAARRTKERT
B 15 B B 930% (RARIE EFRAIBTHFNES £
PR) o BREEMRRALAEI - A1 8 &R EM2
BABER - HRTEEERBRENKROES
BRETHEBARRNTBECHITROLENI% B
EXECEBREREAL8ARA TR TANESE
ARERAHEENEMRRERBIE B NN FTE
BEFHERE - BEEXEASIREBEHEARE
BAAREZEUAERABENHMERE (585
HDHEBRER  AELRE - REHAXL
DNERESGRBEMBERET  SHBEHER
HZHABHERTERELBRI0BFER - 176
BEHAQNRESSEERTE BLBEAUTIEHN
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
The 2002 Scheme (continued)

(@) the closing price of shares at the date of grant of a share option;

(b) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of a share.

Under the 2002 Scheme, 22,400,000 options were granted on 17 September
2010. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before the date
of grant was HK$1.29. Details of the movements of those options and other

information of the grant are set out below.

The 2011 Scheme

On 20 January 2011, the 2002 Scheme was early terminated and the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”) pursuant
to a resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting held on the
same date. Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company

dated 10 December 2010.

The terms and conditions of the 2011 Scheme are basically the same as
those of the 2002 Scheme except that the eligible participants of the
2011 Scheme include, among others, directors and full-time or part-time
employees whereas the eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme cover only
directors and full-time employees. In addition, these is no specific period
for accepting the share options granted and also no specific Holdup period,
which are determined by the board of directors upon the grant of share

options as they think as appropriate.

The 2011 Scheme will expire on 20 January 2021.

Under the 2011 Scheme, share options of 3,352,000 and 23,045,000 were
granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011, respectively. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates of grant were

HK$1.80 and HK$1.21, respectively.

33. LRI B/RER AR S ()

2002F 5+ &l ()
(@ BONRBRERLEBHWRSE

b) BRORBREREE ZASEEEXENTY
WHE R

0 RHOWSRKREE-

BI52002F 5T &> E R2010F9H 178 & H
22,400,000 R E - AL T RO R BEER LB
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BREHZHEMERFHIINR T -

20115F 508

72011518208 » 2002F 5t EIE WAL > M
AARERBEREHRTZRREIRELES
Z—HERBRRN—IEIBRES 8 ([20115F 5
21 - BEAFFBEE RN A AR B ER20105F12810
HZRER -

20115 5 &) Z R AR R AR SLE A £ B220024F 5 248
B H20NFHE2EERSREERE (HPE
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 33. MROAER ZARK S (E)
(continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options TRBEEARDARE2002FF5 B R 2011FEFEE
granted under the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme. REBREZSEHER -
Outstanding Outstanding
at  Transferred Forfeited at
Exercise 1 September during during 31 December
Scheme Date of grant price 2011 the period the period 2012
R2011E R2012F
9A1H 12A31H
e RHAH e HATE HRERAR HRERYK i R AT

Category 1: Directors

F1E ES
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - - 4,600,000
ERRELE 2002 2010598178 12987
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
20115 20114 8H18H 12187
Mr. HA Hon Kuen 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - -
BEELLE 2002 201059R17H 1298 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,000,000 (3,000,000) - -
201MF  2011F8718H 12187
Dr. YEN Gordon 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - - 4,600,000
BE®REBL 2002F  2010F9817H 1298 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
20114 2011488 18H 12187
Total Directors EE & 20,800,000 (5,000,000) - 15,800,000
Category 2: Employees 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 6,600,000 2,000,000 (2,000,000) 6,600,000
EpL =] 2002 201098178 1297
2011 18 May 2011 HK$1.91 3,352,000 - (718,000) 2,634,000
20115 2011458188 19187
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 13,445,000 3,000,000 (4,245000) 12,200,000
201MF 201185 18H 12187
Total Employees {EE & £ 23,397,000 5,000,000 (6,963,000) 21,434,000
Two categories M 38 Bl & £ 44,197,000 - (6,963,000) 37,234,000

Exercisable at the end of the period
REERAFTE - 5,380,000
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 33. LROAER ZARK S (&)
(continued)
Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Forfeited at
Exercise 1 September during during 31 August
Scheme Date of grant price 2010 the year the year 2011
142010%F R2011%F
9A1H 8A31H
E RHAS TEEE HATE FRERE FRERK KT

Category 1: Directors

F1E ES
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 - 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
ERTELE 2002 2010F9A178 1298 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 - 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
20114 201148H18H 12187
Mr. HA Hon Kuen 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
BEEREE 2002 2010F9A178 1298 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
20114 201148H18H 12187
Dr. YEN Gordon 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 - 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
BE#EL 2002 2010F9A178 1298 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 - 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
20115 20114 8H18H 12187
Total Directors EE & £ - 20,800,000 - 20,800,000
Category 2: Employees 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 - 11,200,000 (4,600,000 6,600,000
%28 ES 2002 201098178 12987
2011 18 May 2011 HK$1.91 - 3,352,000 - 3,352,000
20114 2011858 18H 19187
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 - 13445000 - 13,445,000
20114 2011485 18H 12187
Total Employees S A £ - 27,997,000 (4,600,000) 23,397,000
Two categories A8 Bl A £ - 48,797,000 (46000000 44,197,000
Exercisable at the end of the year N/A -

REERTFITE TER
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Share options granted on 17 September 2010 under the 2002 Scheme are

exercisable during the period from 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 in three

tranches, being

. 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 (up to 30.00% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

. 17 March 2015 to 17 March 2017 (up to 60.00% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

. 17 March 2016 to 17 March 2017 (all share options granted are

exercisable)
Share options granted on 18 May 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are
exercisable during the period from 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 in three

tranches, being

. 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 (up to 32.52% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

. 18 May 2013 to 17 May 2015 (up to 65.04% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

. 18 May 2014 to 17 May 2015 (all share options granted are exercisable)

33. URDABERBZHARR S (&)

201098178 1R 152002 T 2B H 2 B IR #E
A HA201453 8178 £201753 417 B Hi R 2 318 B
ERF LAITfE - BD

. 2014F3817B 2017838178 (R 42
2 H B8 IR HE 2 30.00% 7] T 1T 1)

. 2015%F3A17B £2017F38178 (BZ 4L C
2 H B8 IR HE 2 60.00% 7] T 1T 1)

. 2016538178 £2017F38178 (FrBEC &
B2 BRER F1T4)

2011 FESB18A RIB20MFH BB HE 2 BRE
AT 201255 8188 £201555 8 17 B i & 2 31E b
E&F LA1THE - BD

. 201258188 2015658178 (B &4 E
= H BB R E 232.52% 0] F{T1E)

201358180 £201555817H (BZ 4B
12 H BB IR 265.04%7] T 1T1E)

20145581880 £2015558178 (FfrEE &
2 B F1TE)
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Share options granted on 18 August 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are

exercisable by 2 batches as follows:

Batch 1: 15,900,000 share options are exercisable during the period from 19

August 2012 to 18 August 2017 in five tranches, being

19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017 (up to 20.00% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

19 August 2013 to 18 August 2017 (up to 40.00% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

19 August 2014 to 18 August 2017 (up to 60.00% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

19 August 2015 to 18 August 2017 (up to 80.00% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

19 August 2016 to 18 August 2017 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

Batch 2: 7,145,000 share options are exercisable during the period from 19

August 2012 to 18 August 2015 in three tranches, being

19 August 2012 to 18 August 2015 (up to 34.15% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

19 August 2013 to 18 August 2015 (up to 68.31% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

19 August 2014 to 18 August 2015 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

33. LRI B/RER AR S ()

R2011F8H18A RIF201F T &I H 2 BIRAE
A28 T BAATRE  EAAT

14k © 15,900,00017 8 R BE AT A 20128 H19H &
201758 B 18 A HAM O 5B P B F LA1TfE - BD

. 201258H198 £20175F8H 18R (&1L E
2 H B8 IR #E 2 20.00% 7] T 1T 1)

. 2013F8H198 £2017%8H18H (R & B
2 H B8 IR #E 2 40.00% 7] T 1T 1)

2014F8H190 £201758H18H (R Z 1 E
2 H BB IR #E 260.00% 7] T 1T 1)

20158190 £2017%F8A18H (RZ Mk E
% H 88 IR 2 2.80.00% 7] T 1T 1)

. 2016%F8H198 £20175F8H 188 (FFrECE &
2 BN FITE)

SE24lt ¢ 7,145,00017 B8 IR #E AT ;7A20129F8H19R &
2015587 18 A HA R 2 3B B ER F LATT4E - ED

2012588190 £2015F8A18H (RZ Mk E
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. 2013FE8H19H £2015%F8H18R (&L
FHBREZ6831%0] F1T1E)

. 2014F8H19H £2015F8H18H (FrEE &%
B R FIT6E)
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The fair values of the share options were determined using the Binomial

model:

33. URODPDABEBZARR S (&)

BREZAFEEDEAZEARAEE

Under the
2002 Scheme

Share options

Under the
2011 Scheme

Share options

Under the
2011 Scheme

Share options

granted on granted on granted on

17 September 18 May 18 August

2010 2011 2011

R #E20025F 5+ & RIE2011F 58 RIE2011F5HE

72010F9H17H 7201165 818H 7201148H18H

ERHBRE ERHBRE ERHBERE

Number of options BREHR 22,400,000 3,352,000 23,045,000
Grant date fair value REABMZATEE HK$15,812,00078 JT HK$2,718,000/ 7T  HK$13,156,0007% 7T
Grant date share price REBHZRE HKS$1.2978 7T HK$1.8078 7T HK$1.2138 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$1.2958 7T HK$1.9158 7T HK$1.2138 7T
Suboptimal exercise factor RETERZ 2 2 2
Contractual life EHFH 6.5 yearstF 4 yearstF 4-6 yearst
Expected volatility FELHRIE 58.25% 66.97% 59.96%-66.16%
Dividend yield SES 0% 0.58% 0.88%
Risk-free interest rate 93 3 P R =R 1.59% 1.23% 0.48%-0.99%




EEEE(EE)FRYTS

2012 EE#

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 EA7&ERaRMIEE

31 December 2012 20125 12H831R

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Expected volatilities were determined by using historical volatilities of the
stock return of the Company over the previous 4 to 6.5 years. The risk-free
interest rates used in the model were determined based on the yield of
Hong Kong Sovereign Curve for the share options granted on 17 September
2010 and the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note for the share options
granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011.

The Group recognized the total expense of HK$10,268,000 (31 August 2011:
3,395,000) for the current period in relation to share options granted by the
Company. Out of the amount, HK$3,616,000 (31 August 2011: HK$1,783,000)

is related to the directors of the Company.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in profit and loss over
the remaining vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the share

options reserve.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the share
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an

option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

33. LRI B/RER AR S ()

EHREDRAAD B E4ZSFREL R
ZEBELREBEEE BAPARAZERBR =
Ti iR & & 78 3 £ i 4% [E] 3R E(yield of Hong Kong
Sovereign Curve) (Fi2010F9817H B R H 2 BIR
B)RBEBIEESBESERE (520115818
AR201158A18AER I 2 BRE) EE -

AEBRAHEERAQAARE 2 BRERD
#583210,268,0007& 7t (201158H31H : 3,395,000
B IL) 0 B 23,616,000/ 7T (201188 H31H :
1,783,000/ 70) AR B EEHEF ©
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34. RESERVES 34. f#
THE COMPANY AT
Capital Share
Share  redemption options Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
& BRE
RAEE BERE e RERA ®E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FiET FET FiET
At 1 September 2010 20109818 197,124 210 - 619,561 816,895
Profit and total comprehensive REERAR2ARGLAE
income for the year - - - 16,897 16,897
Equity-settled share-based payments NRREEEURGARE AR - - 3,395 - 3,395
Dividend recognized as distribution ERRIRZKRE - - - (7,940) (7,940)
At 31 August 2011 R2011E8A31H 197,124 210 3,395 628,518 829,247
Loss and total comprehensive expenses ~ RHIEEERZEBLAE
for the period - - - (3,994) (3,994)
Equity-settled share-based payments NERZZEEURGAEE AR - - 10,268 - 10,268
Dividend recognized as distribution ERAPRZKE - - - (7,940) (7,940)
Issue of shares BITRG 429,488 - - - 429,488
Share issue expenses BHBITEL (5,.220) - - - (5,220)
At 31 December 2012 20128128310 621,392 210 13,663 616,584 1,251,849




BEEE(EE)FRLST 2012 FHFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 EA7&ERaRMIEE

31 December 2012 20125 12H831R

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35 EXEMER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will AEFBEBERACEN  ERBERAEEREE
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to BUFERE ANEENSEKEER ZEN
stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The BRETEH AREBEAZTIREAER -K~EE
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years. R R F — 5 o

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the AEENEREEBIEER (EREEME3 A
borrowings disclosed in note 31, and equity attributable to owners of the BRENEE) REAAREFAELERZ (BFEE
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. BITRARMEE) °

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-going AATEESREFEEERTERERE - EARE
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and —HD EEEZEEARNKARERANIEEER
the risks associated with the share capital. Based on recommendations of o RBESNER FAEEKEBRRERE -
the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the BOTHREBORMERBITHER UL EHEE
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the B -

issue of new debts.

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. €T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a S£RTAEER
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
i3 3 AT
At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 2011 2012 2011
201245 20114 20125 20115
12A31H 8H31H 12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets cREE
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHEEeREE
(Investment in life (AERBRE
insurance policies) ZHBE) 36,742 - 36,742 -
Loans and receivables (including ERREWTE(BF
cash and cash equivalents) B¢ RZERKREER) 2,502,818 2,467,782 3,672,463 3,543,842
Derivative financial instruments TEE®MTIA 2,044 4,984 1,901 -
Financial liabilities cRIAE
Amortized cost HsE A 2,393,212 3,056,424 2,171,498 2,494,808

Derivative financial instruments fTE€mMIA 15,037 45,691 15,037 45,583
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group and the Company include
investment in life insurance policies, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, amounts due from/to subsidiaries, bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, derivative financial instruments, trade and bills payables, other
payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, bank and other
borrowings and bank overdrafts. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure

appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk
Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency transactions, which

expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
The Group has entered into foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate

the risk.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities and derivative
financial instruments of the Group and the Company that are considered

significant by the management are as follows:

36. &R T & (&)

b) BHEREERERKE
AEERAAANEIBLAMIACEASRBR
BEYRE  SEREBREWEE - EMEKEE
WA R R M A TR « RITER
BORGRES FTEEMTE SEXRIERE
HERE ~ HABRET 08 - R IR R A OE -
BOREMESRRTES REEMIAZH
BERNEHETRE - BRI AEENAE
BEETSEAR EEEARRAZER) SE5E
BRABHESER - TXRIEBOAREZS
RBNRE EEEEERESZSEAR IR
1R T B A5 300 b R B B 4 6 o

miEE R

() E#EE

FEEETERBIMNERS  MAEEPRINE
[ B

FEBEEREZIERRE  UBRKEMNER
HWIREBEE B AEBCEITERMESY
BAR R 2 S mRS o

RBEHL  EEERRBEANFIKEARELD
ALUMNEIENEREEREBEERITESH
TEMNKREENT
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

36. €T A ()
b) HEEBREERERRKE (H)

Market risk (continued) i E kR (&)
(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) EiE g (45)
Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: EMEERER:
THE GROUP
rEH
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 2011 2012 2011
20124 20115 R20124 R2011E
12H31H 8H31H 12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
usb EYH 1,078,904 668,163 934,505 550,990
RMB ARHE 612,685 717,179 378,059 442,381
CAD e 2,480 12,730 - -
LKR Ett 112 5017 1,651 10,035
HK$ BT 35,848 4216 3,497 14,873
British Pound (“GBP") W 3,224 3,313 - -
THE COMPANY
AT
Assets Liabilities
&E af
At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 2011 2012 2011
R20125 20114 ®20124F 20114
12A31H 8H31H 12A31H 8A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
usb EYH 153,575 15,599 = -
RMB AR 89,715 61 - -
CAD mrw 1,632 4,522 - -
GBP W 3,178 3,240 - -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €@l T B (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) FEEAREEBZREEK(E)
Market risk (continued) Wi Ak (&)
(i) Currency risk (continued) (i) E¥ERE(E)
Derivative financial instruments: fTE€mI A
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEE ARRFH
At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 2011 2012 2011
A2012F 20114 A2012F 20115
12A31H 8H31H 12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HKS000 HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FHET
Derivative financial assets TESRMEE
Foreign currency forward BEAARBRES
contracts to buy RMB ETHEBMEEH
and sell USD 2,044 4,984 1,901 -
2,044 4,984 1,901 -
Derivative financial liabilities TEEMEE
Foreign currency forward BEAARBRER
contracts to buy RMB ETHEBMEEK
and sell USD 515 - 515 -
Foreign currency forward BHARBREA
contracts to sell RMB ETHEBMEEK
and buy USD - 108 - -

515 108 515 -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)  Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation of USD, RMB, CAD,
LKR, GBP and HK$ when such currencies are different from the relevant

group entities.

The following tables detail the sensitivity of the Group to a 5% increase and
decrease in the above foreign currencies against the functional currency
of the corresponding group entity, except for HKS against USD since HK$
is pegged to USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and derivative financial instruments
and adjusts their translation or fair value in the case of derivative financial
instruments at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. On
this basis, there will be a decrease/(an increase) in pre-tax loss for the period
where USD, RMB, CAD, LKR and GBP strengthen against the functional
currency of the corresponding group entity by 5%, and vice versa. The

analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.

36. &R T H (&)

b) HERREEEERBE(E)
5 B ()

() EHER ()

SURE 5
AEMIEPRET AR T EH - =
BRET(EESEEAREEERNIEE
W R EIRS) B0 BB o

TREMESRY CANE L AEEEERNEER
FHER I ESRHBURE » ARB TE X TE -
AEEBTRETRD -sRREAETEEEAER
HERNPERBREEEHEXRTESEZDN
FEFIRANSREL R - REDTEREE
REHUNEFIENER BB RITESRTIA
WRHRIES RN INE RSB ARABRERITE
EMITEZAFEE RUEE EXR - AR
W EERRELEEEEERINEER
FE5% - RHIBBAIEESEERD (M)
R2TR - BED IR0 FHERIREEET -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

36. £RL T B (&)
(b) BEEREEEERKE (E)

Market risk (continued) ™% m b ()
(i) Currency risk (continued) (i) E¥ERE(E)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BREDH (8)
Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: EEERERE:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE AR
At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 2011 2012 2011
20125 201146 20125 201145
12H31H 8H31H 12A31H 8H31H
HKs’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
Decrease/(increase) in =HBEHAEE
pre-tax loss for the period A ()
(2011: Increase/(decrease) in Q0NF : REEFRA
pre-tax profit for the year) ERE M CRA))
HKD against RMB BTREARYE 1,579 - = -
USD against RMB ENHARY 1 415 - -
USD against CAD ErHMT 1,328 1,471 = -
RMB against HK$ ARBEBT 11,537 13,740 4,486 3
CAD against USD mrxHERT 2 321 - -
CAD against HK$ R BT 122 315 82 226
LKR against USD EtZER (77) (251) - -
GBP against HK$ WEHET 161 166 159 162
14,653 16,177 4,727 391




EEEE(EE)FRYTS

201255

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 EA7&ERaRMIEE

31 December 2012 20125 12H831R

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

36. €T A ()
b) HEEBREERERRKE (H)

Market risk (continued) ™5 E (&)
(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) E¥ERE(E)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BEE D (E)
Derivative financial instruments: TELmT AR
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE AT
At At At At
31 December 31 August 31 December 31 August
2012 2011 2012 2011
720125 20114 20125 20114
124318 8H31H 12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET
Increase in pre-tax loss for the period 2 5 REI% A 548 18 b0
(2011: Increase/(decrease) in pre-tax QoNE : REEB AT
profit for the year) &,/ CRA))
Foreign currency forward contracts BEHARBREA
to sell RMB and buy USD ETWEBMEESH - 389 - -
Foreign currency forward contracts BEAARBRER
to buy RMB and sell USD ETHERMEGH (23,747) (23,862) (23,097) -

(ii)  Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company are mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk primarily in relation to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings. It is
the Group's policy to keep its bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so
as to minimize the fair value interest rate risk. The Group's cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the
Group’s Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings. In order to minimize
the risk, the Group entered into certain interest rate swaps to partially hedge

against its exposure to variable-rate bank borrowings.

(i) FE @R
AEERAQAFTNREREFNRE R FTEEZTE
WMITHEFREERHE - AEENBERMESHR
TRERFBRNERLUREQXFEERNZRM - &
EENRESRENERAREIEERREBRITE
ERERBASIBAEBUBTIIENEE - 5
PBRRER  AEBEEIE TREES URTFE
RATEENR R ETIGE -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ii)  Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for both non-derivative (included variable-rate borrowings
only as the directors consider the exposure on bank balances is not
significant) and derivative instruments at 31 August 2011 and 31 December
2012. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
(31 August 2011: 50) basis points increase or decrease in interest rate is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible change

in interest rates.

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been 50 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
and the Company’s pre-tax loss for the period would increase/decrease by
HK$6,238,000 and HK$3,001,000 (31 August 2011: decrease/increase in pre-
tax profits by HK$8,949,000 and HK$7,318,000), respectively.

For derivative financial instruments, if HIBOR had been 50 basis points higher
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s and the Company’s
pre-tax loss for the period would decrease by the same amount of
HK$2,235,000 (31 August 2011: increase in pre-tax profits by HK$8,192,000),

and vice versa.

36. ©E T A (&)

(b) HMERBEEBERIECE (&)

miEEE (&)

(i)  FFE @R (%)

BRE D

THBBRES N REFTEIR (BEREZEE
B FESAARRITESRIAEZRABIETE
R) RETET AER201158H31H8 K2012812831
ANFZREBET - BFEAIMIBRRRBEHL
MAEBENEEEBEEAFEBFERDARE
B-OEEEBEAERNTN2HRAERERIEHE M50
8 (2011588318 : 50f8) 2B M AR RXE
BEHARAESEE BT

RIESTERTHEEMS  MARLHA T Bs0E
B MABHMEBHERITE AXEERE
N EH = HEBRIEEAE D BIIE M, F 46,238,000
7 7T %.3,001,00058 7T (2011988318 : BLAT & F
> 18 hN8,949,00058 7T 1. 7,318,000 JT) ©

MOTESRIAME MEBRTEERSEL
FASoEER MABHEMEHAETTE AKX
SERFALARNRHBHRABEK RS HEE
82,235,000/ 7T (201158 A318 © B A1 2 FI15
8,192,000/ 7T) » R ZIRHA ©
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the maximum exposure to credit risk by the Group
and the Company which will cause a financial loss due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees provided is

arising from:

. the carrying amounts of the recognized financial assets as stated in the

statements of financial position; and

. the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees

issued by the Company as disclosed in note 39.

In order to manage the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. Credit sales of products are only made to customers
with good credit quality and repayment history. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of debt on both collective and
individual basis to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. During the period ended 31 December 2012, a net
impairment loss of HK$12,690,000 in respect of the trade receivables was

recognized.

Furthermore, the Company only provides financial guarantees to its
subsidiaries after a careful consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial
conditions. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's and the Company'’s credit risk are significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group and the Company is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group and the Company
has no significant concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

36. ©E T A (&)

(b) HEEMEEBERKE (H)
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group and the Company
monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s and the Company’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors
the utilization of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with the relevant

loan covenants.

Other than equity, the Group and the Company relies on bank borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2012, the available
unutilized banking facilities of the Group and the Company are
approximately HK$1,765 million and HK$123 million (31 August 2011:
HK$2,315 million and HK$113 million), respectively.

The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company’s remaining
contractual maturity for their non-derivative financial liabilities and
derivatives financial liabilities (including foreign currency forward contracts
and interest rate swaps contracts) based on the agreed repayment terms.
For non-derivative financial liabilities, the tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group and the Company can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from

interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

For derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted net
cash flows are presented. Whereas they require gross settlement, the
undiscounted gross outflow/(inflow) on these derivatives are shown on the

tables.

SRR

36. &R T & (&)

(b) HEEMEERERKE (H)

FREBESRR

REBRBESAKE FAEFEAAARER

RAREEBRARAKTNRSRERAESE
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1,765,000,0005% 7T % 123,000,0005% 7T (201148 A
318 :2,315,000,0007% 7T 5 113,000,000/ 7T) °

TRAFIRBEBREEERRANEBRARQ BT
SEREERTESHEE (BEEMMESD
RAERHEN) NETEREMER - LI
TEREE  ZRDEBAEERARQ A TR
ERNIRNEEAHMRESREENRBRRS
REBREHE BREBNERFERESRE - £F
EREAFBNEZRER  REBEEHEIHR
EHRZREREE -

FRHAENTEIR URUBBRBREREFESR
o MBELUABELE  ZEMTETAENKRERR
II:H/(I)IL %EEJZEUE’Q‘"F%E °



EEEE(RE)FRLT 2012 FEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 EA7&ERaRMIEE

31 December 2012 20125 12H831R

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. ©RIT A (#)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) FERREEBZEREEK(HE)
Liquidity risk (continued) T EE S E (F)

THE GROUP &

Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted 31 December

interestrate  ondemand 1-3 months tolyear  Over1year cash flows 2012
20125

MEFS SRER 3f@ A AERRS 128318
BBRR= HEER 123788 ESE:S BEE hEAE WREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEr FEr FErx FEx Tir Tin

Non-derivative financial liabilities 74 £BEE
Trade, bills and other payables 2% ZERHM

FEfT5E - 675,159 371,092 79,085 - 1,125,336 1,125,336
Amounts due to non-controlling REBRBRFE
shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
fixed rate -EE 252 492 41,108 197,259 1,832 240,691 239,129
- variable rate -%8 3.02 428,091 281,097 311,306 241,995 1,262,489 1,243,944
1,183,842 693,297 587,650 243,827 2,708,616 2,688,509
Derivatives - net settlement fIEIR-NFREE
Interest rate swaps FlZEH 0.04 7,383 7,146 - - 14,529 14,522

Derivatives - gross settlement fIETE-NABEE

Foreign currency forward EHMESH
contracts
- outflow i - 15,502 31,004 139,518 - 186,024 N/A
- inflow -HA - (15,479) (30,957) (139,073) = (185,509) N/A

23 47 445 - 515 515
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

36. £RL T B (&)

(b) MBREMEREREREE(E)

Liquidity risk (continued) FEBESRR (&)
THE GROUP REHE
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted 31 August
interest rate on demand 1-3 months to 1 year Over 1 year cash flows 2011
R0 E
mEFs  SRfEAR 38R AARRE 8A31A
ERAZ HEER 1238 A EE B@E nEfE WEREE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TiEx TiEx TiEx TiEr TEr TiEx
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ FEfT4E & REAR
Trade, bills and other payables 2% ZEREM
ENFE - 398,864 252123 102,450 - 753437 753437
Amounts due to non-controlling REERBRRAE
shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Consideration payables EARE 370 23,573 - - - 3573 23,501
Bank borrowings RITEE
-~ fixed rate -EE 376 71,765 201,961 141,785 - 415511 409518
- variable rate -8 234 104,938 288,859 675270 780,356 1,849,423 1,789,868
679,240 742,943 919,505 780,356 3,122,044 3,056,424
Derivatives - net settlement fTETA-UFHEE
Interest rate swaps FlzEE 0.02 - 5,606 18339 21,650 45,595 45,583
Foreign currency forward contracts EHNESH - - - 108 - 108 108
- 5,606 18,447 21,650 45703 45,691
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. ©RIT A (#)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) FERREEBZEREEK(HE)
Liquidity risk (continued) T EE S E (F)
THE COMPANY P NN
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted 31 December
interestrate  ondemand 1-3 months tolyear  Over1year cash flows 2012
20125
MEFS SRER 3f@ A AERRS 128318
BRAZ HEER 123788 ESE:S BEE hEAE WREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FEn TEr TEn FEn FEn

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER

Amounts due to subsidiaries YR - 1,462,462 o o o 1,462,462 1,462,462
Bank and other borrowings RITRAMEE
~fixed rate -8 3.99 458 916 4,121 1,832 7,321 7,129
- variable rate -38 3.11 214,133 1,953 155,104 241,995 613,185 596,368
Financial guarantee contracts BHERED - 3,284,000 - - - 3,284,000 -
4,961,053 2,869 159,225 243,827 5,366,974 2,065,959

Derivatives - net settlement TEIE-NFHER
Interest rate swaps FlZBE 0.04 7,383 7,146 = = 14,529 14,522
Derivatives - gross settlement TEIE-UNBELE
Foreign currency forward BHNESH

contracts

- outflow ~it - 15,502 31,004 139,518 = 186,024 N/A
- inflow -HA = (15,479) (30,957) (139,073) = (185,509) N/A

23 47 445 - 515 515
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

36. £RL T B (&)
(b) BEEREEEERKE (E)

Liquidity risk (continued) FEBESRR (&)
THE COMPANY AN
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted 31 August
interest rate on demand 1-3 months to 1 year Over 1 year cash flows 2011
R0 E
mEFs  SRfEAR 38R AARRE 8A31A
ERAZ HEER 1238 A EE B@E nEfE WikEE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TiEx TiEx TiEx TiEr TEr TiEx
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEfT4E & RMERE
Other payables HibEAFE - 16 - - - 16 16
Amounts due to subsidiaries RHBAARE - 1,031,238 - - - 1,031,238 1,031,238
Bank borrowings - variable rate RITEE-EE 208 100,057 174,842 517,661 724,120 1,516,680 1,463,554
Financial quarantee contracts BHEREL - 3,145,341 - - - 3,145,341 -
4,276,652 174,842 517,661 724120 5,693,275 2,494,808
Derivatives - net settlement fIETE-UFREE
Interest rate swaps pilks: ki 0.02 - 5,606 18,339 21,650 45,595 455583

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Company could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the Company considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer

credit losses.

PR BERENSEVEMERSFAMEH
EREFREPR XX ARBEEEZHETHR
ERENZESEHE RERBSHL 2AY
FRAARBBURBARBERZ N EAE
oM WHRBAENRE KRFEFARERE
RIBHAR RN  MELAEMERARTFHF
FRALZRERMBEREFEAZEEBEZ
AT BEMETE ©
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the

end of the reporting period.

(c) Fairvalue
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as

follows:

. the fair value of derivative financial instruments are calculated using
generally accepted pricing models based on quoted forward exchange
rates and discounted cash flow analysis based on the applicable yield

curves of interest rates provided by counterparty financial institutions.

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models

based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost in the statements of financial

position approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurement recognized in the statements of financial
position

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at
fair value and grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the

fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices

(unadjusted) on active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

36. &R T H (&)

b) HERREEEERBE(E)

FEE SRR (E)
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- TEERMIANAFEENDRAREER
X WUEHFHHEHEBRMANERFIE
WEHEREENTSEHERRBRR
ERESWEEMTE

- HsMEERESBMAEENAIFEEDR
BAREBRARMRBERESITMETE -

ERREPBRRRAUBER SRS E
EERSHMEENREEEKREN D TEBMS -

REBRREBR 2D PEEFE

RERERRUAANFEETEZESRTALIRR
HABREQAFEERES R 1234 -

BRLAFEEFENAEREERRER
SERT IS 2 RE CRERAE)FH -

FRAFEEFEDRERMEEZR
B BEEREETEE (BER) S H
R(BERITE)IBEZBASHEE -

- BMRAFEEFEDUERTALERE
TEENSSHCEERER2BASE (H
FEERASR) 2hERESH -



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 BA7&RaRMIEE

31 December 2012 20128128318

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. £R T B (&)
(c) Fair value (continued) (o) 2LFEEGE)
Fair value measurement recognized in the statements of financial RUEBERRRERZ AT EETE (B

position (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, all of the Group’s and the Company’s RBERPL  REBRAQAIFBASRERE
investment in life insurance policies and derivative financial instruments are ZRERTESRMTI AR EAF2HRER -

grouped into Level 2 category.

There were no transfers between the three Levels during the period and 2B EAFELERIERE < B HEE -
prior year.
37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EXREE
THE GROUP TEM
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
20125 20115
12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not EENEREGEEMEREK
provided in the consolidated financial AEELBE2ELREX
statements in respect of:
- acquisition of property, plant and equipment —BEYE HBREXE 31,917 7,432
- additions to intangible assets -hBREVEE 64,455 1,386
96,372 8,818
Capital expenditure authorized but not EHEEREINERHEX !
contracted for in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment —BEYE HERRE 8,141 7,540
- additions to intangible assets -nEBRTEE 306 -

8,447 7,540
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

37. EREE (&)

THE COMPANY Vi NN |
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
20125 20114
12A31H 8A31H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not EENERBBERRAE
provided in the financial ELBE 2 ERMEXL !
statements in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment -~ EEWE - HBERKE 11,687 493
38. OPERATING LEASES 38. BEHE
The Group as lessee AEBEEREEA
THE GROUP
TEE
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
20125 20115
12A31H 8H31H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Minimum lease payments paid under operating 2N FEREERE
lease during the period/year: MEFHREEESRS !
Land and buildings T RETF 66,893 52,745
Plant and machinery o 5 1 B 13,970 10,996
80,863 63,741
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38. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall

due as follows:

38. £EHE (&)
REBEBEEA (H)

R|BERL - AEEFR T THUEEEREHRE
REEEXHAERTIABAXMN

THE GROUP
REE
At 31 December 2012 At 31 August 2011
R2012512H31H 201158 A31H
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings machinery buildings machinery
T RAEF BE#E LTHREF TR = #4428
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Within one year 1% R 49,028 1,651 54,756 6,360
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~ SE2F EEE5ER
(ERMEBEEA) 105,936 2,014 134,605 22,419
Over five years SEME 56,110 = 74,340 5,494
211,074 3,665 263,701 34,273
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for EEHESYEIAEERMEETFHRAT » T
certain of its office premises, factories, and plant and machinery. Leases are SENHMNENES KEENBEEFEHM it

negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty five years for land and
buildings and from one to five years for plant and machinery. There is no

contingent rental arrangement.

The Group as lessor
Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group during
the period was approximately HKS 413,000 (2011: Nil). No related outgoings

for the period/year.

REFDINFIZBF 2 BBE#KSE RN F1
BEECE c WAREHAREE ZHE

rEBERERBEBEA

REHE  AEBRREVEMRSHESKA
HBEHNBA13,000/8 7T (20114F : &) - RHE &
EXEBENZE -
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38. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants,

in respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum lease

38. EEHE (&)

AEEEDHEA (H)

RBERR  AEBERASHESYEDITON
FRRBEBERAMT

receipts.
THE GROUP

rEE
At At
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
20125 20114
12A31H 8A31H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
Within one year 1R 2,354 -
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEEFRN(ERMERBEER) 1,758 -
4,112 -

The Company had no significant operating lease commitments or

arrangements at the end of the reporting period.

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
THE COMPANY

The Company has given limited guarantees to various banks to secure
general banking and loan facilities granted to certain subsidiaries to the
extent of HK$3,284,000,000 (31 August 2011: HKS$3,145,341,000). As at
31 December 2012, the aggregate amounts utilized by these subsidiaries

amounted to HK$1,167,124,000 (31 August 2011: HK$1,006,838,000).

N,

REEHL > ARAALBERNEEHERERR

39. ZAAREE

RN
AARCEMBZERTHTFERVINEREZES
3,284,000,0007% 7T (201158H31H : 3,145,341,000
BT  ERZERTHTETHERATD—RE
ARSI o R20128128318  ZSH B
AR2ERMWAEEE51,167,124,000/8 7T (201148
H31H :1,006,838,000/ T) ©



@ Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2012

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 435 BA7&RaRMIEE

31 December 2012 20128128318

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
During the 16 months period ended 31 December 2012, the group

deregistered its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Beijing Megawood Fashion
Limited (“Beijing Megawood”), Megawood Fashion Group Limited and
Megawood International Limited (collectively referred to as “Megawood
Fashion Group”), PT Higon International (“PT. Higon”), Winner Win Limited
and BEELBAER DT In addition, the Group sold its 100% equity
interests in New Achieve Investments Limited and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, namely Able Jubilee Limited and Jiangyin Jintian Machinery
Limited (collectively referred to as “New Achieve Group”) to an independent
third party, at an aggregate consideration of RMB90,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$109,756,000). The Group also sold its 100% equity interests in Bio
Venture Investments Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely
Tower Knitters Limited, JTFITEBABERAT, BT EEHBERA
7 and FIEEEREER AT (collectively referred to as “Bio Venture
Group”) to an independent third party, at an aggregate consideration of

RMB6,116,000 (equivalent to HK$7,643,000).

Beijing Megawood, Megawood Fashion Group, Winner Win Limited, &
TEZE 488 BR 2 8 were inactive before their deregistration. PT. Higon was
previously engaged in trading of garment products while New Achieve
Group was engaged in manufacturing of machineries and Bio Venture Group

was engaged in production and sales of yarns.

During the year ended 31 August 2011, the Group deregistered its 80%
owned subsidiary, Fountain Set Textiles (B.C.) Limited, and disposed of
its entire 100% interests in wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Futian
Properties Limited (Formerly known as Fountain Set Properties Limited),
Futian Development Limited (Formerly known as Fountain Set Development
Limited), Intracord Company Limited and BB T EZHBER AT to

certain independent third parties.

40. HEKME QA

B E20125128318 1L16f8 A H1 R - AEBEEBUH
AMEZEWBARLETERMREGRALE
TEEHBRMA]) - BRMBREEBERIAR
BEEERERAR (KBIERMRLEER] - PT
Higon International ([P.T. Higon 1) & B F % R B R
RARBFEEHBERAT o i AEEH
EH ANew Achieve Investments Limited 2 2 &
MEBARBREERARARIRSHAMBERD
B (K78 [ New AchieveS @ 1) Z100%R EF 1588
VEZF - BRER ARK0,000,0007T (HHER
109,756,000/ 7T) ° 258 @ 75 i & H M Bio Venture
Investments Limited X E 2 &K B QAT HE HBE
BMERAR CIMTEBEASERAR -BF
BEEHBERAARNBEZREFRAT (4
F&[Bio Venture® £ ]) 2 100%BEF1EBIE=
7 BREAR ARYEE,116,0007T (517,643,000
BT e

AETERM  BRMBREEE  BEFERER
RARBFEEHBERARNBUEZMATIE
fBET o PT. HigonBARBEERKEMREL
New Achieve®s B it 55 53 #4 28 2 7% I Bio Venture
EERELEEREERODES -

BE20NMFANA L FEHAE  AEEBEE
A E 5 80% 2 [t B /A TFountain Set Textiles (B.C.)
Limited R HEH2EMBE A REREEFRAA
(AXEBEFER) BHERBRAA (RXH
FEFE Q) - Intracord Company Limited & B8
EXEGBERARNZ2BERTLEBUE=T
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The net assets of these disposed subsidiaries at the respective dates of

40. HLEHE AR (8)
REODHEZHBAARSBHE AN AR

disposal were as follows: BEHEHINOT :
For the For the
16 months 12 months
ended31  ended31
December August
Megawood PT. Winner New 2¥ Bio 2012 2011
Fashion Higon Win  Achieve EEHE  Venture EZE201E HEWNE
Beijing Group Limited Group ARAF Group 12831 8A31R
Megawood — EF#H New By Bio 116 I12(8A
LT R PT. BRERE  Achieve EZHH  Venture Total Total
EZM £8 Higon BRARA £8 ARAR &8 &it fit
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
tér TEr fEr  FEr  FEn  TEr  TEr  TEr  FEn
Cash consideration received BHRERE - - - - 10975 - 764 17400 46600
Analysis of assets and liabilitiesover ~ B4LEERERE
which control was lost: BHEZA
Property, plant and equipment nE - BERRE - - - - 57319 - 8,368 65,687 27,628
Prepaid lease payments BARERE - - - - 9,292 - - 9,292 3,647
Bank balances and cash RIERRES - - - - 4 - 25 29 -
Trade and other receivables EEREMERTE - - - - - - 13,468 13468 227
Trade and other payables EERAMENTE - - - - - - (394) (394) (1,948)
Net assets disposed of ftEvEERE - - - - 66,615 - 21467 88,082 31,554
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries: HEWBARZFE
Wi,/ (B8):
Consideration received BHKE - - - - 10975 - 764 17400 46600
Net assets disposed of filEzEERE - - - - (66619) - (1467 (8808)  (31554)
Translation reserve released REENRE 15 - (48) - 3 8016 5,551 13,537 5,166
15 - (48) - 43,144 8016 (8272 42,855 20212
Net cash inflow arising on disposal LERFELNRS
RAFE:
Cash consideration BeRE - - - - 10975 - 764 17400 46600
Less: bank balances and cash B TLENERT
disposed of EgRRe - - - - 4 - (25) (29) -
- - - - 109,752 - 7619 117371 46,600
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41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the eligible
employees of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.
The retirement benefits cost charged to the profit or loss represents the
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the

rules of the schemes.

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate in state-
sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes operated by
the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the schemes is to make the

required contributions.

During both periods, there was no significant forfeited contribution, which
arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits schemes, available to

reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, net of forfeited contributions
of HK$790,000 (31 August 2011: HK$415,000), amounting to HK$61,217,000
(31 August 2011: HK$36,724,000) have been charged to profit or loss for the

period/year and included in employee benefits expense as set out in note 9.

SRR

41. RIRERIE

AEBRBEBERAH BEHIEMR Y —EEE
HEE 8 (HERAE ) RBERHMEAES
HBEHIRYT — BRI ARSI (RESH
) FREAERNAEEERES - EMMA
HMEEDREEABIBERER - RAXR
IR B3R AR08 R B A T 25 SR AR 5 3 B 52 b 3R
SRR B o

AEEHMBREHENEER ES2EZAELE

BAFEENEZRAERNTBRERBRURGE -

REBABREESFHNETEDLHERT

EERBANES - AEEHZSFANE—SE
REAEFEHMEAK -

MERRE - EESRHRAERE ML WA HE
RIAEAFER - BERRIR I A AR R R F E R
TR -

ERRHE FELERANKRNBRREFE
MRS FEH61,217,0008 7T (201168 A318 -
36,724,000/ 5T) & 2 HIRUS W HY H7£790,000
77 (20114F8A318 : 415000/ 7t) » W E 5 A
Mo 2 EERABZA -
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42, RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
(a) Related party balances
Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties are set out

in the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 27.

Details of the Company’s outstanding balances with related parties are set

out in the statement of financial position and in note 17.

(b) Connected party transactions

42. HEARBEATHEE
(a) MBALHIEL

AEBHEEBALNEREBHINGS TR
RN MEE27R o

ADTEMBBATHERFEBRIRBERRE
RMEE17 o

(b) BEALRS

For the 16 For the 12

months ended months ended

31 December 31 August

Name of connected party Nature of transactions 2012 2011

REALEE REME #HZ2012F HZE2011HF

12A31H 8H31H

11618 A 1E1218 B

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

The FM Group (note i) Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items 186,200 84,114
FMEE (HEi) EEMRL - HREUER

The AH Group (note ii) Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items 80,774 80,959
AHEE B (Hf2Eii) EEMRA  HREUER

The LFK Group (note iii) Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items 71,763 75,650
LFKEE & (B aZiii) EERR - HRELER

Factory Co (note iv) Provision of fabrics knitting services by Factory Co 38,903 25,860

BN (M Eiv) B A R A T AR
Chinatex Group (note vii) Purchase of yarns 9,562 -

R B (Hfatvii) REBEY
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42,

(b)

Notes:

(ii)

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

Connected party transactions (continued)

On 10 December 2010, the Company and Mr. Feroz Omar (“Mr. Feroz") entered
into a master agreement (the “FM Master Sales Agreement”) regarding the
sales of fabrics, yarns and similar items by the Group to the FM Group. Mr.
Feroz is a director of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
accordingly a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
FM Group includes companies which Mr. Feroz or/and his relatives who are
persons referred to in Rules 14A.11(4)(b)(i) and 14A.11(4)(c)(i) of the Listing Rules
individually or together exercise or control the exercise of more than half of the
voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a majority of
the board of directors and hence the FM Group are associates of Mr. Feroz. The
transactions contemplated under the FM Master Sales Agreement constitute

continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January 2011

to 31 August 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the revised annual
cap of HK$220,000,000 and HK$230,000,000 for the years ended 31 August 2012
and 2013 respectively as set out in an announcement of the Company dated 30

November 2011.

On 10 December 2010, the Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani
(“Mr. Hirdaramani”) entered into a master agreement (the “AH Master Sales
Agreement”) regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns and similar items by the Group
to the AH Group. Mr. Hirdaramani is a director of a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and accordingly a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. The AH Group includes companies which Mr. Hirdaramani
or/and his relatives who are persons referred to in Rules 14A.11(4)(b)(i) and
14A.11(4)(c)(i) of the Listing Rules individually or together exercise or control the
exercise of more than half of the voting power at general meetings or control
the composition of a majority of the board of directors and hence the AH Group
are associates of Mr. Hirdaramani. The transactions contemplated under the AH
Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the

Company under the Listing Rules.

The AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January 2011

to 31 August 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$150,000,000 and HK$225,000,000 for the years ended 31 August 2012 and
2013 respectively as set out in an announcement of the Company dated 10

December 2010.

42.

(b)

MEREEALTHREE (&)

BEALXS (B

BiaE -

(ii)

720105128108 » & A B BFeroz Omar%t &
(TFeroz B ) BiAKERFMEBHERE - DR
BOERTLAHZE (FMBEERHZE]D © Feroz
EEREAQNTBIZEMNBLARZES  RIE
EHRA HBAQARZEEAL - FIMEBZR
BN R BiEHFerozt £8, RER LR AISE
14A11(4) (b) ()5 B2 S8 14A.11(4) () ()5 FT i -2 32 8 7T
EZEQANRRAE LERBR AR ITES
EHTEBEHULWRRE RIEFZEQT
NEEEAIBHREM AT » B IULFME B HFeroz
FECHBAL -RELHRA IMBEERHE
BTETZREBRADRAZFHERERS °

FMZE §8 £ 15 3% 2 BIBR 8201141 H20H E £2013
F8HA3IBIE

ZEBEXZURBBANTHBR2011F1A
30A Z AEFE B £20124 K%2013F8H318 1
FE 2 &5 FE LR % 5l %220,000,000% 7T K&
230,000,0007%& 7T ©

720105128108 » A2 B E2Anil Kumar Lalchand
Hirdaramani’t 4 ([ Hirdaramanist 4 ]) 5 A& & B
BMAHEBEEER K - W REUERT LEHZE
(TAH# S &1 1) o Hirdaramanist £ B4 2 7
EHFE2EMNBRAIZES RELTRA K
BEQTRZEBEAL -AHEBEZREAREIEH
Hirdaramanist £ 3%, R E R EHRAE14A.11(4)(b)
OMERBVAN@OQMFFTR BB EZS AR
BRR K& LB Bl 3 2 3t B b 4T SR SRAZ I 1T fE 3B ¥
HULEWRRE RIEHZEARNEZTEAINS
REMAT  HIHAHSE B HHirdaramanist £ 2 B
BAL o RIELWRA AHBEHEERRE T ET
ZRBBEAEABZFHEBERS °

AHZE SHE W ZE Z BIPR B20115F1 8208 & £2013
F8H31HIE ©

ZERAEXZLEBEBARQT A H20105F12
B10B 2 A& MBI E £20126F R2013F8A31
BLEFEZFE LR 5 %150,000,000% 5T &
225,000,0007 7T ©
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42,

(b)

Notes:

(iii)

(iv)

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)
Connected party transactions (continued)

(continued)

On 10 December 2010, the Company and LFK (Holdings) Limited (“LFK") entered
into a master agreement (the “LFK Master Sales Agreement”) regarding the sale
of fabrics, yarns and similar items by the Group to members of the LFK Group
(i.e. LFK and its subsidiaries). As the relatives who are persons referred to in Rule
14A.11(4)(c)(i) of the Listing Rules of a director of the Company, Mr. HA Kam On,
Victor, together exercise or control the exercise of more than half of the voting
power at general meetings or control the composition of a majority of the board
of directors of LFK, members of the LFK Group are associates of that director of
the Company under the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under
the LFK Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions

of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The LFK Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January

2011 to 31 August 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$248,000,000 and HK$372,000,000 for the years ended 31 August 2012 and
2013 respectively as set out in an announcement of the Company dated 10

December 2010.

On 10 December 2010, the Company and SLREEE2 £+ R A 7 (“Factory Co”)
entered into a master agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”) regarding
the provision of fabrics knitting services by Factory Co to the Group. As Factory
Co is owned as to 51% by the brother of a director of certain subsidiaries in the
Group, it is an associate of that director under the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Master Services Agreement constitute continuing

connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Master Services Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January 2011

to 31 August 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$49,000,000 and HK$61,000,000 for the years ended 31 August 2011 and 2012
respectively as set out in an announcement of the Company dated 10 December

2010.

42.

(b)

BiaE -

(iii)

(iv)

HEREEATHRE (&)

BEALXRS ()
(#)

72010F128108 » A2 G BLLFK (Holdings)
Limited (T LFK ) i AN EEE ELFKEEE R & 2 5 (B
LFKREMBAR) HEFAH - O RECERT L
BE (LFKEHERZED -AREAQRAEEE
8 & A R £ AR BIZE14A1@) (00 & F it 2
BAELFKRR RS EHE T HERIEHITEB
P EHRAE RRHIFKESEABSHE
AR AMARELTRA LFKEBZKE AR
ARBESCHEAL  HEREELHHRL LK

HEEHBRTETIREBRA LA 2EFERA

LFK#8 88 & 1 3% = 21 PR 3201141 B 200 # £2013
F8H31HIE

ZEREXZ W EBBARNRNE A AH2010F12
B10H 2 A& F#E & £20125F K2013F8A31
HiIEFEZFE LIRS 5B %248,000,0008 7T K&
372,000,0007 7T °

20105128108 » RA R ESTREE 8B R
AR TEHEAED BRI @ AEB RS
NIRRT LA T = (RRBHZE]D - BREK
AABAAEEETHB AR BREEZREE
51l BUARELTHRE ERATEZ
BEECHBAL - RIELTRA BREHZE
EHTETZRBBRADAZIFERERS °

PR TS 1 2 BAPR B320114F1 8208 #8 220135
8H31HILE °

ZEREXRZUEBBAQT A A2010F128
108 2 AEFREHBE2011FEK2012568A31H L&
E 2 FE LR 5 5l £49,000,0007% 7T 61,000,000

BT e
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42,

(b)

Notes:

(v)

(vi)

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

Connected party transactions (continued)

(continued)

On 19 December 2012, the Company entered into a material purchase
framework agreement (the “Material Purchase Framework Agreement”) with
Chinatex Corporation (“Chinatex”) in relation to the purchase of yarn, cotton,
other materials for the manufacture of fabric, garments and cooking oil
and foodstuffs by the Group from the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its

subsidiaries) commencing from 25 January 2013 to 31 December 2015.

The annual caps amount for the Material Purchase Framework Agreement
for the three financial years ending 31 December 2015 are HK$310,000,000,
HK$411,000,000 and HK$512,000,000 as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 19 December 2012.

Chinatex is the controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore a

connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The transaction under the Material Purchase Framework Agreement has not yet

commenced during the period.

On 19 December 2012, the Company entered into a product and service supply
framework agreement (the “Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement”)
with Chinatex in relation to the supply of textiles products such as fabric and
garments and dyeing service by the Group to the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex

and its subsidiaries) commencing from 25 January 2013 to 31 December 2015.

The annual caps amount for the Product and Service Supply Framework
Agreement for the three financial years ending 31 December 2015 are
HK$150,000,000, HK$170,000,000 and HK$190,000,000 as set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2012.

Chinatex is the controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore a

connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The transaction under the Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement

has not yet commenced during the period.

42, HERBEATHRE (&)

(b)

BiaE -

(v)

(vi)

BEALXS (B
(#)

720125128198 KA R EPEFHEBE DA
T DITIMERBERGE (DERBIESR
WEl)  AEEEASEEOPHER (HHR
HMB AR RERY B HttEEHRAE
BERREMA - R REHR M - H2013F18250
RE2015F 1283181k ©

RAATHEA2012F128198 22 EME - &
Z2015F 2R L3EMBEE  WERBIE
Rif3E 2 FE LR <% 5 5l 310,000,000 7T
411,000,0007% 7T } 512,000,000 T °

RHABADEZERKR - Bt - RIEEWRA
PHEBARNE ZBEEAL

IR - MERBER G AT 225 8RB
17 o

R2012F128198 - KA R EPHT LE Y R AR
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MEARREREHFHAERREODFMIRYE - A
201351 H25 B B 20155 12318 Ik ©
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7T * 170,000,0003% 7T & 190,000,000 T °
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42,

(b)

Notes:

(vii)

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)
Connected party transactions (continued)

(continued)

During the period from September 2012 to December 2012, each of Highscene
Limited, Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd, Jiangyin
Fuhui Textiles Limited and Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited
(collectively, the “FS Group”), all being subsidiaries of the Company, entered into
various material purchase contracts (“Material Purchase Contracts”) with Bao
Ding Chinatex Yimian Textiles Co., Ltd and Zhu Cheng Chinatex G-way Textiles
Co,, Ltd (collectively, the “Chinatex Group”) respectively, both being subsidiaries
of Chinatex, in relation to the sale of yarn by the Chinatex Group to the FS

Group.

As each of members of the Chinatex Group are subsidiaries of Chinatex, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, they are therefore connected persons
of the Company under the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated
under the Material Purchase Contracts constitute continuing connected

transactions of the Company under Listing Rules.

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 24 December 2012,
the total transaction amount under the Material Purchase Contracts was
approximately HK$11,000,000 as at December 2012 and no further transaction

was made pursuant to the Material Purchase Contracts thereafter.

42.

(b)

BiaE -

(vii)

HEREEATHRE (&)

BEALXRS ()
(#)

R2012F9A Z2012F 12 B B » KAR 2B A
AERERAT REDPHABSHBNRERD
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES 42, HEANEBEEATHWIKE (&)

(continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel () TEEBEAEBNFEE
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management EHEEEREMTECTEAENTFMOT :

during the period was as follows:

THE GROUP
AR
For the 16 For the 12
months ended months ended
31 December 31 August
2012 2011
BZE2012%F BE2011F
12H31H 8H31H
1E1618 A 1E1218 B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short-term benefits EHER 26,337 28,731
Post-employment benefits BB EER 747 920
Equity-settled share-based payments UEREEURMDAER 2R 3,946 2,840
31,030 32,491
The remunerations of directors and key management are decided by the EERFTEEEAECHEHESESBANT
board of directors and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having EERSE (AR RARITLEETESAATAEEM
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and BE THFMEESER -

comparable market statistics.
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